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COMPANY PROFILE

overeign is a $35 hillion financial institution with approximately 500

community banking offices, 1,000 ATMs and 7,100 team members in Connecticur, Massachusetts,

New Hampshire, New Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, and Rhode Island. Sovereign is the third largest
bank headquartered in Pennsylvania and the third largest banking franchise in New England. On
March 8, 2002, Sovereign completed the acquisition of Main Street Bancorp, Inc.

Giving effect to this transaction, Sovereign is now a $37 billion financial institution with

approximately 530 community banking offices reaching from north of Boston to south

of Philadelphia.
Tt gﬂ Gontents %’M@
When consumers and businesses think of a World
Strong Banking Franchise A Class financial services provider, they choose Sovereign.
Letter to Shareholders B % M 0
2001 Scorecard On Critical Success Factors D Sovereign is a World Class financial services
provider, committed to helping our customers succeed by
Corporate Goals E understanding and anticipating their individual financial
needs and providing customized solutions, resulting in
Sovereign in the Community F each customer having an average of six or more services

Summary Financial Performance and Composition G
Form 10-X H

Corporate Information Inside Back Cover

with the Bank.

Forward Looking Statements

The following discussion and other portions of this Annual Report
contain various forward-looking statements. Please refer to page 1 of
the Form 10-K for a discussion of the various factors that could adversely
affect the actual results--causing them to differ materially from those
expressed herein.

Sovereign Listed on New Yorls Stock Exchange

On July 10, 2001 Sovereign celebrated its first day of trading on the New York
Stock =xchange ("NYSE"} under its new ticker symbol "SOV." Jay S. Sidhu,
Sovereign’s President and Chief Executive Officer, stated, “The New York Stock
Exchange is synonymous with quality, longevity, and success. We are excited to give
our investors the opportunity to access Sovereign stock through the NYSE, and we
expect that, in the long run, investors will benefit from a Sovereign / NYSE affiliation.”




STRONG BANKING FRANCHISE
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Market Share Data:

o Among the 30 largest financial institutions in US

o Among the largest lenders to small businesses
in the Northeast

o 3rd largest bank headquartered in Pennsylvania

o 3rd largest banking franchise in New England

New England

#3 Massachusetts

#3 Rhode Island

#3 Hartford, Connecticut
#5 New Hampshire

Mid Atlantic

#3 Southeastern Pennsylvania
#4 New Jersey

SOVEREIGN BANK LOCATIONS

Banking

Offices ATMs
Pennsylvania 121 259
New Jersey 121 168
Delaware 0 10
New York 0 10
Mid Atlantic Total 242 447
Connecticut 37 74
Massachusetts 178 363
New Hampshire 13 21
Rhode Island 30 65
Vermont 0 20
New England Total 258 543
Main Street Bancorp 30 32
TOTAL 1022




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

he theme of last year's Annual Report was “Building a Solid
Foundation for the Future.” We are pleased to announce that such a foundation has been
built and fortified. With the New England franchise, acquired from FleetBoston in 2000,

fully integrated over a year ago, we

SOVEREIGN STOCK PRICE CHART (NYSE: SOV)

] are pleased to report that we have 12/29/00 10 12/31/01
: more deposits, more commercial $14.007 7%0%
$12.00 9
loans, more retail customers, and o
£ $10.00 -
more commercial customers than b e -
when we acquired the business. We :5 se00 - " ST S §
. . a.
are equally proud of the fact that 84.00F e
: $2.00 -/w\/— -10%
our management team 1S Very
strong, and we are well-poised for . 8535588885858 56 o
S 8 320 2debsbed
continued growth in all the markets = NDM Teernee 5 ="
that we Serve. SOV Price SOV%Chg  S&P E/arékhlgsge: BIX
We have completed the transformation from a Sovereign's leadership program is based on the
traditional thrift into a world class, commercial banking following beliefs:
and financial services organization. Through organic > Effective talent management leads to superior
earnings, Sovereign will generate approximately financial performance
$100 million in tangible common equity over each of ° Talented team members outperform average team
the coming financial quarters. By the end of 2002, our members by about 50%
Tier | Leverage ratio at the Holding Company should ° A talent mind set must be culturally embraced by
exceed 5.0%. We intend to continue to solidify our bal- the entire organization
ance sheet through earnings and reach our longer-term ° Proactive programs must be in place to reward,
goal of between a 6.0 to 7.0% Tier | Leverage ratio. recognize and continually develop ‘A’ team
Sovereign embodies a vibrant sales and service members, encourage and develop ‘B’ team
culture coupled with strong leadership and development members and develop or act on ‘C’ team members
programs. Qur organization has very specific strategies = Leadership excellence requires business skills,
and goals that, we believe, will drive Sovereign’s earnings human skills and commitment and passion for
to $2.00 per share hy 2005. superior performance




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

2007 Highlights

* The stock closed at $12.24 on December 31, 2001;
up over 50% from $8.13 on December 29, 2000

° Holding company Tier | capital ratio grew to 4.21% from
3.09% at December 31, 2000

> Core deposits grew by over $800 million and, adjusted
for branch sales, by $980 million during 2001

° Opened 245,000 new checking accounts

° Sold an average of 4+ services to every consumer

¢ Consumer banking fee income grew by 62% for the
year, and 27% versus the fourth quarter of last year

¢ Commercial banking fee income grew by 105% for the
year, and 34% versus the fourth quarter of last year

2001 Financial Results

Two thousand and one was an exceptional year for
Sovereign and our shareholders. Sovereign’s stock price
increased by more than 50% during 2001 from $8.13
on December 29, 2000 to $12.24 on December 31, 2001.
Sovereign Bancorp’s Tier | Capital ratio grew to 4.21%
at December 31, 2001 from 3.09% at December 31, 2000.
Both cash earnings*® and operating earnings* reflected
double digit percentage increases in 2001 versus the prior
year. We opened 245,000 new checking accounts, exceed-
ing our goal by 23%. Consumer and commercial banking
fee income increased dramatically during 2001. In addition,
Sovereign signed a definitive agreement to acquire Main
Street Bancorp, Inc.

Sovereign achieved cash earnings* of $378.3 million
in 2001 versus $308.6 million in 2000. Cash earnings per
share* measured $1.47 in 2001, essentially flat from $1.48
in 2000. In the face of a softening economy, the Company
issued 20 million additional shares in February of 2001.

Without these additional shares, 2001 cash earnings*
would have been $1.58 on a per share basis.

Operating earnings* for 2001 were $287.0 million, up
from $239.9 million in 2000. Operating earnings per share*
measured $1.12 in 2001 versus $1.15 in 2000. Without the
additional issued shares mentioned earlier, 2001 operating
garnings* would have been $1.20 on a per share basis.

Tax-effected, special charges totaled $170.2 million
in 2001 bringing Sovereign’s 2001 net income to $116.8
million or $.45 per share.

Qur 2001 core revenue* was $1.5 hillion, an increase
of 36% over 2000. On a per share basis, core revenue®
was $5.70, up 20% from 2000.

Non-interest income excluding securities transactions
for the year was $410.6 million, an 86% increase from
$220.3 miltion in 2000. In addition, Sovereign’s 2001
net interest margin improved 51 basis points to 3.57%
versus 3.06% for the prior year.

Sovereign’s Strengths
° Exceptional market franchise,
acquired at reasonable prices

Depth and breadth of management team,
with significant insider ownership

Innovative, entrepreneurial, sales & service culture
Acquisition integration skills

Large, stable low-cost core deposit base

° Balanced and geographically dispersed loan portfolio
* Accelerating fee-based revenues

° Stable asset quality

° Very strong internal tangible equity creation

* Compensation plans tied to shareholder value creation

o

o

°

°

* Please refer to page G for definitions and to page 13
of Form 10-K for a reconciliation to GAAP earnings.

Sovereign's motto is to “out local the
nationals and out national the locals”

°> Through dedicated relationship professionals,
Sovereign treats its customers with the personalized
service of a “local” bank.

° At the same time, Sovereign offers a "big bank” array
of products and services to its customers utilizing
advanced technologies and other means for multiple
channel delivery.

Sovereign's Weaknesses
° Holding company Tier | capital ratio somewhat
below peers.

° Another economic recession could derail Sovereign’s
earnings goal of $2.00 per share by 2005.




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

2001 SCORECARD ON CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTORS

Since 1987, Sovereign has managed its businesses around four critical success factors. The following discussion

depicts our 2001 performance relative to these factors.

Superior Asset Quality

Two thousand and one was a challenging credit
environment for the banking industry. On balance,
Sovereign performed well relative to peers as shown
in the following table:

Peers Sov

Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec.
2000 2001 2000 2001

Allowance to Loans  1.46%  1.63% 1.17%  1.30%
NCO's to Avg Loans  .43% 91% .35% A2%

NPLs/Loans 6%  1.00%  82%  1.02%

Source: Keefe, Bruyette & Woads, Inc. Peer Group Averages 1998-2001 by Quarter-End
Asset Size Peer Group Number 1, 28 companies, Over $25 Billion

NCO's = Net charge-offs

NPLs = Non-performing loans

Allowance to NCO's 3.4 Yrs. 1.8Yrs. 38Yrs. 3.0Vrs.

Productivity and Expense Control

Sovereign is keenly focused on productivity
and cost control. The following chart depicts the
favorable overall trend that we expect to continue
in future periods.

EFFICIENCY RATIO

56.7% 55.2%
53.8% 53.8%
a

4Q00 1Q01 2Q01 3Q01 4Q01

Superior Risk Management

During 2001, the Federal Reserve cut interest
rates by an unprecedented 475 basis points.
Despite a mildly asset-sensitive balance sheet,
Sovereign maintained and improved its net interest
margin through aggressive liability management
and core deposit growth, and repositioning of its
interest-earning asset mix.

NET INTEREST MARGIN

3.69%
3.60% 3.59% n

3.50% n n
3.45%

] |

4Q00 1Q01 2Q01 3Q01 4Q01

Strong Sales & Service Culture

Sovereign had a very successful year attracting
new customers and expanding relationships with
existing customers. The Bank opened 245,000
new checking accounts and generated $3.5 billion
in new commercial and business loan facilities.
Consumer and commercial banking fee income
have increased significantly from 1999 through
2001 as depicted below.

CONSUMER BANKING FEES ($ MILLIONS)

Avg. Core Fees /
Fees Deposits Balances*

4Q99 $11.5 $6,442 0.71%
4Q00 $32.4 $14,963 0.87%
4Q01 $41.0 $15697 1.04%

COMMERCIAL BANKING FEES ($ MILLIONS)

Avg. Comm']
Loan Fees /
Fees Balances Balances®

4099 $4.9 $3,760 0.52%
4Q00 $13.86 $7,746 0.70%
4Q01 $18.2 $8,020 0.91%

*Annualized




LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
CORPORATE GOALS

Shareholder Returns
Goal = 15-20% Average Annual Stock Price Appreciation

Drivers

Achieve Earnings Goals
Achieve Stock Valuation Multiples at or Above Peer Averages

Earnings Per Share Goals'"

Year Operating Cash

2002* $1.25- 1.30 $1.45- 1.50
2003 $1.40- 1.45 $1.55- 1.60
2004 $1.65- 1.75 $1.75- 1.85
2005 $2.00 $2.10-2.15

* GAAP earnings will reflect a one-time charge of approximately $0.05 for the Main Street Bancorp acquisition

Drivers

For Each Existing Customer, Become the Exclusive
or Primary Financial Services Provider

Target and Acquire New Customers and, Ultimately Become Their
Exclusive or Primary Financial Services Provider

Through Leadership and Other Proactive Programs & Initiatives,
Dramatically Improve Productivity & Customer Satisfaction

(1) Please refer to page 1 of the Form 10-K for a discussion of factors that may impact the foward-looking statements contained on this page.

Internal Goal
To Become One of the Best Companies to Work for in America

Drivers

Solid Financial Performance
Effective Leadership Development Programs
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Sovereign in the Community

“You cannot hold a torch to light another’s path
without brightening your own”

Sovereign gave freely of its time, talents and
resources to light the way for many throughout the
Mid-Atlantic and New England regions. Grants were
awarded to 377 organizations, totaling $3.0 million.
Through our involvement with our neighbors, customers
and communities, the path of team members shines brighter.

Our focus remains on children and education.
However, Sovereign is quick to respond in a time of need
and support. That was evident following the September 11,
2001 attack on our country. Sovereign, its team members,
and customers raised more than $4 million for relief efforts.

Our children and education movement reached
750,000 children and was highlighted by the following:

« Major sponsor of the New England Aguarium
and the “Beach Teach” program for children ages 3-4.

» Holiday Book Drive in New England collected
more than 10,000 books and distributed them to
children’s organizations.

+ Assumed a leadership role on the Children’s
Investment Strategy Oversight Committee in
Philadelphia. The initiative is focused on enhancing
support to children to improve their academics.

° In Reading, Pennsylvania, Sovereign is working
closely with the Reading Musical Foundation on
“Operation Replay.” The program is designed to receive
donations of new or used instruments to be distributed
to Berks County students who are unable to afford
an instrument.

= We took the lead in the Second Mile Leadership
Institute at Penn State University in State College,
Pennsylvania. During the session, high school students
developed leadership skills necessary for making positive
changes in their communities.

= We were the lead in the Philadelphia Chamber
of Commerce Youth Mentoring Program.

In addition to the initiatives on children and education,
Sovereign took leadership roles in the following:

o Principal sponsor of Habitat for Humanity, including
“Home Sweet Home" paint collection cans located in
selected New England branches.

+ Naming sponsor of the Sovereign Center
and Sovereign Performing Arts Center in Reading,
Pennsylvania.

o Principal sponsor-of 8 minor league baseball
teams in Mid-Atlantic and New England regions.

We believe that Sovereign is well positioned to
compete in a tremendous marketplace. We are focused
on middle income consumers and the smal! to mid-sized
business customers. We believe that these customers
are under-served by our competitors and that they
represent the optimal target markets for superior financial
performance. Sovereign differentiates itself by offering
a “big bank” variety of products, services and delivery
channels and by delivering those products and services
with a high degree of personal service through dedicated
and friendly professionals.

CZAGE o

Richard E. Mohn
Chairman of the Board

As a company, we are simply focused on “blocking
and tackling” to achieve three outcomes: one, delivering
above average returns to our shareholders; two, increasing
our market share with respect to both the number of
customers and the number of products and services per
customer; and threg, to continue to be a solid corporate
citizen by generously giving our time, talents and resources.
We appreciate your support and confidence.

Jay S. Sidhu
President and Chief Executive Officer




CoRE REVENUE™"

$1,465

$1,075

$735

sagg 09

| |

97 98 99 00 01

Low-CosT DEeposIT MIx

34%
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Checking Other Core  Time Deposits

CORE REVENUE PER SHARE™

$5.70

$4.13 §4.76
$3.73 )
$3.13

97 98 99 00 01

SUMMARY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND COMPOSITION*

CASH EARNINGS™®

$378
$309

$232

$188
$155

97 98 99 00 01

Tier I LEVERAGE RaTIO

4.21%
3.62% 3.66% 3.73%
3.09%

4Q00 1Q01 2Q01 3Q01 4Q01

CasH EARNINGS PER SHARE®

$1.48 $1.47
$1.34

$1.17
$0.99

97 98 99 00 01

OPERATING EARNINGS®

$287

$240

$202 M
$170
$139

97 98 99 00 01

DIVERSE LoaN MIX

o

Commercial Consumer Residential

OPERATING EARNINGS PER SHARE'®

$1.18
$1.15 $1.12

$1.06

$0.88

97 98 99 00 01

1 Net interest income plus non-interest income excluding securities gains/losses and related derivatives
2 Operating Earnings plus tax-effected add-back of intangible amortization and ESOP expenses
(3 Net income plus tax-effected add-back of non-operating items such as merger-related,
restructuring and integration charges related to recent acquisitions
4 Core revenue divided by average fully dituted shares
(8)  Cash earnings divided by adjusted, average fully diluted shares * Please refer to page 13 of Form 10-K for a reconcifiation

{6) Operating earnings divided by adjusted, average fully diluted shares to GAAP earnings.
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Washington, D.C. 20549
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[X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, for the fiscal year
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[ ] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TQ SECTION 13 OR 15(d} OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, for the transition
period from N/A to .

Commission File Number 0-16533

SOVEREIGN BANCCRE, INC.
{Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Pennsylvania 23-2453088
{State or other Jurisdiction {LR.S. Empiloyer
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(215) 557-4630
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Part lll of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [ ]

The aggregate market value of the shares of Common Stock of the Registrant held by nonaffiliates of the Registrant was
$3,138,627,693 at February 28, 2002. As of February 28, 2002, the Registrant had 247,721,207 shares of Common Stock outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The Registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement to be used in connection with its 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders is

incorporated herein by reference in response to Part Ill hereof.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a "safe harbor" for forward-looking statements made by or on behalf
of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. {("Sovereign"}). Sovereign may from time to time make forward-looking statements in Sovereign's filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission {including this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Exhibits hereto), in its reports
to shareholders (including its 2001 Annual Report) and in other communications by Sovereign, which are made in good faith by
Sovereign, pursuant to the safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Some of the disclosure
communications by Sovereign, including any statements preceded by, followed by or which include the words "may," "could,"
"should," "pro forma," "locking forward," "will," "would," "believe," "expect," "anticipate,” "estimate," "intend," "plan," "strive,"
"hopefully,” “try," "assume" or similar expressions constitute forward-looking statements.

These forward-looking statements include statements with respect to Sovereign’s vision, mission, strategies, goals, beliefs, plans,
objectives, expectations, anticipations, estimates, intentions, financia! condition, results of operations, future performance and
business of Sovereign, including statements relating to:

» growth in cash earnings, operating earnings, net income, shareholder value and internal tangible equity generation;
* growth in earnings per share;

° return on equity;

° return on assets;

« efficiency ratio;

» Tier 1 leverage ratio;

s annualized net charge-offs and other asset quality measures;

- fee income as a percentage of total revenue;

» ratio of tangible equity to assets;

° book value and tangible book value per share; and

* |oan and deposit portfolio compositions, employee retention, deposit retention, asset quality and reserve adequacy.

These forward-looking statements, implicitly and explicitly, include the assumptions underlying the statements. Although Sovereign
believes that the expectations reflected in these forward-looking statements are reasonable, these statements involve risks and
uncertainties which are subject to change based on various important factors {some of which are beyond Sovereign’s control). The
following factors, among others, could cause Sovereign's financial performance to differ materially from its goals, plans, objectives,
intentions, expectations, forecasts and projections (and the underlying assumptions) expressed in the forward-looking statements:

- the strength of the United States economy in general and the strength of the regional and local economies in which
Sovereign conducts operations;

- the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetary and fiscal policies and laws, including interest rate policies of the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System;

s inflation, interest rate, market and monetary fluctuations;

 Sovereign's ability to successfully integrate any assets, liabilities, customers, systems and management personnel Sovereign
acquires into its operations and its ability to realize related revenue synergies and cost savings within expected time frames;

» Sovereign's timely development of competitive new products and services in a changing environment and the acceptance of
such products and services by customers;

« the willingness of customers to substitute competitors' products and services and vice versg;




» the impact of changes in financial services policies, laws and regulations, including laws, regulations and policies concerning
taxes, banking, capital, liquidity, proper accounting treatment, securities and insurance, and the application thereof by
regulatory bodies and the impact of changes in and interpretation of generally accepted accounting principles;

+ technological changes;

» changes in consumer spending and savings habits;

» terrorist attacks in the Unit:d States or upon United States interests abroad, or armed conflicts relating to these attacks;

« regulatory or judicial proceedings;

+ changes in asset quality; and

» Sovereign's success in managing the risks involved in the foregoing.
if one or more of the factors affecting Sovereign's forward-looking information and statements proves incorrect, then its actual
results, performance or achievements could differ materially from those expressed in, or implied by, forward-looking information

and statements. Therefore, Sovereign cautions you not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking information and statements.

Sovereign does not intend to update any forward-looking information and statements, whether written or oral, to reflect any change.
All forward-looking statements attributable to Sovereign are expressly qualified by these cautionary statements.

Operating earnings and cash earnings which are included and defined herein, and the related ratios using these measures are

not a substitute for other financial measures determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Because

all companies do not calculate these measures in the same fashion, these measures as presented may not be comparable to other
similarly titled measures of other companies.




PART I
ltem 1. Business.

General

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. ("Sovereign” or "the Company"), is the parent company of Sovereign Bank ("Sovereign Bank" or “the Bank"),
a $35 billion financial institution with approximately 500 community banking offices, approximately 1000 ATMs and about 7,100
team members in Pennsylvania, New Jersey, Connecticut, New Hampshire, New York, Rhode Island and Massachusetts. Sovereign's
primary business consists of attracting deposits from its network of community banking offices, and originating small business and
middle market commercial and asset-based loans, consumer and residential mortgage loans and home equity lines of credit in the
communities served by those offices.

Sovereign Bank was created in 1984 under the name Penn Savings Bank, F.S.B. through the merger of two financial institutions
with market areas primarily in Berks and Lancaster counties, Pennsylvania. Sovereign Bank assumed its current name on December
31, 1991. Sovereign was incorporated in 1987. Sovereign has acquired 23 financial institutions, branch networks and related
businesses since 1990. Fourteen of these acquisitions, with assets totaling approximately $22 billion, have been completed since
1995. In July 2001, Sovereign entered into a definitive agreement with Main Street Bancorp, Inc. {"Main Street") for Sovereign to
acquire Main Street. This acquisition, which is expected to close in the first quarter of 2002, will result in Sovereign becoming a
pro forma $37 billion financial institution with approximately 530 community banking offices reaching from north of Boston to
south of Philadelphia.

Sovereign is a Pennsylvania business corporation and its principal executive offices are located at 2000 Market Street, Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania. Sovereign Bank is headquartered in Wyomissing, Pennsylvania, a suburb of Reading, Pennsylvania.

Sovereign Bank is a federally chartered savings bank and operates in a heavily regulated environment. Changes in laws and regulations
affecting Sovereign and its subsidiaries may have an impact on its operations. See "Business—Supervision and Regulation."

Business Strategy

Sovereign believes that as a result of continuing consolidation in the financial industry, there is an increasing need for super-
community banks throughout the northeastern United States. Sovereign considers a super-community bank to be a bank with
the size and range of commercial, business and consumer products to compete with larger institutions, but with the orientation
to relationship banking and personalized service usually found at smaller community banks.

In response to this need, in 1996 Sovereign initiated a strategy to transform itself from a traditional mortgage iender into a
super-community bank by:

o targeting small and medium size businesses through an offering of a broader array of commercial and business banking
products and services;

s changing the mix of its deposits and, while endeavoring to preserve its credit guality, changing the mix of its assets to be
more characteristic of a commercial bank;

s increasing its penetration into larger, more densely populated markets in the northeastern United States;
* preserving its orientation toward relationship banking and personalized service, as well as its sales-driven culture; and

s increasing its non-interest income as a percentage of net income.




During 2000, Sovereign substantially completed its transformation by acquiring $12.3 billion of deposits, $8.0 billion of loans
{exclusive of $1 billion of non-relationship mortgage loans sold immediately after the acquisition), and over 280 community banking
offices located in Massachusetts, Rhode Island, Connecticut and New Hampshire from FleetBoston Financial Corporation (the "New
England Acquisition"). As a result of the New England Acquisition, Sovereign doubled its deposit base, changed the mix of loans
and deposits to be more characteristic of a commercial bank, and increased the breadth and depth of senior and middle management.

Recent Developments

On July 17, 2001, Sovereign announced the signing of a definitive agreement to acquire Main Street Bancorp, Inc. for approximately
$170 miilion in stock and cash. Main Street is a $1.5 billion bank holding company headquartered in Reading, Pennsylvania, with 42
community banking offices serving southeastern Pennsylvania. The transaction was completed on March 8, 2002 and provided
Sovereign with approximately $1.3 billion of deposits and $800 million of loans before purchase accounting adjustments, enhancing
Sovereign’s small business and middle market lending capabilities in the region.

Subsidiaries

Sovereign has six wholly-owned subsidiaries: Sovereign Bank, Sovereign Delaware Investment Corporation, Sovereign Capital
Trust |, Sovereign Capital Trust ll, Sovereign Capital Trust Ili, and ML Capital Trust |. Sovereign Delaware Investment Corporation
is a Delaware corporation whose primary purpose is to purchase and hold certain investment securities. Sovereign Capital Trust [,
Sovereign Capital Trust Il, Sovereign Capital Trust Iil, and ML Capital Trust | are special-purpose statutory trusts created expressly
for the issuance of preferred capital securities.

Employees
At December 31, 2001, Sovereign had 6,147 full-time and 956 part-time employees. None of these employees are represented by
a collective bargaining agreement, and Sovereign believes it enjoys good relations with its personnel.

Competition

Sovereign experiences substantial competition in attracting and retaining deposits and in lending funds. The primary factors in
competing for deposits are the ability to offer attractive rates, the convenience of office locations, and the availability of alternate
channels of distribution. Direct competition for deposits comes primarily from commercial banks and other thrift institutions.
Competition for deposits also comes from money market mutual funds, corporate and government securities, and credit unions.
The primary factors in the competition for loans are interest rates, loan origination fees and the range of products and services
offered. Competition for origination of loans normally comes from other thrift institutions, commercial banks, mortgage bankers,
mortgage brokers and insurance companies.

Environmental Laws

Environmentally related hazards have become a source of high risk and potentially unlimited liability for financial institutions relative
to their loans. Environmentally contaminated properties owned by an institution’s borrowers may result in a drastic reduction in the
value of the collateral securing the institution’s loans to such borrowers, high environmental clean up costs to the borrower affecting
its ability to repay the loans, the subordination of any lien in favor of the institution to a state or federal lien securing clean up costs,
and liability to the institution for clean up costs if it forecloses on the contaminated property or becomes involved in the management
of the borrower. To minimize this risk, Sovereign Bank may require an environmental examination of and report with respect to the
property of any borrower or prospective borrower if circumstances affecting the property indicate a potential for contamination,
taking into consideration the potential loss to the institution in relation to the burdens to the borrower. Such examination must

be performed by an engineering firm experienced in environmental risk studies and acceptable to the institution, and the costs of
such examinations and reports are the responsibility of the borrower. These costs may be substantial and may deter a prospective
borrower from entering into a loan transaction with Sovereign Bank. Sovereign is not aware of any borrower who is currently
subject to any environmental investigation or clean up proceeding which is likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial
condition or results of operations of Sovereign Bank.

Supervision and Regulation.
General. Sovereign is a "savings and loan holding company" registered with the Office of Thrift Supervision ("OTS") under the
Home Owners’ Loan Act ("HOLA") and as such, Sovereign is subject to OTS regulation, examination, supervision and reporting.




The deposits of Sovereign Bank are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). The FDIC manages two funds:
the Savings Association Insurance Fund ("SAIF") and the Bank Insurance Fund ("BIF"). These funds are required to be separately
maintained and not combined. The majority of Sovereign Bank's deposits are subject to the FDIC's SAIF deposit insurance assessment
rate; however, certain deposits which Sovereign acquired from other institutions are subject to the FDIC's BIF deposit insurance
assessment rate. See "Insurance of Deposit Accounts” below. Sovereign Bank is required to file reports with the OTS describing

its activities and financial condition and is periodically examined to test compliance with various regulatory requirements. Sovereign
Bank is also subject to examination by the FDIC. Such examinations are conducted for the purpose of protecting depositors and the
insurance fund and not for the purpose of protecting holders of equity or debt securities of Sovereign or Sovereign Bank. Sovereign
Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB") of Pittsburgh, which is one of the twelve regional banks comprising the
FHLB system. Sovereign Bank is also subject to regulation by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System with respect to
reserves maintained against deposits and certain other matters. Except as described herein, Sovereign’s management is not aware
of any current recommendations by regulatory authorities that would have a material effect on Sovereign’s operations, capital
resources or liquidity.

Holding Company Regulation. The HOLA prohibits a registered savings and loan holding company from directly or indirectly
acquiring control, including through an acquisition by merger, consolidation or purchase of assets, of any savings association
(as defined in HOLA to include a federal savings bank} or any other savings and loan holding company, without prior OTS approval.
Generally, a savings and loan holding company may not acquire more than 5% of the voting shares of any savings association
unless by merger, consolidation or purchase of assets. Certain regulations of the OTS describe standards for control under the
HOLA. See "Control of Sovereign" below.

Federal law empowers the Director of the OTS to take substantive action when the Director determines that there is reasonable
cause to believe that the continuation by a savings and loan holding company of any particular activity constitutes a serious risk
to the financial safety, soundness or stability of a savings and loan holding company’s subsidiary savings institution. The Director
of the OTS has oversight authority for all holding company affiliates, not just the insured institution. Specifically, the Director of
the OTS may, as necessary, (i) limit the payment of dividends by the savings institution; {ii) limit transactions between the savings
institution, the holding company and the subsidiaries or affiliates of either; {(iii) limit any activities of the savings institution that
might create a serious risk that the liabilities of the holding company and its affiliates may be imposed on the savings institution.
Anvy such timits could be issued in the form of a directive having the legal efficacy of a cease and desist order.

Control of Sovereign. Under the Savings and Loan Holding Company Act and the related Change in Bank Control Act (the
"Control Act"), individuals, corporations or other entities acquiring Sovereign common stock may, alone or together with other
investors, be deemed to control Sovereign and thereby Sovereign Bank. If deemed to control Sovereign, such person or group will
be required to obtain OTS approval to acquire Sovereign’s common stock and will be subject to certain ongoing reporting procedures
and restrictions under federal law and regulations. Under the regulations, ownership of 25% of the capital stock of Sovereign will
be deemed to constitute “"control,” and ownership of more than 10% of the capital stock may also be deemed to constitute “control"
if certain other control factors are present. It is possible that even lower levels of ownership of such securities could constitute
“control" under the regulations. As of December 31, 2001, no individual corporation or other entity owned more than 10% of
Sovereign’s capital stock.

Regulatory Capital Requirements. OTS regulations require savings associations to maintain a minimum tangible capital ratio
of not less than 2%, a minimum core capital, or "leverage" ratio of not less than 3% and a minimum risk-based capital ratio (based
upon credit risk) of not less than 8%. These standards are the same as the capital standards that are applicable to other insured
depository institutions, such as banks. Federal banking agencies are required to ensure that their risk-based capital guidelines
take adequate account of interest rate risk, concentration of credit risk and risks of non-traditional activities. In August 1995, the
federal banking agencies, including the OTS, issued a rule modifying their then-existing risk-based capital standards to provide
for consideration of interest rate risk when assessing the capital adequacy of an institution. This rule implements the first step of
a two-step process by explicitly including a depository institution’s exposure to declines in the value of its capital due to changes in
interest rates as one factor that the banking agencies will consider in evaluating an institution’s capital adequacy. The rule does not
establish a measurement framework for assessing an institution’s interest rate risk exposure level. Examiners will use data collected
by the banking agencies to determine the adequacy of an individual institution’s capital in light of interest rate risk. Examiners will




also consider historical financial performance, earnings exposure to interest rate movements and the adequacy of internal interest
rate risk management, among other things. This case-by-case approach for assessing an institution’s capital adequacy for interest
rate risk is transitional. The second step of the federal banking agencies’ interest rate risk regulation will be to establish an explicit
minimum capital charge for interest rate risk, based on measured levels of interest rate risk exposure. Asscciations whose exposure
to interest-rate risk is deemed to be above normal will be required to deduct a portion of such exposure in calculating their risk-
based capital. The OTS may establish, on a case-by-case basis, individual minimum capital requirements for a savings association
that vary from the minimum requirements that otherwise would apply under the OTS capital regulations. The OTS has not yet
established such individual minimum capital requirements. The banking agencies may implement this second step at some future date.

The federal banking agencies, including the OTS, also adopted final rules relating to concentration of credit risk and risks of non-
traditional activities effective on January 17, 1995. The agencies declined to adopt a quantitative test for concentrations of credit risk
and, instead, provided that such risk would be considered in addition to other risks in assessing an institution’s overall capital adequacy.
Institutions with higher concentration of credit risk will be required to maintain greater levels of capital. Similarly, the federal agencies
incorporated the evaluation of the risks of non-traditional activities into the overall assessment of capital adequacy. The agencies
also indicated that proposed rules regarding specific types of non-traditional activities will be promulgated from time to time.

Under the Federal Deposit Insurance Act ("FDIA"), insured depository institutions must be classified in one of five defined categories
(well-capitalized, adequately-capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and critically undercapitalized). Under OTS
regulations, an institution will be considered "well-capitalized" if it has {i) a total risk-based capital ratio of 10% or greater, (ii) a Tier 1
risk-based capital ratio of 6% or greater, (iii) a leverage ratio of 5% or greater and (iv) is not subject to any order or written directive
to meet and maintain a specific capital level. An "adequately-capitalized" institution is one that has (i) a total risk-based capital ratio
of 8% or greater, {ii) a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 4% or greater, (iii) a leverage ratio of 4% or greater {or 3% or greater in the
case of a bank with the highest composite regulatory examination rating) and (iv) does not meet the definition of a well-capitalized
institution. An institution will be considered (A} "undercapitalized" if it has (i) a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 8% (ii} a Tier
1 risk-based capital ratio of less than 4% or (iii) a leverage ratio of less than 4% (or 3% in the case of an institution with the highest
regulatory examination rating); (B) "significantly undercapitalized" if the institution has (i} a total risk-based capital ratio of less than
6% (ii) a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of less than 3% or (iii} a leverage ratio of less than 3%; and (C} "critically undercapitalized" if
the institution has a ratio of tangible equity to total assets of equal to or less than 2%. The OTS may, under certain circumstances,
reclassify a “well-capitalized" institution as "adequately-capitalized" or require an "adequately-capitalized" or "undercapitalized”
institution to comply with supervisory actions as if it were in the next lower category. Such a reclassification could be made if the
QTS determines that the institution is in an unsafe or unsound condition (which could include unsatisfactory examination ratings).
A savings institution’s capital category is determined with respect to its most recent thrift financial report filed with the OTS. In the
event an institution’s capital deteriorates to the undercapitalized category or below, the FDIA and OTS regulations prescribe an
increasing amount of regulatory intervention, including the adoption by the institution of a capital restoration plan, a guarantee of
the plan by its parent holding company and the placement of a hold on increases in assets, number of branches and lines of business.

If capital has reached the significantly or critically undercapitalized levels, further material restrictions can be imposed, including
restrictions on interest payable on accounts, dismissal of management and (in critically undercapitalized situations) appointment
of a receiver or conservator. Critically undercapitalized institutions generally may not, beginning 60 days after becoming critically
undercapitalized, make any payment of principal or interest on their subordinated debt. All but well-capitalized institutions are
prohibited from accepting brokered deposits without prior regulatory approval. Pursuant to the FDIA and OTS regulations, savings
associations which are not categorized as well-capitalized or adequately-capitalized are restricted from making capital distributions
which include cash dividends, stock redemptions or repurchases, cash-out mergers, interest payments on certain convertible debt
and other transactions charged to the capital account of a savings association. At December 31, 2001, Sovereign Bank met the
criteria to be classified as "well-capitalized."

The OTS Order (the "OTS Order") issued in connection with the New England Acquisition requires Sovereign Bank to be "well
capitalized" and also to meet certain other additional capital ratio requirements above the regulatory minimum, and other conditions.
Sovereign's various agreements with its lenders also require it to cause Sovereign Bank to be "well capitalized" at all times and in
compliance with all regulatory requirements. To be "well capitalized", an OTS institution must maintain a Tier 1 leverage ratio of

at least 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 6% and total risk-based capital of at least 10%. As of December 31, 2001,




Sovereign Bank was classified as well capitalized and in compliance with the conditions and capital requirements discussed above.
Management expects that Sovereign Bank will continue to be classified as well capitalized and in compliance with such capital
requirements and conditions. Although OTS capital regulations do not apply to savings and loan holding companies, the OTS Order
requires Sovereign to maintain certain Tier 1 capital and related liquidity levels. Sovereign is presently in compliance with these
requirements and expects to remain in compliance.

Standards for Safety and Soundness. The federal banking agencies adopted certain operational and managerial standards for
depository institutions, including internal audit system components, loan documentation requirements, asset growth parameters,
information technology and data security practices, and compensation standards for officers, directors and employees. The
implementation or enforcement of these guidelines has not had a material adverse effect on Sovereign's results of operations.

Insurance of Accounts and Regulation by the FDIC. Sovereign Bank is a member of the Savings Association Insurance Fund,
which is administered by the FDIC. Deposits are insured up to the applicable limits by the FDIC and such insurance is backed by the
full faith and credit of the United States government. As insurer, the FDIC imposes deposit insurance premiums and is authorized to
conduct examinations of, and to require reporting by, FDIC-insured institutions. It also may prohibit any FDIC-insured institution
from engaging in any activity the FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a serious risk to the Savings Association Insurance
Fund or Bank Insurance Fund. The FDIC also has the authority to initiate enforcement actions against savings institutions, after
giving the Office of Thrift Supervision an opportunity to take such action, and may terminate an institution’s deposit insurance
if it determines that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices or is in an unsafe or unsound condition.

The FDIC's deposit insurance premiums are assessed through a risk-based system under which all insured depository institutions are
placed into one of nine categories and assessed insurance premiums based upon their level of capital and supervisory evaluation.
Under the system, institutions classified as well capitalized (i.e., a core capital ratio of at least 5%, a ratio of Tier 1 or core capital to
risk-weighted assets ("Tier 1 risk-based capital") of at least 6% and a risk-based capital ratio of at least 10%) and considered healthy
pay the lowest premium while institutions that are less than adequately capitalized (i.e., core or Tier 1 risk-based capital ratios of

less than 4% or a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 8%) and considered of substantial supervisory concern pay the highest
premium. Risk classification of all insured institutions is made by the FDIC for each semi-annual assessment period.

The FDIC is authorized to increase assessment rates, on a semi-annual basis, if it determines that the reserve ratio of the Savings
Association Insurance Fund will be less than the designated reserve ratio of 1.25% of Savings Association Insurance Fund insured
deposits. In setting these increased assessments, the FDIC must seek to restore the reserve ratio to that designated reserve level,
or such higher reserve ratic as established by the FDIC. The FDIC may also impose special assessments on Savings Association
Insurance Fund members to repay amounts borrowed from the United States Treasury or for any other reason deemed necessary
by the FDIC.

The current premium schedule for Savings Association Insurance Fund insured institutions ranges from 0 to 27 basis points per $100
of deposits. In addition, all insured institutions are required to pay a Financing Corporation assessment, in order to fund the interest
on bonds issued to resolve thrift failures in the 1980s. The current annual rate for all insured institutions is 1.84 basis points for each
$100 in domestic deposits. These assessments are revised quarterly and will continue until the bonds mature in the year 2017.

Federal Restrictions on Transactions with Affiliates. All banks and savings institutions are subject to affiliate and insider
transaction rules applicable to member banks of the Federal Reserve System set forth in Sections 23A, 23B, 22(g) and 22(h) of the
Federal Reserve Act, as well as such additional limitations as the institutions’ primary federal regulator may adopt. These provisions
prohibit or limit a savings institution from extending credit to, or entering into certain transactions with, affiliates, principal stock-
holders, directors and executive officers of the savings institution and its affiliates. For these purposes, the term "affiliate" generally
includes a holding company such as Sovereign and any company under common control with the savings institution. In addition,
the federal law governing unitary savings and loan holding companies prohibits Sovereign Bank from making any loan to any
affiliate whose activity is not permitted for a subsidiary of a bank holding company. This law also prohibits Sovereign Bank from
making any equity investment in any affiliate that is not its subsidiary.




Restrictions on Subsidiary Savings Institution Capital Distributions. Sovereign’s principal sources of funds are cash dividends
paid to it by Sovereign Bank, investment income and borrowings. OTS regulations limit the ability of savings associations such
as Sovereign Bank to pay dividends and make other capital distributions. Associations that are subsidiaries of a savings and {oan
holding company must file a notice with the OTS at least 30 days before the proposed declaration of a dividend or approval of the
proposed capital distribution by its board of directors. In addition, a savings assaciation must obtain prior approval from the OTS
if it fails to meet certain regulatory conditions, or if, after giving effect to the proposed distribution, the association’s capital
distributions in a calendar year would exceed its year-to-date net income plus retained net income for the preceding two years
or the association would not be at least adequately capitalized or if the distribution would violate a statute, regulation, regulatory
agreement or a regulatory condition to which the association is subject.

Qualified Thrift Lender. All savings institutions are required to meet a qualified thrift lender test to avoid certain restrictions
on their operations. This test requires a savings institution to have at least 65% of its portfolio assets, as defined by regulation, in
qualified thrift investments. As an alternative, the savings institution may maintain 60% of its assets in those assets specified in
Section 7701(a){19} of the Internal Revenue Code. Under either test, such assets primarily consist of residential housing related
loans and investments. Sovereign Bank is currently in compliance with the qualified thrift lender regulations.

Any savings institution that fails to meet the qualified thrift lender test must convert to a national bank charter, unless it requalifies
as a qualified thrift [ender and thereafter remains a qualified thrift lender. If an institution does not requalify and converts to a
national bank charter, it must remain SAIF insured until the FDIC permits it to transfer to the BIF. If such an institution has not yet
requalified or converted to a naticnal bank, its new investments and activities are limited to those permissible for both a savings
institution and a national bank, and it is limited to national bank branching rights in its home state. In addition, the institution is
immediately ineligible to receive any new FHLB borrowings and is subject to national bank limits for payment of dividends. If
such an institution has not requalified or converted to a national bank within three years after the failure, it must divest itself of all
investments and cease all activities not permissible for a national bank. In addition, it must repay promptly any outstanding FHLB
borrowings, which may result in prepayment penalties. If any institution that fails the qualified thrift lender test is controlled by a
holding company, then within one year after the failure, the holding company must register as a bank holding company and become
subject to all restrictions on bank holding companies.

Other Loan Limitations. Federal law limits the amount of non-residential mortgage loans a savings institution, such as
Sovereign Bank, may make. Separate from the qualified thrift lender test, the law limits a savings institution to a maximum of 10%
of its assets in large commercial loans, with another 10% of assets permissible in "small business loans.” Commercial loans secured
by real estate, however, are in addition to the above amounts, and can be made in an amount up to four times an institution’s
capital. An institution can also have commercial leases in addition to the above, up to 10% of its assets. Commercial paper,
corporate bonds, and consumer loans taken together cannot exceed 35% of an institution’s assets. For this purpose, however,
residential mortgage loans and credit card loans are not considered consumer loans, and are both unlimited in amount. The
foregoing limitations are established by statute, and cannot be waived by the OTS.

Federa! Reserve Regulation. Under Federal Reserve Board regulations, Sovereign Bank is required to maintain a reserve against
its transaction accounts (primarily interest-bearing and non interest-bearing checking accounts). Because reserves must generally be
maintained in cash or in non interest-bearing accounts, the effect of the reserve requirements is to increase an institution's cost of
funds. These regulations generally require that Sovereign Bank maintain reserves against net transaction accounts in the amount of
3% on amounts of $41.3 million or less, plus 10% on amounts in excess of $41.3 million. Institutions may designate and exempt $5.7
million of certain reservable liabilities from these reserve requirements. These amounts and percentages are subject to adjustment
by the Federal Reserve Board. A savings bank, like other depository institutions maintaining reservable accounts, may borrow from
the Federal Reserve Bank discount window, but the Federal Reserve Board's regulations require the savings bank to exhaust other
reasonable alternative sources before borrowing from the Federal Reserve Bank.

Numerous other regulations promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board affect the business operations of Sovereign Bank. These
include regulations relating to equal credit opportunity, electronic fund transfers, collection of checks, truth in lending, truth in
savings, availability of funds, home mortgage disclosure, and margin credit.




Federal Home Loan Banl System. The FHLB System was created in 1932 and consists of twelve regional FHLBs. The FHLBs are
federally chartered but privately owned institutions created by Congress. The Federal Housing Finance board (“Finance Board")
is an agency of the federal government and is generally responsible for regulating the FHLB System. Each FHLB is owned by its
member institutions. The primary purpose of the FHLBs is to provide funding to their members for making housing loans as well
as for affordable housing and community development lending. FHLBs are generally able to make advances to their member
institutions at interest rates that are lower than could otherwise be obtained by such institutions.

Under current rules, a FKLB member is generally required to purchase FHLB stock in an amount equal to at least 5% of the aggregate
outstanding advances made by the FHLB to the member. Generally, an institution is eligible to be a member of the FHLB for the
district where the member’s principal place of business is located. Sovereign Bank is a member of the Pittsburgh FHLB.

Community Reinvestment Act. The Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA") requires financial institutions regulated by the federal
financial supervisory agencies to ascertain and help meet the credit needs of their delineated communities, including low- to moderate-
income neighbarhoods within those communities, while maintaining safe and sound banking practices. A bank’s performance under
the CRA is important in determining whether the bank may obtain approval for, or utilize streamlined procedures in, certain applications
for acquisitions or to engage in new activities. Sovereign Bank's lending activities are in compliance with applicable CRA requirements.

Recent Legislation. Landmark legislation in the financial services area was signed into law by the President on November 12,
1999. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act dramatically changes certain banking laws that have been in effect since the early part of the 20th
century. The most significant changes are that the separation between banking and the securities businesses mandated by the
Glass-Steagall Act has now been removed, and the provisions of any state law that prohibits affiliation between banking and
insurance entities have been preempted. Accordingly, the new legislation now permits firms engaged in underwriting and dealing
in securities, and insurance companies, to own banking entities, and permits bank holding companies {and in some cases, banks)
to own securities firms and insurance companies. As Sovereign is a savings and loan holding company, many of the provisions of
the new legislation do not apply to it. The new law does change the status of Sovereign, however, in that Sovereign can no longer
become part of a non-financial group of companies, as it could under prior law. Sovereign is still permitted to acquire non-financial
companies, however.

The new legislation also makes a number of additions and revisions to numerous federal laws that affect the business of banking.
For example, there is now a federal law on privacy with respect to customer information held by banks. The federal banking
regulators have adopted rules regarding privacy for customer information. Banks must establish a disclosure policy for non-public
customer information, disclose the policy to their customers, and give their customers the opportunity to object to non-public
information being disclosed to a third party. The new law also requires any CRA agreement entered into between a bank and a
community group to be disclosed, with both the bank and the group receiving any grants from the bank detailing the amount of
funding provided and what it was used for. The new law also requires a bank’s policy on fees for transactions at ATM machines
by non-customers to be conspicuously posted on the ATM. A number of other provisions affecting other general regulatory
requirements for banking institutions were also adopted.

The OTS and other banking regulators adopted amendments to their capital rules concerning the treatment of residual interests

in asset securitizations and other transfers of financial assets. Generally, the rule varies the capital requirements for securitization
transactions based on their credit ratings, requires that risk-based capital be held in an amount equal to the amount of residual
interests retained on an institution’s balance sheet, and limits the amount of residual interests that may be included in Tier 1 capital.

In January 2001, the four federal banking agencies jointly issued expanded examination and supervision guidance relating to
subprime lending activities. in the guidance, "subprime" lending generally refers to programs that target borrowers with weakened
credit histories or lower repayment capacity. The guidance principally applies to institutions with subprime lending programs with
an aggregate credit exposure equal to or greater than 25 percent of an institution’s Tier 1 capital. Such institutions would be subject
to more stringent risk management standards and, in many cases, additional capital requirements. As a starting point, the guidance
generally expects that such an institution would hold capital against subprime portfolios in an amount that is one and one-half to
three times greater than the amount appropriate for similar types of non-subprime assets. The guidance is primarily directed at
insured depository institutions that target subprime borrowers. Sovereign’s aggregate credit exposure to subprime lending is
substantially less than the 25 percent of the Tier | capital threshold, and as such, Sovereign is not currently subject to the more
rigorous risk management and capital requirements.




In December 2001, the Federal Reserve Board amended the regulations that implement the Home Ownership and Equity Protection
Act ("HOEPA"). The amendments to Regulation Z (Truth in Lending) broaden the scope of loans subject to the provisions of HOEPA
by adjusting the price triggers that determine coverage under the act. The regulations lower the interest rate-hased trigger and
revise the fee-based trigger to include optional insurance premiums and similar credit protection products paid at closing. The loans
that Sovereign Bank currently originates are generally below the rate and fee levels that trigger HOEPA. Sovereign Bank has
adopted procedures to screen purchased loan portfolios against HOEPA covered loans.

In October, 2001 the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct
Terrorism Act, or the USA Patriot Act, became effective. Title Il of that Act represents a major expansion of the U.S. anti-money
laundering laws granting broad new anti-money laundering powers to the Secretary of the Treasury and imposing a variety of new
compliance obligations on banks and broker dealers. The Act also requires a bank’s regulator to specifically consider the bank’s past
record of compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (anti-money laundering requirements) when acting on any applications filed by such bank.

[tem 2. Properties

Sovereign Bank utilizes 570 buildings that occupy a total of 4.7 million square feet, including 123 owned properties with 900,000
square feet and 447 leased properties with 3.8 million square feet. Five major buildings contain 1.3 million square feet, which serve
as the headquarters or house significant operational and administrative functions:

Columbia Park Operations Center - Dorchester, Massachusetts

East Providence Call Center - East Providence, Rhode Island

525 Lancaster Avenue Operations Center - Reading, Pennsylvania

1130 Berkshire Boulevard Bank Headquarters and Administrative Offices - Wyomissing, Pennsylvania

1125 Berkshire Boulevard Operations Center - Wyomissing, Pennsylvania

ltem 3. Legal Proceedings.

Sovereign is not involved in any pending legal proceedings other than non-material legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary
course of business.

ltem 4. Submission of Watters to a Vote of Security Holders.
None.
ltem 4A. Executive Officers of the Registrant.

Certain information, including principal occupation during the past five years, relating to the principal executive officers of
Sovereign, as of February 28, 2002, is set forth below:

Richard E. Mohn—Age 70. Mr. Mohn was elected the Chairman of the Board of Sovereign in May 1995. Mr. Mohn became
Chairman of the Board of Sovereign Bank in November 1989. He is the retired Chairman of Cloister Spring Water Company,
Lancaster, Pennsylvania, a bottler and distributor of spring water.

Jay S. Sidhu—Age 50. Mr. Sidhu has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign since November 1989. Prior
thereto, Mr. Sidhu served as Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of Sovereign. Mr. Sidhu is also President and Chief Executive
Officer of Sovereign Bank. Prior to becoming President and Chief Executive Officer of Sovereign Bank on March 28, 1989, Mr.
Sidhu served as Vice Chairman and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank.

Lawrence M. Thompson, Jr.—Age 49. Mr. Thompson serves as Chief Administrative Officer and Secretary of Sovereign. Also,
Mr. Thompson was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank’s Consumer Banking Division in
November 2000. Mr. Thompson was hired as Sovereign Bank’s General Counsel and Secretary in 1984. He was promoted to
Vice President in 1985. in April 1986, he became Sovereign Bank’s Senior Vice President for legal affairs and administration.
In January 1990, he became Group Executive Officer—Lending and in June 1995, he became Chief Administrative Officer of
Sovereign and Sovereign Bank. Mr. Thompson became Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank in November 1996.
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Dennis S. Marlo—Age 59. Mr. Marlo was appointed Chief Risk Management Officer of Sovereign in April 2001. Mr. Marlo joined
Sovereign in February 1998 as the President of the Pennsylvania Division of Sovereign Bank. He was appointed Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer of Sovereign in May 1998 and served in that capacity through April 2001. Prior thereto, Mr. Marlo served
as President and Chief Executive Officer of ML Bancorp, a predecessor company of Sovereign.

John P. Hamill—Age 61. Mr. Hamill was named Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of SBNE in January 2000. Prior thereto,
Mr. Hamill served as President of Fleet National Bank—Massachusetts for eight years and President of Shawmut Corporation.

Joseph P. Campanelli—Age 45. Mr. Campanelli was named President and Chief Operating Officer of Sovereign Bank’s
Commercial and Business Banking Division in November 2000 and was appointed President and Chief Operating Officer of
SBNE in January 2000. Mr. Campanelli joined Sovereign as Executive Vice President in September 1997 through Sovereign’s
acquisition of the Fleet Automotive Finance Division and assumed the role of Managing Director of Sovereign’s Automotive
Finance Division and the Asset Based Lending Group.

James D. Hogan - Age 57. Mr. Hogan joined Sovereign as Chief Financial Officer in April 2001. Prior to that Mr. Hogan served
as Executive Vice President and Controller at Firstar Corporation, formerly Star Bancorp, from May 1993 until April 2001, and as
Controller of Star Bank from 1987 until 1993.

PART Ul
ltem 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

Sovereign’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbol "SOV". Sovereign’s common
stock was listed and commenced trading on the NYSE on July 10, 2001. Previously, Sovereign’s common stock was traded in the
over-the-counter market and was quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol "SVRN". At February 28, 2002, the total
number of holders of Sovereign's common stock was 15,055.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated high and low sale prices reported on the NYSE and the high and low bid
prices reported on the Nasdaq National Market, as applicable, for Sovereign’s common stock, adjusted to reflect all stock dividends
and splits.

m Low

2000:

First Quarter $ 7.91 $ 6.69

Second Quarter 8.00 6.44

Third Quarter 9.88 7.03

Fourth Quarter 9.47 6.78
2001:

First Quarter $ 9.16 $ 7.66

Second Quarter 13.00 7.94

Third Quarter 13.22 8.86

Fourth Quarter 12.43 873

During each quarter of 2001 and 2000 Sovereign paid a cash dividend of $.025.

For certain limitations on the ability of Sovereign Bank to pay dividends to Sovereign, see Part |, Item {. "Business Supervision and
Regulation - Regulatory Capital Requirements" and Note 14 at ltem 8. "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" hereof.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA!
AT OR FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Balance Sheet Data
Total @SSBLS .+ o e $ 35,474,838 $ 33,457,797 S 26,607,112 $ 21913873 $ 17,655,455
L0aNS e 20,399,584 21,912,245 14,288,465 11,582,770 11,634,800
Allowance for loan l0sses ... ...t (264,667) {256,356) (132,986) (133,802) {116,823}
[NVestment SECUMLIBS . ..o v 10,465,116 7,293,852 10,392,263 8,502,082 5,372,713
Deposits and other customer accounts . ................. ... 23,297,574 24,498,817 12,012,675 12,460,022 9,536,903
Borrowings and longtermdebt ........ ... ... ... 8,939,770 6,240,308 12,370,109 7,764,933 6,842,034
Stockholders’ equity ... ... i e 2,202,481 1,948,884 1,821,495 1,204,068 1,047,795
Summary Statement of Operations
Total INterest iNCOME .o v i e e 2,222,475 2,269,735 1,607,329 1,355,371 1,178,777
Total INErest 8XPENSE . ..\ttt v it 1,168,193 1,414,924 992,673 861,759 746,695
Net INtErESt INCOMIE oottt e e e e s 1,054,282 854,811 614,656 493,612 432,082
Provision forloanlosses ........ .o i i i 97,100 56,500 30,000 27,961 41,125
Net interest income after provision

forloan losses ... 957,182 798,311 584,656 465,651 390,957
OtherinComMe ... i e e e e 426,066 108,561 130,342 105,181 48,688
General and administrative expenses ........ ..o, 789,118 731,491 382,929 327,293 244179
Other eXPENSES .. i e 444,185 281,613 53,455 32,333 25,604
Income/(loss) before income taxes

and extracrdinary item .. ... 149,945 {1086,232) 268,614 211,206 169,862
InCome tax Provision ........ .. 26,575 {65,215) 89,315 74,751 67,324
Income/lloss) before extraordinary item@ ... ... ... ... ... 123,370 (41,017) 179,299 136,455 102,538
Extraordinary item (net of tax of $3,5626 - 2001,

and of $5,225-2000) ... .. . e (6,549) 10,775 — — —
Netincome/loss)2 . o e $ 116,821 $ (30,242) 3 179,299 $ 136,455 $ 102,538
Share Data®
Common shares outstanding at end of period

(iNthousands) ........ouiuii e 247,470 226,501 225,470 159,727 141,218
Preferred shares outstanding at end of period

{inthousands) . ... - — — — 1,996
Basic earnings/{loss) persharet . ........ ... ... ... . $ 48 $ (.13) $ 1.02 $ .88 $ .70
Diluted earnings/(loss) pershare@ ... ... ... ... .. .......... 3 45 ) (.13) $ 1.01 $ .85 $ .66
Book value per share atend of period® . ..................... $ 8.90 S 8.60 $ 8.08 $ 754 $ 7.42
Common share price atend of period .. ...................... $ 12.24 $ 8.13 $ 7.45 $ 14.25 $ 17.31
Dividends declared per common share® .. ................... $ 10 $ .10 $ 10 $ .08 $ 15
Selected Financial Ratios
Dividend payoutratio ......... . 22.22% —(6) 9.9% 9.4% 12.1%
Return on average assetS ... ......vieieinininineneninnnns 34% —(6) 75% 70% .63%
Return on average equity ... 551% —(6) 13.20% 12.42% 10.92%
Average equity t0 average assets ..........viiiiiiii i 6.15% 5.83% 5.67% 5.60% 5.75%

{1} All financial data has been restated to reflect all acquisitions which have been accounted for under the pooling-of-interests methad of accounting.

(2 The results for the years ended 2001, 2000, 1999 and 1998 include merger-refated, integration, and other special charges of $1684 millian, $270 million, $23 million, and $34 million, after tax, respectively.
{3} All per share data have been adjusted to reflect all stock dividends and stock splits.

(4) Book value per share is calculated using equity divided by common shares outstanding at end of period.

(5) The higher dividend rate in prior periods is the result of acquisitions which were accounted for as a pooling-of-interests.

(6 These ratios are not meaningful due to the net loss recognized for the year ended December 31, 2000.
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] MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

tem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Overview. Sovereign reported cash earnings of $378 million, or $1.47 per share, and operating earnings of $287 million, or $1.12 per
share, compared to $309 million and $1.48 per share and $240 million, or $1.15 per share for 2001 and 2000, respectively. See the
Reconciliation of Net Income to Operating Earnings below for maore information related to operating and cash earnings. Net income
for 2001 was $117 million or $.45 per share versus net loss for 2000 of $30.2 million or $.13 per share.

A reconciliation of net income to operating earnings is presented below:

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCCME TO OPERATING EARNINGS

{Doallars in thousands, except per share data - all emounts are fiertax)

_ YEAR ENDED DECEVBER 31,

TOTAL PER SHARE
2001 2000 2001 2000
Net incomef{loss) asreported ... ... .. o i $ 116,821 $ (30242) % 0.45 $ (0.13)
Loss on the early extinguishment of debtt™ ... ... . . . 8,549 — 0.03 —
Net negative carry on escrowed bond proceeds!?) . ... ... .. ... - 18,589 — 0.08
Merger-related and integration costs related to recent acquisitions® .. ............ ... ... .. ... - 97,063 — 0.43
Expense on convertible trust preferred securities ("PIERS"H2 ... ... ... . o i - 6,502 — 0.03
Loss on securities due to restructuring of the balance sheet! ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... — 66,956 — 0.29
RestrUCIUNINg S L o 5,525 12,025 0.02 0.05
Non-solicitation expense(® ’ 158,106 78,039 0.62 0.35
Assumed income from reinvestment of net proceeds of
common equity and PIERSI . . e — (9,051) — (0.04)
Impact of additional shares outstanding for 2000 common and
PIERS securities offarings! T ... e — — — 0.09
. Operating earnings!) L . .o e $ 287,001 $ 239,881 $ 1.12 $ 1.15
J Cash BarniNgs! T L . e $ 378,315 $ 308,564 $ 1.47 $ 1.48

4] Because the 2001 extinguishment of debt was not part of a structured deleveraging transaction where an offsetting gain was recorded within our statement of operatians, we have included the extinguishment loss
as a "special charge" in our reconciliation of net income to operating earnings.

s (2) in connection with the New England Acquisition, Sovereign raised $1.8 billion of debt and equity capital in November and December of 1999, of which $1.3 billion of debt proceeds were in escrow with limited

. ability to reinvest the proceeds until the acquisition was completed on July 21, 2000. Consequently, the excess of negative carry and trust preferred expense over interest expense reduction realized on the raised
capital resulted in a net reduction in pretax income of $24.7 miltion ($16.0 million after-tax) comprised of the following compaonents for the year ended December 31, 2000: a) a reduction of net interest income of
$28.6 mitlion ($18.6 million after-tax); b) expense of $10.0 million ($6.5 million after-tax} associated with PIERS issued in Navember 1999; c} an assumed $13.9 million ($8.1 million after-tax) of interest expense
reduction from the assumed paydown of other borrowings with the proceeds of the Trust Preferred Securities and comman stack offerings.

(3) Merger-related and integration charges related to recent acquisitions include direct costs associated with the New England Acquisition, including investment banking and debt commitment fees, indirect costs
incurred to integrate recent acquisitions into Sovereign's back-office systems, costs of training, relocation and associated travel, and management’s estimate of the carrying costs of certain facilities and personnet
acquired in the first and second closings on March 24 and June 16, 2000 that were not fully operational until July 21, 2000, the date of the final closing. Also included in merger-related and integration costs are
expenses paid related to a structured real-estate transaction involving certain real estate related to SBNE.

(4) In June and September 2000, Sovereign sold $2.1 billion of investment securities as part of a balance sheet deleveraging strategy and incurred a $103 million loss ($67.0 million after-tax). Sovereign used the
proceeds from such sales primarily to repay short-term borrowings.

|
j (5) As more fully discussed in “Other Operating Expenses", Sovereign recorded restructuring charges of $27.0 million (317.5 million after-tax), $8.5 million of which was recorded in 2001 related to the closure of 14
! in-store offices and a redirection of e-commerce efforts, and $18.5 million of which was recorded in 2000 primarily related to severance and cutplacement related expenses.

{6} As more fully discussed in Note 2 to the Financial Statements, Sovereign was required to pay $363 million to FleetBostan, subject to FleetBostan's compliance with a non-solicitation agreement. Sovereign
expensed such payments ratably from the completion of the acquisition until final payment in September 2001.

! 7) Operating earnings per share and cash earnings per share are calculated using an adjusted weighted average number of shares outstanding, which include for the year ended December 31, 2000, a pro rata portion
of the shares issued in November 1998 in proportion to deposits acquired on March 24, 2000, June 16, 2000, and July 21, 2000 over total estimated SBNE deposits acquired in each phase of the New England Acquisition,
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As shown in the reconciliation above, 2001 operating earnings differ from 2001 net income due primarily to non-solicitation payments
made through September 2001 to FleetBoston related to the New England Acquisition. The other reconciling items are discussed
within this Management's Discussion and Analysis. The total after-tax impact of the items excluded from 2001 net income to arrive
at operating earnings was $170.2 million. Operating earnings for 2000 include certain tax benefits related to the sale of minority
interests and exclude special charges related to restructuring and merger-related costs as more fully described in the footnotes
below. The net impact of the tax benefits and special charges for the year ended December 31, 2000 were $270.1 million after-tax.
Cash earnings are operating earnings excluding amortization {after-tax) of intangible assets and ESOP-related expense.

Sovereign analyzes its performance on a net income basis determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
as well as on an operating and a cash-operating basis referred to in this analysis as "operating earnings" and "cash earnings".
Operating and cash earnings, and ratios derived from such amounts, and related discussions are presented as supplementary
information in this analysis to enhance the readers’ understanding of, and highlight trends in, its core financial results excluding
the non-recurring effects of discrete business acquisitions and other transactions. The Company has included these additional
disclosures of operations before special charges because this information is both relevant and useful in understanding performance
of the Company. Operating and cash earnings should not be viewed as a substitute for net income and earnings per share as
determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Formation of Sovereign Bank New England Division. On February 28, 2000, Sovereign entered into an amended purchase and
assumption agreement with FleetBoston Financial to acquire a business consisting of branch banking offices located in Connecticut,
Massachusetts, New Hampshire and Rhode Island, and related deposit liabilities, loans and other assets associated with the business
of those branches (the "New England Acquisition”). In total, the Bank purchased 281 community banking offices (exclusive of 4
locations which were resold to a third party). The New England Acquisition, which resulted in the creation of the Sovereign Bank
New England division of Sovereign Bank included the former Fleet Bank community banking franchise in eastern Massachusetts,
the entire former BankBoston community banking franchise in Rhode Island, and select community banking offices of Fleet Bank

in Southern New Hampshire and BankBoston in Connecticut. In addition, Sovereign acquired a substantial portion of the middle
market and small business-lending group of Fleet Bank in Massachusetts and New Hampshire, and of BankBoston in Rhode sland
and Connecticut. The New England Acquisition included the purchase of fully functioning business units, with the necessary
management, relationship officers, support staff and other infrastructure for the acquired loans and deposits to be fully serviced.

Sovereign completed the New England Acquisition in three phases during 2000. Sovereign's results include the operations of these
acquired branches, assets and liabilities from their respective acquisition dates, and thereafter. Total liabilities assumed through the
acquisition were $12.3 billion. Additionally, tangible assets purchased by Sovereign included loan balances of $9.1 billion, which
included $3.1 billion of commercial loans and leases, $1.7 billion of consumer loans and $4.3 billion of residential mortgages
{inclusive of $1.1 billion of residential mortgage loans which were not relationship assets that were subsequently sold as part of
the Bank’s asset-liability management strategy to reduce interest-rate risk), $85 million of currency, $68 million of premises and
equipment, $180 million of precious metals inventory and $213 million of prepaid and other miscellaneous assets. Cash received,
net of the premium paid, was $1.9 billion.

Total consideration for the New England Acquisition was 12% of acquired deposits less agreed upon reductions. The premium
included $848 million, which was paid as of the final closing on July 21, 2000, and $363 million, paid in periodic instaliments from
January 2001 through September 2001 upon FleetBoston’s performance of non-solicitation obligations specified under the purchase
agreement and satisfaction of certain other conditions. These payments related to the non-solicitation agreement were recorded as
expense ratably from the completion of the New England Acquisition on July 21, 2000 through the completion of the payments. The
New England Acquisition resulted in total goodwill of $826 million after taking into consideration fair value adjustments on acquired
assets of $163 million, establishment of an initial allowance for loan losses of $135 million, direct costs associated with the acquisition
of $32 million, and the $352 million of purchase price allocated to core deposit intangible.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 AND 2000

Net Interest Income. Net interest income for 2001 was $1.1 billion compared to $855 million for 2000, or an increase of 23%.

The increase in net interest income in 2001 was due to the full-year effect of the interest-earning assets from the New England
Acquisition, internal asset growth, and by the significant decline in interest rates throughout 2001. The New England Acquisition
added $8.0 billion to average loans and $6.9 billion to average deposits (replacing higher cost FHLB borrowings) in 2000. Net interest
margin (net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets) was 3.57% for 2001 compared to 3.06% for 2000.

Interest on interest-earning deposits was $2.5 million for 2001 compared to $22.2 million for 2000. The average halance of interest-
earning deposits was $65.0 million with an average yield of 3.88% for 2001 compared to an average balance of $138 million with
an average vield of 16.08% for 2000. The high yields of 2000 were the result of an outsourced accounts payable process whereby
a third-party vendor performed check processing and reconcilement functions for Sovereign’s disbursement accounts and paid
Sovereign interest on disbursed funds during the two-to-three day float period, effectively producing interest income with no
corresponding asset balance. Sovereign terminated this agreement in 2001.

[nterest on investment securities available for sale was $538 million for 2001 compared to $487 million for 2000. The increase in
interest income was due to the increase in average investment securities available for sale from $6.8 billion in 2000 to $8.0 billion
in 2001, offset by lower interest income on investment securities available for sale due to declining interest rates.

interest on investment securities held to maturity was $68.6 million for 2001 compared to $132 million for 2000. The average balance
of investment securities held to maturity was $1.0 billion with an average yield of 6.76% for 2001 compared to an average balance
of $2.0 billion with an average yield of 6.80% for 2000. In 2000, in order to consummate the New England Acquisition, the Company
was required to hold in escrow until the final closing $1.3 billion in liquid short-term, low yielding securities, which were classified
as held to maturity. The release of those escrowed funds decreased the average balance for the remainder of 2000 and all of 2001.

Interest and fees on loans were $1.6 billion for both 2001 and 2000. The average balance of net loans was $20.9 billion with an
average yield of 7.75% for 2001 compared to an average balance of $19.4 billion with an average yield of 8.40% for 2000. Although
the New England Acquisition increased average loans by $8 billion in 2000, this growth in average loans was offset by the conversion
of $1.2 billion mortgage loans into mortgage-backed securities, strategic loan sales of $1.3 billion, and run-off of certain portfolios
due to management'’s desire to limit credit or interest rate exposure to certain loan types in the current economic environment.

The decline in average yields vear to year is due to the decrease of market rates during the year of 475 basis points. Over 26% of
our loan portfolio reprices monthly or more frequently.

Interest on total deposits was $706 million for 2001 compared to $735 million for 2000. The average balance of total deposits was
$23.5 billion with an average cost of 3.00% for 2001 compared to an average balance of $19.2 billion with an average cost of 3.83%
for 2000. The increase in the average balance was due primarily to the full year effect of the New England Acquisition, which added
over $6.9 billion to average deposits during 2000. The decrease in average cost in 2001 mainly reflects the decrease in deposit rates
due to market conditions.

Interest on borrowings and long-term debt was $462 million for 2001 compared to $680 million for 2000. The average balance of
total borrowings was $8.0 billion with an average cost of 5.79% for 2001 compared to an average balance of $10.3 billion with an
average cost of 6.58% for 2000.

Average non-interest earning assets were $4.6 billion for 2001, as compared to $3.6 hillion for 2000, an increase of $1.0 billion.

The increase was due primarily to the full year impact in 2001 of additions of non-earning assets during 2000 including $1.2 billion
in goodwill and other intangibles from the New England Acquisition, an additional investment in bank owned life insurance ("BOLI")
of $200 million, and the addition of the precious metals business and equipment of $171 million, also related to the New England
Acquisition.




Table 1 presents a summary on a tax equivalent basis of Sovereign’s average balances, the yields earned on average assets and the
cost of average liabilities and stockholders’ equity for the years indicated (in thousands):

TABLE 1: NET INTEREST MARGIN

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999
AVERAGE YIELD/ AVERAGE YIELD/ AVERAGE YIELD/
BALANCE INTEREST RATE BALANCE INTEREST RATE BALANCE INTEREST RATE
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-earning deposits ... .. 3 65,002 $ 2,522 3.88% $ 137,826 $ 22,158 16.08% 3 15,170 3 4721 31.12%
Investment securities!!!
gvailable forsale ...... ... 7,974,688 548,430 6.88 6,840,799 496,922 7.26 8,079,731 553,167 6.85
held to maturity .......... 1,016,848 68,705 6.76 1,950,093 132,537 6.80 1,440,854 99,949 8.94
Netloans™M@ ... ... 20,865,637 1,618,022 1.5 19,411,854 1,631,240 _ 840 12,379,295 961,635 171
Total interest-earning
assets ..., 29,922,175 2,237,679 7.48 28,340,572 2,282,857 8.06 21,915,090 1,619,472 7.39
Non-interest-earning
assets ..., 4,552,095 — - 3,607,109 — — 2,027,003 — —
Total assets .........c...ves $ 34,474,270 $ 2,237,679 _6.49% $31,947,681 $ 2,282,857 _1.15% $23,942,093 $ 1,619,472 _B6.76%
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand deposit and
NOW accounts ........ $ 7,508,165 $ 71,156 0.95% $ 5,468,164 $ 81842 1.50% $ 2,835,152 $ 34,622 1.22%
Savings accounts . ........ 2,952,215 57,905 1.96 2,741,867 67,880 2.48 2,246,127 58,333 2.60
Money market accounts .. .. 4,864,877 144,156 2.96 3,059,568 132,131 432 1,288,581 50,246 3.80
Certificates of deposit:
Jumbo . ... ol 507,242 28,044 5.53 862,201 54,073 6.27 891,333 47,818 5.36
Retail ................ 1,687,698 404,625 5.26 7,073,742 399,161 _b64 4,945,452 249,807 _5.05
Total deposits . ........... 23,520,197 705,886 3.00 19,205,542 735,087 3.83 12,206,645 440,826 3.61
Total borrowings and long-term
debt....... i 7,988,839 452,307 579 10,338,648 679,837 6.58 10,101,973 551,847 _5.46
Total interest-bearing
liabilities ................ 31,509,036 1,168,193 3 29,544,130 1,414,924 4.79 22,308,618 992,673 4.45
Non-interest-bearing
lighilities ................ 843,660 - - 541,035 — i 274,858 — —
Total liabilities ........... 32,352,696 1,168,193 3.61 30,085,225 1,414,924 4.70 22,583,476 992,673 4.40
Stockholders’ equity ......... 2,121,574 - — 1,862,456 — — 1,368,617 — —
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity ....... $ 34,474,270 $ 1,168,193 339 $31,947,681 $ 1,414,924 A3 $23,942,093 $ 992,673 415
Net interest spread®3! .. ... .. 3.10% _272% 2.61%
Taxable equivalent interest
income/net interest
margin ... 1,069,486 _3.57% 867,933 _3.06% 626,799 _2.86%
Tax equivalent
basis adjustment ......... {15,204) (13,122) {12,143}
Net interest income ....... $§ 1,054,282 $ 854,811 $ 614,656
Ratio of interest-earning
assets to interest- bearing
liahilities ... ............. .95x .96 x 98 x
(1) Tax equivalent adjustments to interest on investment securities available for sale for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $10.2 million, $3.5 miltion and $9.5 million, respectively. Tax equivalent

adjustments to interest loans for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, were $5.0 million, $3.6 million and 2.5 million, respectively. Tax equivalent interest income is based upon an effective tax rate of 35%.
2) Amortization of net fees of $29.1 million, $14.4 million and $10.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively, are included in interest income. Average loan balances include non-

accrual foans and loans held for sale.

{3) Represents the difference between the yield on total assets and the cost of total liabilities and stockholders’ equity.
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Table 2 presents, on a tax equivalent basis, the relative contribution of changes in volumes and changes in rates to changes in net
interest income for the periods indicated (in thousands):

TABLE 2: VOLUME/RATE ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 V8. 2000 2000 V8. 1999
INCREASE/(DECREASE) INCREASE/(DECREASE)
VOLUME RATE TOTAL VOLUME RATE TOTAL
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-earning deposits . ................ 3 (11,708) § (7,928) § (19,636) $ 38,171 $ (20,734) $ 17,437
Investment securities
available forsale ............. ... ... .. 82,367 (30,859) 51,508 (84,822) 28,577 (56,245)
Investment securities
held to maturity .. ......oooii i (63,427) (405) (63,832) 35,321 {2,733) 32,588
Netloans(1) ... ..o, 122,166 (135,384) (13,218) 546,296 123,309 669,605
Total interest-earning assets  ................ (85,178) 663,385
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits ... oo 165,142 {194,342) (29,200} 252,755 41,506 294,261
Borrowings ..o (154,516) (63,014) (217,530) 12,929 115,081 127,990
Total interest-bearing liabilities ............... (246,730) 422,251
Net change in net interest income ............ $ 118,772 $ 82,780 $ 201,552 $ 269,282 S (28,148} 3 241,134

st} Includes non-accrual toans and loans held for sale.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses is based upon credit loss experience and an estimation of losses inherent
in the current loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for 2001 was $97.1 million compared to $56.5 million for 2000. The
higher provisioning was required because of the higher balance of average loans, increased levels of non-performing and potential
problem loans, and current economic conditions. The overall allowance as a percentage of loans outstanding increased from
1.17% in 2000 to 1.30% in 2001. As Sovereign continues to place emphasis on commercial and consumer lending, management
will regularly evaluate the risk inherent in its loan portfolio and increase its loan loss provision as is necessary.

Sovereign’s net charge-offs for 2001 were $88.8 million and consisted of charge-offs of $121 million and recoveries of $32.2 million.
This compares to 2000 net charge-offs of $67.8 million consisting of charge-offs of $92.9 million and recoveries of $25.1 million.
Sovereign’s increased leve! of commercial charge-offs in 2001 was related primarily to deterioration in a segment of the portfolio
concentrated in cash flow-based enterprise value lending, primarily in syndicated multi-bank credits that were originated by other
banks and participated in by Sovereign. The increase in consumer charge-offs was due to a 17% increase in consumer loans during
2001 and a general deterioration in the economic environment resulting in higher personal bankruptcies and larger incidences of
consumer loan losses.

The ratio of net loan charge-offs to average loans, including loans held for sale, was .42% for 2001, compared to .35% for 2000.
Commercial loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average commercial loans were .54% for 2001, compared to .50% for 2000.
Consumer loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average consumer loans were .59% for 2001, compared to .49% for 2000.
Residential real estate mortgage loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average residential mortgage loans, including loans
held for sale, were .08% for 2001 and .09% for 2000.
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Table 3 presents the activity in the allowance for loan losses for the years indicated (in thousands):

TABLE 3: RECONCILIATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Allowance, beginningofyear ...........c.coiiiiiii. $ 256,356 § 132,986 $ 133,802 $ 116,823 $ 73,847
Charge-offs:
Residential(1) ......... . . i 7,506 8,293 14,038 6,223 8,869
Commercial ... e 46,214 41,071 4,659 3,220 3,687
CONSUMBE oo e e e e 67,220 43,528 36,326 36,887 11,628
Total charge-offs . ....... .. i 120,940 92,892 55,023 46,330 24,184
Recoveries:
Residential ... ... i 2,500 1,433 1,629 1,134 1,040
Commercial ... e e e 3,177 8,729 1,429 839 2,264
CONSUMIBT oottt e e ittt i i e e 26,474 14,894 16,350 10,715 2,079
Total reCOVEIBS .. vttt e e 32,151 25,056 19,408 12,688 5,383
Charge-offs, net of recoveries .............. .. ...t 88,789 67,836 35,615 33,642 18,801
Provision for loan losses ... .. ..o 97,100 56,500 30,000 27,961 41,125
Acquired allowance and other additions{(2) . ................ ... —_ 134,706 4,799 22,660 20,652
Allowance, end of year ........ ... . $ 264,667 $ 256,356 $ 1329886 % 133802 $ 116,823
Charge-offs, net of recoveries, to average
total l0aNS .. 42% .35% .28% .30% 18%

{1 The 1999 residential charge-offs include $7.0 million of charge-offs incurred as part of accelerated dispasitions of non-performing residential loans sold during the second and fourth quarters of 1999.

(2 For 2000, amount represents initial allowance established in connection with New England Acquisition. For 1999, amount represents Sovereign's June 1999 acquisition of Peoples Bancorp, Inc. For 1998, amount
includes $20.5 million of loan loss allowance established in connection with the CoreStates branch acquisition, For 1997, amount includes $22.0 million of loan loss alfowance established as part of the Fieet Auto
acquisition, partially off-set by net charge-offs of $2.7 million related to First State for the three-month period ended December 31, 1996 resulting from the differing fiscal year end of First State.

Sovereign’s policy for charging off loans varies with respect to the category of loans and specific circumstances surrounding each
loan under consideration. Consumer loans and residential real estate mortgage loans are generally charged off when deemed to be
uncollectible or 180 days past due, whichever comes first. Charge-offs of commercial loans are made on the basis of management’s
ongoing evaluation of non-performing loans.

Other Income. Total other income was $426 million for 2001 compared to $109 million for 2000. Several factors contributed to the
increase in other income as discussed below.

Consumer fees were $158 million for 2001 compared to $97.7 million in 2000. This increase was primarily due to a favorable
shift from time to core deposit products along with the full year's impact of the New England Acquisition. Additionally, in 2001
the Company aggressively promoted demand deposit products, which, in exchange for favorable minimum balance requirements
and convenience for the customer, generally produce higher fee revenues than time deposit products.

Commercial fees were $75.8 million for 2001 compared to $36.9 million in 2000. This increase was due to growth in both
commercial loans and core deposits during the year augmented by a full year’s impact of the New England Acquisition.

Mortgage banking revenues were $69.5 million for 2001 compared to $25.2 miliion for 2000. Included in mortgage banking revenues
are $38.7 million of gains related to sales of $4.1 billion of whole mortgage loans during 2001 and gains of $35.0 million related to
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sales of mortgage-backed securities {recently converted from mortgage loans) as compared to gains of $7.0 million and $7.9 million
for 2000 loans and mortgage servicing rights sales, respectively, and no gains on the sale of mortgage-backed securities. At
December 31, 2001, Sovereign serviced $5.1 biilion of residential loans for others as compared to $4.2 billion at December 31, 2000.

The Capital Markets Group generated revenue of $11.2 million in 2001 and $11.1 million in 2000. The Capital Markets Group was
created during 2000 in three phases. The first phase provided risk management services for corporate clients including foreign
exchange, investments and derivatives, and securitization expertise for Sovereign’s balance sheet assets. The second phase
added merger and acquisitions expertise to assist clients. The third phase, completed in November 2001, included the formation
of a broker dealer.

Income from bank-cwned life insurance ("BOLI") was $42.7 million for 2001 compared to $34.3 million for 2000. This increase was
primarily due to an additional investment in BOLI of $200 million which was made during 2000.

Miscellaneous income increased $38.2 million to $53.9 million in 2001 due primarily to a $28.1 million gain related to the sale of
branches located in southern New Jersey, Delaware and eastern Pennsylvania. The impact of the sale is not expected to significantly
impact future results.

Net gains on sales of investment securities and related derivatives were $15.5 million for 2001, compared to a net loss of $112
million for 2000. This improvement was due primarily to second and third quarter 2000 balance sheet deleveraging transactions in
which Sovereign sold $2.1 billion of available for sale mortgage-backed securities, resulting in losses of $103 million. Periodically,
Sovereign will sell certain investment securities and use the proceeds to pay off short-term advances. Upon repayment of the short-
term advances, related swaps hedging these instruments may be terminated. In these instances of balance sheet deleveraging, such
hedging gains or losses are netted against the offsetting security loss or gain. Net gains/{losses) on investments were $30.2 million
and ($121.1) million, for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively and net gains/(losses) on related derivative
contracts were {$14.7) million and $9.4 million for the vears ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Sales of available

for sale investment securities have little impact on stockholders’ equity as unrealized gains and losses on these securities are
recognized as market values change and are recorded as an increase or decrease in the other comprehensive income component

of stockholders’ equity in accordance with SFAS 115,

General and Administrative Expenses. Total operating general and administrative expenses were $789 million for 2001 compared
to $582 million in 2000, which exciude merger related and other special charges in 2000 as described below, or an increase of 36%.
This increase was due primarily to the full year impact in 2001 of the New England Acquisition which increased compensation

and benefits expense for the approximately 3,700 staff and management personnel which were added throughout 2000, increased
occupancy and equipment expenses for the additional 281 community banking offices acquired, technology expense increased due
to the expanded network and back office platforms built to support the New England Acquisition, and increased other administrative
expenses resulting from the acquisition. These expenses were reflected in 2000 results from each of the respective three closing
dates. See Note 2 - Business Combinations in the "Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements" for more details on the New
England Acquisition. Sovereign's efficiency ratio (ali operating general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net interest
income and recurring non-interest income} for 2001 was 53.9% compared to 54.3% for 2000. Included in 2000 total general and
administrative expenses were $149 million of merger-related, integration and other charges related to recent acquisitions. These
special charges include charges directly attributable to the acquired SBNE branches, indirect costs incurred to integrate recent
acquisitions into Sovereign’s back office systems, costs that management considered redundant due to separating the New England
Acquisition from a single closing into three separate closings, and expenses related to the structured real estate transaction that
involved properties utilized by SBNE.

Other Operating Expenses. Total other operating expenses were $444 million for 2001 compared to $282 million for 2000. Other
operating expenses included amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets of $134 million for 2001 compared to $98.9
million for 2000 and trust preferred securities expense of $59.1 million for 2001 compared to $44.3 million for 2000. The increase

in amortization expense is due to the New England Acquisition, which added $1.1 billion to Sovereign’s intangible assets. In
November 2000, the Company announced the results of a restructuring initiative. In addition to realigning the Office of the Chief
Executive Officer and the Company around customer segments, Sovereign analyzed front and back office operations and computer
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operating platforms and eliminated approximately 500 positions. In total, Sovereign recorded $27 million in restructuring costs, $8.5
million of which was recorded in the first quarter 2001 related to the closure of 14 "in-store" offices and a redirection of e-commerce
efforts, and the remainder of which was recorded in 2000, and was comprised of $14 million of severance and outplacement costs,
and a $4.5 million write-off of a redundant computer-operating platform.

As part of the New England Acquisition, Sovereign was required to pay $363 million over a period from January 1, 2001 through
September 2001, $120 million of which was expensed during 2000 and the remaining $243 million expensed in 2001 subject to
FieetBoston’s performance of non-solicitation obligations under the purchase agreement and satisfaction of certain other conditions.

Income Tax Provision. The income tax provision, including taxes related to an extraordinary item, was $23.0 million for 2001 compared
to a benefit of $60.0 million for 2000. The effective tax rate for 2001 was 16.4% compared to (66.5%) for 2000. In 2001, certain
components of Sovereign’s income are not subject to tax, including income of $29.1 million related to tax-exempt investments

and income of $42.7 million related to Bank-owned life insurance. Management expects that the absolute dollar amount of these
tax exempt items will not change significantly during 2002; however, the percent effect of these non-taxed items on the effective
rate will vary in the future depending on the level of pretax income. The effective tax rate for 2001 and 2000 is not meaningful

due to the high proportion of permanent tax differences, including certain one-time tax benefits included in operating earnings,

in relation to the recorded pretax income/(loss). For additional information with respect to Sovereign’'s income taxes, see Note 18

in the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" hereof.

Extraordinary items. In March 2001, Sovereign completed a $400 million term and revolving credit facility with Bank of Scotland of
b which $350 million was drawn to prepay an existing $350 million senior secured credit facility. In connection with this transaction,
Sovereign wrote-off $6.5 million net of tax {$10.1 million pre-tax) of deferred issuance costs remaining from the existing line of

credit. These costs were reflected net of tax as an extraordinary item in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

During the first quarter of 2000, Sovereign sold FHLB advances, which resulted in a pretax gain of $16.0 million ($10.8 million
after-tax) and is treated as an early extinguishment of debt under current generally accepted accounting principles.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Loan Portfolio. Sovereign’s loan portfolio at December 31, 2001 was $20.4 billion compared to $21.9 billion at December 31, 2000,
comprised of $8.2 billion of commercial loans, $7.1 billion of consumer loans and $5.0 billion of residential loans at December 31,
2001. This compares to $7.8 billion of commercial loans, $6.1 billion of consumer loans, and $8.0 billion of residential loans at
December 31, 2000.

During 2000, Sovereign securitized and removed from the balance sheet commercial automotive floor plan loans of $579 miilion
and consumer home equity loans of $369 million. See Note 22 Asset Securitizations in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for more details. Sovereign also converted $1.2 billion of residential mortgages to FHLMC mortgage-backed securities
which are included in Sovereign’s investment securities held to maturity portfolio at December 31, 2000.

Residential loans decreased to 25% of the total loan portfolio at December 31, 2001 as compared to 36% at December 31, 2000. This
decrease was due to the sale or conversion into mortgage-backed securities of $4.1 billion of residential mortgages during 2001.

Federal law iimits the amount of non-residential mortgage loans a savings institution, such as Sovereign Bank, may make. The law
limits a savings institution to a maximum of 10% of its assets in large commercial loans, with another 10% of assets permissible in
"small business loans." Commercial loans secured by real estate, however, are in addition to the above amounts, and can be made
in an amount up to four times an institution’s capital. An institution can also have commercial leases in addition to the above, up
to 10% of its assets. Commercial loans and small business loans, as defined, totaled $3.1 billion and $1.8 billion, respectively, as
compared to the 10% of assets limitation of $3.5 billion at December 31, 2001.

Table 4 presents the composition of Sovereign’s loan portfolio by type of loan and by fixed and variable rates at the dates indicated
{in thousands):

TABLE 4: COMPOSITION OF LOAN PORTFOLIO

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
BALANCE PERCENT BALANCE PERCENT BALANCE PERCENT BALANCE PERCENT BALANCE PERCENT
Commercial real estate icans .... $ 3,082,330 15.1% $ 2,793,616 12.7% § 1,516,953 106% $ 887,938 77% S 664,943 5.6%
Commercial and industrial loans .. 4,506,198 224 4,397,009 20.1 1,690,744 11.8 717,440 6.2 356,517 3.1
Other oo vv e 657,527 3.2 640,782 3.0 867,642 6.1 693,342 6.0 395,327 34 !
|
Total Commercial Loans ... ... 8,246,055 404 7,831,407 35.8 4,075,339 28.5 2,298,720 19.9 1,416,787 121
Home equity loans ............. 3,756,621 18.4 3,256,598 14.9 1,957,945 13.7 1,750,883 15.1 1,050,304 9.0
Autoloans ........... ... 2,882,417 14.1 2,309,025 10.5 1,936,980 13.6 1,510,676 13.0 1,553,318 134
Other covvv e 509,272 25 536,358 24 573,717 4.0 549,488 48 532,075 46
Total Consumer Loans. ....... 7,148,310 35.0 6,101,981 278 4,468,642 31.3 3,811,047 329 3,135,697 27.0
Residential real estate loans ... .. 5,005,219 246 7,978,857 36.4 5,744,484 40.2 5,473,003 47.2 7,082,316 60.9%
Totat Loans ................ $20,399,584 100.0% S 21,912,245 100.0% $14,288,465 100.0% $ 11,582,770 100.0% $ 11,634,800 100.0%
Total Loans with:
Fixedrates . ................ $12,875,742 63.1% $ 14,165,535 64.6% $ 8,769,876 61.4% $ 6,095,088 52.6% S 4,859,629 418%
Variablerates .............. 7,523,842 36.9 7,746,710 35.4 5,518,589 38.6 5,487,682 47.4 6,775,171 58.2
Total Loans ................ $20,399,584 100.0% §$ 21,912,245 100.0% 14,288,465 100.0% $ 11,582,770 100.0% $ 11,634,800 100.0%
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Table 5 presents the contractual maturity of Sovereign’s commercial loans at December 31, 2001 (in thousands):

TABLE 5: LOAN MATURITY SCHEDULE

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001, MATURING

IN ONE YEAR ONE TO AFTER
OR LESS FIVE YEARS FIVE YEARS TOTAL

Commercial real @state 10ans ... ... . i e e $ 484,265 § 1,072,062 $ 1,526,003 $ 3,082,330
Commercial and industrial [0ans ... . e 590,282 1,939,313 1,976,603 4,506,198
Other COMMEICIal ..ot e e e e e 96,073 261,870 299,584 657,627

TOtal oo e $ 1,170,620 § 3273245 $ 3,802,190 S 8,246,055
Loans with:

Yo I 1= - U PP $ 267,909 $ 1,580,613 $ 1,299,003 § 3,147,525

VAR TAEES . ot e e 902,711 1,692,632 2,503,187 5,098,530

oAl o e $ 1,170,620 $ 3273245 § 3,802,190 $ 8,246,055

Investment Securities. Sovereign’s investment portfolio is concentrated in mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage
obligations issued by federal agencies or private label issues. All of the CMO private label issues have ratings of "AAA" by Standard
and Poor’s and Fitch at December 31, 2001. The classes are backed by single-family residential loans which are primary residences
geographically dispersed throughout the United States. Sovereign purchases classes which are senior positions backed by subordinate
classes. The subordinate classes absorb the losses and must be completely eliminated before any losses flow through the senior
positions. Sovereign’s strategy is to purchase classes, which have an average life of four years or less. The effective duration of the
total investment portfolio at December 31, 2001 was 3.6 years. Sovereign also holds $325 million of corporate trust preferred securities
all with maturities in excess of 10 years.

In determining if and when a decline in market value below amortized cost is other-than-temporary, Sovereign evaluates the market

conditions, offering prices, trends of earnings, price multiples, and other key measures for investments in marketable equity securities
and debt instruments. When such a decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, impairment loss is recognized in the current
period operating results to the extent of the decline.

During 2001 and 2000, the Company converted $1.6 billion and $1.2 billion, respectively, of residential mortgage loans into mortgage-
backed securities, and retained 100% of the securities of the trusts to which the loans were sold. The boaok value of these loans
was reclassified from loans to investment securities upon securitization. Classification as available for sale or held to maturity was
determined as discussed below.

Investment Securities Available for Sale. Securities expected to be held for an indefinite period of time are classified as available for
sale and are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, net of
estimated income taxes. All of our securities have readily determinable market prices that are derived from third party pricing services.
Decisions to purchase or sell these securities are based on economic conditions including changes in interest rates, liquidity, and
asset/liability management strategies. For additional information with respect to the amortized cost and estimated fair value of
Sovereign's investment securities available for sale, see Note 4 in the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” hereof. The actual
maturities of mortgage-backed securities available for sale will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the
right to prepay obligations without prepayment penalties.

Investment Securities Held to Maturity. Securities that Sovereign has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held
| to maturity and reported at amortized cost. This portfolio is primarily comprised of U.S. Treasury and government agency securities;
y corporate debt securities; mortgage-backed securities issued by FHLMC, FNMA, the Government Naticnal Mortgage Association

& ('GNMA"), and private issuers; and collateralized mortgage obligations. On January 1, 2001, Sovereign reclassified $800 million

of held to maturity investments to available for sale investments as allowed upon adoption of SFAS 133. For additional information
i with respect to the amortized cost and estimated fair value of Sovereign's investment securities held to maturity, see Note 4 in the
"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" hereof.
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The actual maturities of the mortgage-backed securities held to maturity will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to call or repay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

Table 6 presents the book value of investment securities by obligation and Table 7 presents the securities of single issuers (other
than obligations of the United States and its political subdivisions, agencies and corporations) having an aggregate book value in
excess of 10% of Savereign’s stockholders’ equity which were held by Sovereign at December 31, 2001 (dollars in thousands):

TABLE 6: INVESTMENT SECURITIES BY OBLIGOR

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999

Investment securities available for sale:

U.S. Treasury and government

BOENCY SECUMTIES . . oottt ittt e et et et e e e $ 6,649,220 $ 765,880 $ 964,016

State and mMuUNICiPal SECUNLIES . ... ittt e e e 24,392 38,769 32,179

DN SBCUMIBS o\ttt e e et e e e e e e e 2,908,067 4,510,935 7,034,017
Total investment securities

available for sale ... o $ 9,581,679 $ 5,315,584 $ 8,030,212
Investment securities held to maturity:

U.S. Treasury and government

AOENCY SECUTITIES « . v vttt ettt ettt e e e e $ 874,059 $ 1,568,907 $ 504,673

State and municipal SECUItIES . .. ... . e 4,128 739 3,275

OHhr SBCUMIES v vttt ettt ettt e e e e 5,250 408,622 1,854,103
Total investment securities

REld 10 MatUNY . oo e e e $ 883,437 $ 1,978,268 S 2,362,051

|
TABLE 7: INVESTMENT SECURITIES OF SINGLE ISSUERS
AT DECEMBER 31, 2001
AMORTIZED FAIR
COST VALUE

CENdant MO gagE o ettt e e $ 227,354,649 § 232,856,483 i
PNC MOrgage SeCUMTIES . ...ttt e et e e e e e e e e ettt et e 237,784,952 239,047,306 \
Structured Asset Securities COrPOTatioN .. ... ..t e e 300,873,057 302,470,270 ‘
First Nationwide Trust .. o e e e et e e e e e e e e 236,104,581 239,363,211

0] P $1,002,117,239 $1,013,737,270

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Goodwill and other intangible assets decreased to $1.3 billion from $1.5 billion which represented
4% of total assets and 61% of stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2001, and is comprised of goodwill of $355 million and core
deposit intangible assets of $389 million. The decrease in goodwill and other intangible assets was due to amortization offset by an
increase of $23.5 million related to some final purchase price adjustments recorded in 2001 for the New England Acquisition.
Through December 31, 2001, Sovereign was amortizing goodwill over 25 years. Upon adoption of SFAS 142, "Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets" on January 1, 2002, Sovereign will cease to amortize its goodwill, and will measure it for impairment annually

or as indicators of impairment arise.

Sovereign established core deposit intangibles (CDI) in instances where low-cost deposits were acquired in purchase business
combinations. Sovereign determined the value of its CDI based on the present value of the difference in expected future cash
flows between the cost to replace such deposits (based on applicable equivalent time deposit rates) versus the then-current yield
on core deposits acquired. The aggregate future cash flows were based on the average expected life of the deposits acquired for
each product less cost to service the deposits. This intangible is amortized using an accelerated method over the expected life of
the underlying deposit, which is generally 10 years.
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Other Assets. Premises and equipment decreased from 2000 primarily due to depreciation of $43.1 million and the disposition

of $4.4 million of assets through the sale of branches in southern New Jersey, Delaware and Eastern Pennsylvania offset by new
purchases. Accrued interest receivable decreased $46.6 million due to the contraction in the loan portfolio and the decreased yield
on loans. Other assets at December 31, 2001 were $1.5 billion compared to $951.7 million at December 31, 2000. The increase
primarily relates to an increase in loans in process of $357 million from a rise in residential and consumer loan volume due to the
prevailing low rates, deferred taxes of $61.6 million, the market value of derivatives of $46.9 million due principally to derivatives
related to the indirect auto securitization, and other increases.

Deposits. Sovereign attracts deposits within its primary market area by offering a variety of deposit instruments including demand and NOW
accounts, money market accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposit and retirement savings plans. Total deposits at December 31,
2001 were $23.3 billion compared to $24.5 billion at December 31, 2000. The decrease in deposits is attributable to decreases in jumbo and
retail time deposits, which decreased $2.0 billion year-to-year. Additionally, Sovereign sold 18 branch offices with deposits of $315 million

to another institution in June 2001. Excluding these two items, deposits increased approximately $1.1 billion or 5% during 2001.

Comparative detail of average balances and rates by deposit type is included in Table 1 Net Interest Margin earlier in this discussion.

Borrowings. Sovereign utilizes short-term borrowings as a source of funds for its asset growth and its asset/liability management.
Collateralized advances are available from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh ("FHLB") provided certain standards related
to creditworthiness have been met. Other sources of funds available to Sovereign include federal funds, and reverse repurchase
agreements. Reverse repurchase agreements are short-term obligations collateralized by investment securities. Total borrowings
at December 31, 2001 were $2.7 billion, compared to total borrowings of $1.3 billion at December 31, 2000. The increase in short-
| term borrowings was due to more attractive funding costs in these funding sources versus retail and jumbo time deposits.

| Table 8 presents information regarding Sovereign’s borrowings and the related weighted average rate at the dates indicated (in thousands):

TABLE 8: BORROWINGS AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000
BALANCE RATE BALANCE RATE
Federal funds purchased . ... o e $ 452,002 175%  $ 130,000 5.23%
Securities sold under repurchase agreements . ... . i e e 297,741 1.45% 230,900 8.58%
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ........ ..o 1,929,021 3.08% 970,000 6.62%
Total BOITOWINGS ettt e e $ 2,678,764 2.67%  $1,330,900 6.48%

Table 9 summarizes information regarding short-term securities sold under repurchase agreements and short-term FHLB advances
{in thousands):

TABLE 9: DETAILS OF BORROWINGS DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000

Securities sold under repurchase agreements:
BalANCE i e e e $ 297,141 $ 230,800

§ Weighted average INterest Fale . . .. ..t it e e e e e e e 1.45% 6.58%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the year .........c i e $ 398,850 $ 1,426,828

b Average amount outstanding during the Year ... .. ... i $ 83,046 $ 811,601
Weighted average interest rate during the year . .. .. . . e s 1.45% 6.57%
FHLB advances:
BalANCE Lttt e e e e e $ 1,929,021 $ 970,000
Weighted average INterest Tt . . .. ..ottt e et e e i e e 3.07% 6.62%
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the year ......... .. . i i $ 3,555,000 $ 8,753,000
Average amount outstanding during the YBar .. ... .. . . $ 2,119,833 $ 4,267,647
Weighted average interest rate during the Year . ... o ot e 4.18% 6.59%
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Refer to Note 10 in the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" hereof for more information related to Sovereign’s borrowings.

Long-Term Debt. Total long-term debt at December 31, 2001 was $6.3 billion compared to $4.9 billion at December 31, 2000.
The increase in long-term debt was due to the issuance of $821 million of asset-backed floating rate notes, along with increases
in reverse repurchase agreements and FHLB advances to achieve a lower overall cost of funds. See Note 11 in the "Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements" hereof for more information related to Sovereign’s long-term debt.

On November 20, 2001, a consolidated special purpose entity issued $821 million of asset-backed floating rate notes. On March 1,
2001, Sovereign refinanced the $500 million senior secured credit facility with a $400 million variable rate senior secured credit
facility consisting of a $350 million revolving line and a $50 million term note. On February 20, 2001, Sovereign issued $175 million
of senior unsecured notes at 8.625% which will mature on March 15, 2004. The proceeds of this issuance, along with the proceeds
of $150 million from the 20 million shares of common stock issued on February 9, 2001, were used to repay $240 million of 6.625%
senior notes which matured on March 15, 2001 and strengthened Sovereign’s liquidity.

Trust Preferred Securities. Sovereign has outstanding $404 million ($504 million par value) of mandatorily redeemable trust
preferred obligations that have stated maturities ranging from 2027 through 2030 and have stated dividends of 7.50% to 9.875% of
par value. On December 10, 2001, Sovereign issued $100 million of Trust Preferred Securities with an annual dividend rate of 8.75%.
On December 27, 2001, Sovereign completed an open market repurchase of $15.4 million (par value) of its Trust Preferred Securities
with an annual distribution rate of 9%. The difference between book value and par value of the Trust Preferred Securities is being
accreted into expense over the life of the securities using the level yield method. See Note 12 in the "Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements" for a more detailed discussion on Sovereign’s Trust Preferred Securities.

Securitization Transactions. Securitization transactions contribute to Sovereign’s overall funding and regulatory capital
management. The total face amount of the outstanding debt and equity securities assumed by third parties at December 31,

2001 approximates $2.6 billion. These transactions involve periodic transfers of loans or other financiaf assets to special purpose
entities (SPEs) and are either recorded on Sovereign’s Consolidated Balance Sheet or off-balance sheet depending on whether the
transaction qualifies as a sale of assets in accordance with SFAS 140, "Transfers of Financial Assets and Liabilities" ("SFAS 140").

OH-Balance Sheet Securitizations. In certain transactions, Sovereign has transferred assets to an SPE qualifying for non-
consolidation (QSPE), however retained an interest in the QSPE. At December 31, 2001, off-balance sheet QSPE’s had $1.8 billion
of debt related to assets that Sovereign sold to the QSPE which are not included in Sovereign's consolidated Balance Sheet.
Sovereign's interest retained in such QSPE’s was $123 million. See Note 22 in the "Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements”
for a discussion of Sovereign’s policies concerning valuation and impairment assessment for such interests as well as a discussion
of the assumptions used and sensitivity to changes in those assumptions.

Sovereign does not provide contractual legal recourse to third party investors that purchase debt or equity securities issued by the
QSPEs beyond the credit enhancement inherent in Sovereign’s subordinated interests in the QSPEs. However, should the performance
of the underlying loans held by those QSPEs deteriorate to a level that our retained subordinated interests are insufficient to collateralize
the QSPE securities held by third party investors, Sovereign may decide to provide the QSPEs with additiona! credit enhancements
to reduce the third party investors’ risk of loss, although it is not contractually required to do so. If management decides not to
provide additional credit enhancements in such a situation, it could adversely impact the availability and pricing of future transactions.
The performance of the underlying collateral in all of Sovereign’s transactions at December 31, 2001 is sufficient such that manage-
ment believes it is unlikely Sovereign will need to provide additional credit enhancements to these transactions in the future.

Securitizations Consolidated in Sovereign's Consolidated Balance Sheet. In a transaction consummated in November 2001,
Sovereign accessed the liquidity of international markets and transferred $957 million of indirect automobile loans to SPEs in a
financing transaction that does not qualify as a sale of assets under SFAS 140, and therefore has consolidated both the assets transferred
to the SPEs and the debt and minority interests issued by the SPEs in its Consolidated Balance Sheet. At December 31, 2001, Sovereign
had $821 million of debt and $64 million of minority interest reflected on its Consolidated Balance Sheet related to consolidated SPEs.
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Additionally, Sovereign will periodically sell qualifying mortgage loans to FHLMC, GNMA, and FNMA in return for mortgage-backed
securities issued by those agencies. Sovereign reclassifies the net book balance of the loans sold to such agencies from loans to
investment securities held to maturity and available for sale. For those loans sold to the agencies in which Sovereign retains
servicing rights, Sovereign allocates the net book balance transferred between servicing rights and investment securities based

on their relative fair values.

Minority Interests. In the financing transaction consummated in November 2001, Sovereign received $64 million from the sale of
ownership interests in consolidated SPEs to outside investors. The SPEs were formed to issue debt and equity interests as parts of
a securitization transaction which raised a total of $885 million for Sovereign. The controlling interests in the SPEs are reflected as
minority interests in Sovereign’s Consolidated Balance Sheet, along with the indirect automobile loans and asset-backed notes as
the entire transaction is considered a financing in accordance with SFAS 140.

On August 21, 2000, Sovereign received approximately $140 million of net proceeds from the issuance of $161.8 million of 12%
Series A Noncumulative Preferred Interests in Sovereign Real Estate Investment Trust (“SREIT”), a subsidiary of Sovereign Bank
which holds primarily residential real estate loans. The preferred stock was issued at a discount, which is being amortized over the
life of the preferred shares using the effective yield method. The preferred shares may be redeemed at any time on or after May 16,
2020, at the option of Sovereign subject to the approval of the OTS. Under certain circumstances, the preferred shares are automatically
exchangeable into preferred stock of Sovereign Bank. The offering was made exclusively to institutional investors; however, Sovereign
expects to register the SREIT preferred shares so that they can be offered to other investors. The proceeds of this offering were
principally used to repay corporate debt.

CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

Extending credit exposes Sovereign to credit risk, which is the risk that the principal balance of a loan and any related interest will
not be coltected due to the inability of the borrower to repay the loan. Sovereign manages credit risk in the loan portfolio through
adherence to consistent standards, guidelines and limitations established by the Board of Directors. Written loan policies establish
underwriting standards, lending limits and other standards or limits as deemed necessary and prudent. Various approval levels,
based on the amount of the loan and other key credit attributes, have also been established. Loan approval authority ranges from
the individual loan officer to the Board of Directors’ Loan Committee. In addition to being subjected to the judgment and dual
approval of experienced loan officers and their managers, loans over a certain dollar size also require the co-approval of credit
officers independent of the loan officer to ensure consistency and quality in accordance with Sovereign’s credit standards.

The Retail Loan Review Group and the Commercial Asset Review Group conduct ongoing, independent reviews of the lending
process to ensure adherence to established policies and procedures, monitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
provide objective measurement of the risk inherent in the loan portfolio, and ensure that proper documentation exists. The results
of these periodic reviews are reported to the Asset Review Committee, and to the Board of Directors of both Sovereign and
Sovereign Bank. Sovereign also maintains a watch list for certain loans identified as requiring a higher level of monitoring by
management because of one or more factors, such as economic conditions, industry trends, nature of collateral, collateral margin,
payment history, or other factors. Commercial loan credit quality is strong but is under a high level of scrutiny by line management,
credit officers and the independent Commercial Asset Review Group, due to current economic conditions.

At December 31, 2001, Sovereign’s loan portfolio was 25% residential, 35% consumer and 40% commercial. At December 31, 2000,
Sovereign’s loan portfolio was 36% residential, 28% consumer and 36% commercial. This shift in portfolio composition reflects
increased emphasis in commercial and consumer lending. Management believes this shift in loan composition brings higher yields
and higher inherent credit risk.

The following discussion summarizes the underwriting policies and procedures for the major categories within the loan portfolio and
addresses Sovereign’s strategies for managing the related credit risk.
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Commercial Loans. Credit risk associated with commercial loans is primarily influenced by prevailing and expected economic
conditions and the level of underwriting risk Sovereign is willing to assume. To manage credit risk when extending commercial
credit, Sovereign focuses on both assessing the horrower’s capacity and willingness to repay and on obtaining sufficient collateral.
Commercial and industrial loans are generally secured by the borrower’s assets and by personal guarantees. Commercial real estate
loans are originated primarily within the Pennsylvania, New Jersey, and New England market areas and are secured by developed
real estate at conservative loan-to-values and often by a guarantee of the borrower. Management closely monitors the composition
and quality of the total commercial loan portfolio to ensure that significant credit concentrations by borrower or industry do not exist.

Consumer Loans. Credit risk in the direct and indirect consumer loan portfolio is controlled by strict adherence to conservative
underwriting standards that consider debt-to-income levels and the creditworthiness of the borrower and, if secured, collateral
values. In the home equity loan portfolio, combined loan-to-value ratios are generally limited to 80% or credit insurance is purchased
to limit exposure. Other credit considerations may warrant higher combined loan-to-value ratios for approved loans. The auto loan
portfolio is characterized by high credit scoring borrowers and strong payment performance. The portion of the consumer portfolio
at December 31, 2001, which is secured by real estate, vehicles, deposit accounts or government guarantees comprises 97.4% of the
entire consumer portfolio.

Residential Loans. Sovereign originates fixed rate and adjustable rate residential mortgage loans which are secured by

the underlying 1-4 family residential property. Credit risk exposure in this area of lending is minimized by the evaluation of

the creditworthiness of the borrower, including debt-to-equity ratios, credit scores, and adherence to underwriting policies that
emphasize conservative loan-to-value ratios of generally no more than 80%. Residential mortgage loans granted in excess of the
80% loan-to-value ratio criterion are generally insured by private mortgage insurance, unless otherwise guaranteed or insured by
the Federal, state or local government. Sovereign also utilizes underwriting standards which comply with those of the Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC") or the Federal National Mortgage Association ("FNMA"}. Credit risk is further reduced since
a portion of Sovereign’s fixed rate mortgage loan production is sold to investors in the secondary market without recourse.

Collections. Sovereign closely monitors delinquencies as another means of maintaining high asset quality. Collection efforts begin
within 15 days after a loan payment is missed by attempting to contact all borrowers and to offer a variety of loss mitigation
alternatives. If these attempts fail, Sovereign will proceed to gain control of any and all collateral in a timely manner in order to
minimize losses. While liquidation and recovery efforts continue, officers continue to work with the borrowers, if appropriate, to
recover all monies owed to Sovereign. Sovereign monitors delinquency trends at 30, 60, and 90 days past due. These trends are
discussed at the monthly Asset Review Committee meetings. Minutes from these meetings are submitted to the Board of Directors
of Sovereign Bank.

Mon-performing Assets. At December 31, 2001, Sovereign's non-performing assets were $228 million compared to $187 million at
December 31, 2000. Non-performing assets as a percentage of total assets was .64% at December 31, 2001 compared to .56% at
December 31, 2000. This increase was caused by the residential and commercial portfolios. Commercial non-performing loans are
higher due to deterioration in a segment of the portfolio concentrated in cash flow-based enterprise value lending, primarily in
syndicated multi-bank credits that were originated by other banks and participated in by Sovereign. Residential loan delinquencies
and non-accruals increased due to the weakening economy.

Sovereign places all commercial loans 90 days or more delinquent {except those in the process of collection) on non-performing
status. Residential loans 120 days delinguent {except those well-secured and in the process of collection) are placed on non-accrual
status and a 10% allowance allocation is assigned. Consumer loans 120 days delinquent are placed on non-accrual status and a 20%
allowance allocation is assigned. In addition, Sovereign calculates a specific reserve on all loans where it has been determined that
a potential for loss exists. Consumer non-accrual loans decreased from $38.2 million at December 31, 2000 to $27.5 million at
December 31, 2001, as a result of a change in practice in recognizing consumer non-performing loans from 90 to 120 days.
Residential real estate owned increased from $4.4 million at December 31, 2000 to $9.3 million at December 31, 2001 reflecting an
accelerated foreclosure process that occurred in certain parts of the acquired New England portfolio. Other repossessed assets
increased from $3.8 million at December 31, 2000 to $9.7 million at December 31, 2001, primarily as a result of a methodology
change in one of the serviced- by-others portfolios.
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Table 10 presents the composition of non-performing assets at the dates indicated (in thousands):

TABLE 10: NON-PERFORMING ASSETS

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1897
Non-accrual loans: .
Residential ... $ 74,500 $ 60,322 $ 32,374 $ 60,582 $ 65,930
Commercial realestate ..... ... .o 16,957 12,403 4,110 6,108 2,785
Commercial ... 88,810 64,485 12,668 7,305 942
CONSUMEBT ettt e e . 27,530 38,239 26,259 25,964 25,720
Total non-accrual loans . ... e 207,797 175,449 75,411 99,953 95,377
Restructured 10ans ... oo e 1,280 3,755 3,765 141 327
| Total non-performingloans ........... ... ... 209,077 179,204 79,166 100,100 95,704
| Other real estate owned and other
repossessed assets
Residential real estateowned ... ... ... . L. 9,261 4,425 2,344 12,147 11,299
Commercial real estateowned ........ ..., — — 1,223 665 710
Other repossessed aSSets .. vvv vt 9,667 3,758 1,762 2,772 —
Total other real estate owned and
other repossessed @ssets .......... . i, 18,928 8,183 5,329 15,584 12,008
Total non-performing assets ............ ... i, $ 228,005 3 187,387 $ 84,495 $ 115,684 $ 107,713
Past due 90 days or more as to interest or
principal and accruing interest ........ ... . . o $ 54,599 $ 16,733 $ 10,238 $ 9,975 $ 7,053
Non-performing assets as a percentage of
1018l @SSEIS . .\t .64% 56% .32% .53% 61%
Non-performing loans as a percentage of
total 10ans ..o e 1.02 .82 .55 .86 82
Non-performing assets as & percentage of
total loans and other real estateowned .................... 1.12 .85 .59 1.00 92
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage
of total non-performing assets .......... ... ... ...l 116.1 136.8 157.4 115.7 108.5
! Allowance for loan losses as a percentage
B, of total non-performing 10anS . ..ot 126.6 143.1 168.0 133.7 122.1

Loans that are past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest increased from $16.7 million at December 31, 2000 to $54.6
million at December 31, 2001. This increase was due principally to the phase-in of a methodology change in the treatment of
delinquent loans during the first half of 2001 and a change in nonaccrual of certain consumer loans from 90 to 120 days past due

to ensure consistency with all other consumer loans. During 2001, Sovereign began to keep residential and consumer loans secured
by real estate that are well-secured {loan to value of 50% or less) and in the process of collection on accrual status, in accordance
with regulatory guidelines. There were $12.8 million of such loans at December 31, 2001.

Gross interest income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 would have increased by approximately $9.1 million,
$7.0 million and $5.0 million, respectively, had Sovereign’s period-end non-accruing and restructured loans been current in accordance
with their original terms and outstanding throughout the period. Interest income recorded on these loans for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 was $6.6 million, $3.8 million and $2.1 million, respectively.

Potential Problem Loans. Potential problem loans (consisting of loans for which management has doubts as to the ability of
such borrowers to comply with present repayment terms, although not currently classified as non-performing loans) amounted
to approximately $102 million and $97 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Delinquencies. Sovereign's loan delinquencies (all performing loans 30 or more days delinquent) at December 31, 2001 were $449
million, a decrease from $501 million at December 31, 2000. As a percentage of total loans, performing delinquencies were 2.20%
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at December 31, 2001, a decrease from 2.29% at December 31, 2000. Residential performing loan delinquencies decreased from
$243 million to $188 million during the same time periods, but increased as a percentage of total residential loans from 3.05% to
3.75% as a result of the decrease in the size of the overall residential portfolio. Consumer performing loan delinquencies increased
from $147 million to $155 million, but decreased as a percentage of total consumer loans as a result of the increase in the size of the
overall consumer portfolio. Commercial performing loan delinquencies decreased from $110 million to $106 million, and also
decreased as a percentage of total commercial loans from 1.40% to 1.28%.

Allowance for Loan Loss. The adequacy of Sovereign's allowance for loan losses is regularly evaluated. Management’s evaluation of
the adequacy of the allowance to absorb potential loan losses takes into consideration the risks inherent in the loan portfolio, past
loan loss experience, specific loans which have loss potential, geographic and industry concentrations, delinquency trends, economic
conditions, the level of originations and other relevant factors. Management also considers loan quality, changes in the size and
character of the loan portfolio, amount of non-performing loans, delinquency trends, economic conditions and industry trends.

Overall, management believes that delinquency, potential problem loan, non-performing, and charge-off statistics have evidenced
deterioration related to economic conditions. The allowance has been increased from 1.17% to 1.30% of total loans reflecting
these trends and the shift in portfolio composition throughout the year, and credit risk management processes continue to identify
deterioration as soon as possible.

Sovereign maintains an allowance for loan losses which management believes is sufficient to absorb inherent losses in the loan
portfolio. Sovereign believes the current allowance to be at a level adequate to cover such inherent losses. At December 31, 2001,
Sovereign’s total allowance was $265 million. Sovereign’s total allowance at year-end equated to approximately 4.1 times the
average net charge-offs for the prior three-year period. Because historical charge-offs are not necessarily indicative of future charge-
off levels, Sovereign also gives consideration to other risk indicators when determining the appropriate allowance level.

Sovereign applies similar methods of determining the loan loss allowance for purchased loan portfolios as it does in establishing
allowances for originated loans. Sovereign established a $135 million allowance for loan losses for the loans acquired in the New
England Acquisition. In establishing this allowance, Sovereign utilized its methodology, adjusted for increased uncertainty regarding
the guatity of the acquired loans. Sovereign performed specific reviews of large non-homogeneous loans, and established specific
allowances accordingly. For homogenous loans, Sovereign established the loan loss allowance based on limited available performance
history, industry statistics and similar experiences with other acquired portfolios.

The allowance for loan losses consists of two elements: (i) an allocated allowance, which for non-homogeneous loans is comprised
of allowances established on specific classified loans, and class allowances for both homogeneous and non-homogeneous loans
based on historical loss experience and current trends, and (i) unallocated allowances hased on both general economic conditions
and other risk factors in Sovereign’s individual markets and portfolios, and to account for a level of imprecision in management's
estimation process.

The allowance recorded for consumer and residential portfolios is based on an analysis of product mix, credit scoring and risk
composition of the portfolio, fraud loss and bankruptcy experiences, economic conditions and historical and expected delinguency
and charge-off statistics for each homogeneous category or group of loans. Based on this information and analysis, an allowance
is established in an amount sufficient to cover estimated net-charge-offs for a twelve-month period.

The allowance recorded for commercial loans is based on an analysis of the individual credits and relationships and is separated
into two parts, the specific allowance and the class allowance.

The specific allowance element of the commercial loan allowance is based on a regular analysis of criticized commercial loans
where internal credit ratings are below a predetermined classification. This analysis is performed by the Managed Asset Division,
where loans with recognized deficiencies are administered, and periodically reviewed by Credit Risk Management and the
Commercial Asset Review Group. The specific allowance established for these criticized loans is based on a careful analysis of
related collateral value, cash flow considerations and, if applicable, guarantor capacity.
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The class allowance element of the commercial loan allowance is determined by an internal loan grading process in conjunction
with associated allowance factors. These class allowance factors are updated annually and are based primarily on actual historical
loss experience, consultation with regulatory authorities, and peer groups loss experience. While this analysis is conducted annually,
management has the ability to revise the class allowance factors whenever necessary in order to address improving or deteriorating
credit quality trends or specific risks associated with a given loan pool classification.

Regardless of the extent of management analysis of customer performance, portfolio evaluations, trends or risk management
processes established, certain inherent but undetected [osses are probable within the loan portfolio. This is due to several factors
including inherent delays in obtaining information regarding a customer’s financial condition or changes in their unique business
conditions; the judgmental nature of individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments and the interpretation of economic trends;
volatility of economic or customer conditions and the sensitivity of assumptions utilized to establish allocated allowances for
homogeneous groups of loans amang other factors. Sovereign maintains an unallocated allowance to recognize the existence of
these exposures. These other risk factors are continuously reviewed and revised by management where conditions indicate that

 the estimates initially applied are different from actual results.

A comprehensive analysis of the allowance for loan losses is performed by management on a quarterly basis. In addition, a review

| of allowance levels based on nationally published statistics is conducted on an annual basis. The Chief Credit Officer, the Chief Risk
¥ Management Officer and the Chairman of the Asset Review Committee have the responsibility to affirm allowance methodology and
| to assess the general and specific allowance factors in relation to estimated and actual net charge-off trends. In addition, the group
| is also responsible for assessing the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses for each loan pool classification at Sovereign.

Although management determines the amount of each element of the allowance separately and this process is an important
credit management tool, the entire allowance for credit losses is available for the entire loan portfolio. The actual amount of losses

| incurred can vary significantly from the estimated amounts. Management’s methodology includes several factors intended to

minimize the differences between estimated and actual losses. These factors allow management to adjust its estimate of losses
based on the most recent information available.
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Table 11 summarizes Sovereign’s allocation of the allowance for loan losses for allocated and unallocated allowances by loan type,
and the percentage of each loan type of total portfolio loans (in thousandsj:

TABLE 11: ALLOCATION OF THE ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
% OF % OF % OF % OF % OF
LOANS TO LOANS TO LCANS TO LOANS TC LOANS TC
TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL

AMOUNT  LOANS AMOUNT LOANS  AMOUNT LOANS AMOUNT LOANS AMOUNT  LOANS

Allocated allowances:

Commercial loans ........ $ 161,075 40% S 148,828 36% $ 58,784 29% § 38354 20% $ 30,793 12%
Residential real estate
mortgage loans . ... ... 20,724 25 34,629 36 19,635 40 22,427 47 36,351 61
Consumer loans. ... ...... 61,200 35 48,053 28 43,455 31 48,083 33 24,300 27
Unallocated allowances ... ... 21,668 n/a 23,846 n/a 11,212 nfa 24,938 n/a 25,379 nfa
Total allowance
for loanlosses........... $ 264,667 100% § 256,356 100% $ 132,986 100% § 133,802 100% $ 116,823 100%

Residential Portfolic. The allowance for the residential mortgage portfolio decreased from $34.6 million at December 31, 2000

to $20.7 million at December 31, 2001. The decrease was due primarily to the overall reduction in the residential portfolio by $3.0
billion from $8.0 billion at December 31, 2000 to $5.0 billion at December 31, 2001. As a percentage of the total residential portfolio,
the allowance decreased from .43% to .41%. Despite increases in delinquencies as a percent of loans outstanding and non-performing
loans in this portfolio, residential net charge-offs have not experienced commensurate increases, and in fact decreased from $6.9
million in 2000 to $5.0 million in 2001. As a percentage of average loans, residential net charge-offs decreased from .09% in 2000
to .08% in 2001.

Consumer Portfolio. The allowance for the consumer loan portfolio increased from $48.1 million at December 31, 2000 to $61.2
million at December 31, 2001. This increase was due to the overall growth in the portfolio which brought higher levels of substandard
assets that carry higher reserve allowance percentages. As a percentage of the entire consumer portfolio, the reserve increased
from .79% to .86%. During 2001, net charge-offs in this portfolio totaled $40.7 million, as compared to $28.6 million in the previous
year, an increase of 42%; however, the increase in charge-offs as a percentage of outstandings increased only 20% from .49% to .59%.

Commercial Portfolic. The allowance for loan losses for the commercial portfolio increased from $149.8 million at December 31,
2000 to $161.1 million at December 31, 2001. As a percentage of the total commercial portfolio, the allowance increased from 1.91%
to 1.95%. This increase was due primarily to higher levels of special mention and substandard assets that carry higher reserve
allowance percentages, especially in the cash flow portfolio. During 2001, net charge-offs in this portfolio totaled $43.0 million,

as compared to $32.3 million in 2000; however, charge-offs only increased from .50% to .54% of the respective average portfolio,
due to the overall increase in the total commercial portfolio during 2001.

Unallocated Allowance. The unallocated allowance decreased from $23.8 million at December 31, 2000 to $21.7 million at
December 31, 2001. As a percentage of the total reserve, the unallocated portion decreased from 9.3% to 8.2%. This decrease
reflects the bank’s increased precision in its methodology of calculating the allocated portion of the allowance, combined with the
increased familiarity and seasoning of the acquired loan portfolios.
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BANK REGULATORY CAPITAL

Federal law requires institutions regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervisicn to have a minimum leverage capital ratio equal to 3%
of tangible assets and 4% of risk-adjusted assets, and a risk-based capital ratio equal to 8%. Federal law also requires OTS regulated
institutions to have a minimum tangible capital equal to 2% of total tangible assets.

The OTS Order, requires Sovereign Bank to be "well capitalized" and also to meet certain other additional capital ratio requirements
above the regulatory minimum, and other conditions. Sovereign’s various agreements with its lenders also require it to cause
Sovereign Bank to be "well capitalized" at all times and in compliance with all regulatory requirements. To be "well capitalized",

an OTS institution must maintain a Tier 1 leverage ratio of at least 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 6% and total risk-
based capital of at least 10%. As of December 31, 2001, Sovereign Bank was classified as well capitalized and in compliance with
the conditions and capital requirements discussed above. Management expects that Sovereign Bank will continue to be classified
as well capitalized and in compliance with such capital requirements and conditions. Although OTS capital regulations do not apply
| to savings and loan holding companies, the OTS Order requires Sovereign to maintain certain Tier 1 capital and related liquidity
levels. Sovereign is presently in compliance with these requirements and expects to remain in compliance. For a detailed

| discussion on regulatory capital requirements, see Note 15 in the "Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" hereof.

Table 12 presents the capital ratios of Sovereign Bank and the current regulatory requirements at December 31, 2001,

| TABLE 12: REGULATORY CAPITAL RATIOS

SOVEREIGN OTS - REGULATIONS"
BANK WELL
DECEMBER 31, MINIMUM CAPITALIZED

‘ 2001 REQUIREMENT REQUIREMIENT

! Tangible capital to tangible assets . ........ ... e 7.19% 2.00% None
Tier 1 leverage capital to tangible assets ... ... .o i e 7.21 3.00 5.00%

Tier 1 risk-based capital to risk adjusted assets ............ . i 9.67 4.00 6.00
B Total risk-based capital to risk adjusted assets ......... .. ... oo 10.68 8.00 10.00

BN (1] The OTS Order imposes certain additional capital requirements in excess of the OTS regulated well capitalized requirements.

| LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

| Liquidity represents the ability of Sovereign to obtain cost effective funding to meet the needs of customers, as well as Sovereign’s

financial obligations. Sovereign’s primary sources of liquidity include retail deposit gathering, Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB)

borrowings, federal funds purchases, reverse repurchase agreements and wholesale deposit purchases. Other sources of liquidity
include asset securitizations, liquid investment portfolio securities and debt and equity issuances.

| Factors which impact the liquidity position of Sovereign include loan origination volumes, loan prepayment rates, maturity structure
of existing loans, core deposit growth levels, CD maturity structure and retention, Sovereign’s credit ratings, investment portfolio
cash flows, maturity structure of wholesale funding, etc. These risks are monitored and centrally managed. This process includes
reviewing all available wholesale liquidity sources. As of December 31, 2001, Sovereign had $6.7 billion in available overnight
liquidity in the form of unused federal funds purchased lines, unused FHLB borrowing capacity and unencumbered investment
portfolio securities. Sovereign also forecasts future liquidity needs and develops strategies to ensure that adequate liquidity is
available at all times,

Sovereign Bank has several sources of funding to meet its liquidity requirements, including the securities portfolio, the core deposit
base, the ability to acquire large deposits and issue public securities in the local and national markets, FHLB borrowings, federal funds
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purchased, reverse repurchase agreements, wholesale deposit purchases and the capability to securitize or package loans for sale.
Sovereign’s holding company has the following major sources of funding to meet its liquidity requirements: dividends and returns
of investment from its subsidiaries, a revolving credit agreement and access to the capital markets. Sovereign Bank may pay dividends
to its parent subject to approval of the OTS. Sovereign Bank declared and paid dividends to the parent company of $130 million in
2001, $100 million in 2000 and $25 million in 1999. Sovereign also has approximately $900 million of availability under a shelf registration
statement on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission permitting ready access to the public debt and equity markets.

As discussed in other sections of this document including Item 1. Business and Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplemental Data
and in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, subsidiary banks are subject to regulation and, among other things, may
be limited in their ability to pay dividends or transfer funds to the parent company. Accordingly, consolidated cash flows as
presented in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows of ltem 8. may not represent cash immediately available for the payment
of cash dividends to stockholders.

The following material transactions occurred during 2001 that provided significant sources of liguidity to Sovereign:

Commen Stock: On February 9, 2001, Sovereign issued $150 million of common equity consisting of 20 million shares sold at $7.50
per common stock share. The proceeds of the issuance were used to repay the 6.625% senior notes at maturity on March 15, 2001.

Senior Notes: On February 20, 2001, Sovereign issued $175 million of senior unsecured notes at 8.625% which will mature on
March 15, 2004. The proceeds of this issuance were used to repay the 6.625% senior notes at maturity on March 15, 2001 and for
additional liquidity.

Senior Secured Credit Facility: On March 1, 2001, Sovereign refinanced its $500 million senior secured credit facility {outstanding
balance at December 31, 2000 of $350 million) with a variable principal rate $400 million senior secured credit facility consisting of
a $350 million revolving line of credit and a $50 million term note. For the first two years, the interest rates on both the line of credit
and term loan is calculated using one of five methods at the option of Sovereign as: (1) one-month Eurodollar rate plus 250 basis
points, (2) three-month Eurodollar rate plus 250 basis points, (3) six-month Eurodollar rate plus 250 basis points, (4) twelve-month
Eurodollar rate plus 250 basis points, {5) the greater of the prime rate, plus 75 basis points, or Fed Funds rate plus 125 basis points.
The interest rates for years three through six are structured based upon a rate table beginning with the Eurodollar rate plus 275
basis points or the greater of the prime rate plus 100 basis points or the federal funds rate plus 150 basis points, and are decreased
based upon each level of Sovereign’s senior unsecured long-term debt credit rating exceeding certain levels. The revolving fine
matures $100 million in 2005, $200 million in 2006, and $50 million in 2007, and the term note matures in 2005, At December 31,
2001, Sovereign had $175 million outstanding under the facility at an average rate of 5.72%.

Trust Preferred Securities: On December 13, 2001, Sovereign issued $100 million of preferred capital securities through Sovereign
Capital Trust lll, a special-purpose statutory trust created expressly for the issuance of these securities. Distributions on the securities
will be payable at an annual rate of 8.75% on a quarterly basis beginning March 31, 2002. Net proceeds were $96.2 million after
issuance costs and discounts. Gross proceeds were invested in Junior Subordinated Debentures of Sovereign, at terms identical to
the preferred capital securities. Cash distributions on the securities are made to the extent interest on the debentures is received by
Sovereign Capital Trust lll. In the event of certain changes or amendments to regulatory requirements or federal tax rules, the securities
are redeemable in whole. Otherwise, the securities are generally redeemable in whole or in part on or after January 1, 2007, at a
price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. The securities must be redeemed on
December 31, 2031.

Indirect Automobile Loan Securitization. In a financing transaction consummated in November, 2001, Sovereign transferred $957
million of indirect automobile loans to SPEs which provided Sovereign $885 million of lower cost financing raised in SPEs through
the issuance of $821 million of floating rate asset-backed floating rate notes and $64 million from the sale of ownership interests in
the SPEs to outside investors. The securitization represents a financing transaction in accordance with SFAS 140 and the indirect
automobile loans, minority interests and asset-backed floating rate notes are included in Sovereign’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at
December 31, 2001.
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Cash and cash equivalents decreased $52.4 million for 2001. Net cash used by operating activities was $277 million for 2001. Net
cash used by investing activities for 2001 was $1.5 billion and consisted primarily of the purchase of $10.6 billion in available for
sale investment securities offset by the proceeds from the sale of investments and loans of $6.1 billion and $3.7 billion, respectively.
Net cash provided by financing activities for 2001 was $1.8 billion which was primarily due to a net increase in long-term debt and
borrowings of $2.7 billion offset by a decrease in deposits and other customer accounts of $1.2 billion.

Sovereign’s debt agreements impose customary limitations on dividends, other payments and transactions. These limits are not
expected to affect dividend payments at current levels, and reasonably anticipated increases.

| CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

Sovereign enters into contractual obligations in the normal course of business as a source of funds for its asset growth and its

| asset/liability management, to fund acquisitions, and to meet required capital needs. These obligations require Sovereign to make
cash payments over time as detailed in the table below (For further information regarding Sovereign’s contractual obligations refer
to Footnotes 9 through 13 of our Consolidated Financial Statements, herein.}:

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS
PAYMENTS DUE BY PERIOD
LESS THAN AFTER
TOTAL 1 YEAR 1-3 YEARS 4-5 YEARS 5 YEARS

BOrmowings . ... $ 2,678,764 $ 2,678,784 $ — $ — 3 —
Long-term debt:

Securities sold under

repurchase agreements .. ... ... 155,000 — — 155,000 —

FHLB advances ............c.iuiiiiin e, 4,105,929 400,000 700 312,750 3,392,479

Other long-termdebt ... ... . .. .. i i 2,000,077 21,391 432,551 725,135 821,000
Trust Preferred secUrities .. ... e 503,635 — — — 503,635
Certificates of deposit ........ ... i i 7,247,607 5,655,282 1,291,853 170,409 130,063
Operating 188565 . ..o vttt 610,555 103,842 191,044 215,336 100,333

| Total contractual cash
obligations .. ... $ 17,301,567 $ 8,859,279 $ 1,916,148 $ 1,578,630 $ 4,947,510
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Certain of Sovereign’s contractual obligations require Sovereign to maintain certain financial ratios and to maintain a "well
capitalized" regulatory status. Sovereign has complied with these covenants as of December 31, 2001 and expects to be in
compliance with these covenants for the foreseeable future. However, if in the future Sovereign is not in compliance with these
ratios or is deemed to be other than well capitalized by the OTS, and is unable to obtain a waiver from its lenders, the debt would
be in default and callable by Sovereign’s lenders. Due to cross default provisions in certain of Sovereign's debt agreements, if more
than $25 million of Sovereign's debt is in default, $875 million of senior notes and the full amount of the senior secured credit facility
then outstanding will become due in full.

Sovereign is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing
needs of its customers and to manage its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, loans sold with recourse, forward contracts and interest rate swaps,

caps and floors. These financial instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of
the amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet. The contract or notional amounts of these financial instruments reflect
the extent of involvement Sovereign has in particular classes of financial instruments.

Sovereign’s exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments
to extend credit, standby letters of credit and loans sold with recourse is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments.
Sovereign uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet
instruments. For interest rate swaps, caps and floors and forward contracts, the contract or notional amounts do not represent
exposure to credit loss. Sovereign controls the credit risk of its interest rate swaps, caps and floors and forward contracts through
credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. Unless noted otherwise, Sovereign does not require and is not required to
pledge collateral or other security to support financial instruments with credit risk.

AMOUNT OF COMMITMENT EXPIRATION PER PERIOD

TOTAL

OTHER COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS AMOUNTS LESS THAN

COMMITTED 1 YEAR 1-3 YEARS 4-5 YEARS OVER 5 YEARS
Commitmentstoextendcredit ................ .. ... . ... $ 6,765,595 $ 4,365,528 $ 787,469 $ 371,058 $ 1,241,540
Standby lettersof credit. .. ... ... 674,397 282,397 128,658 107,297 156,045
Loans sold withrecourse . ... . i i 54,610 — — — 54,610
Forward contracts ...ttt e 443,162 443,162 — — —
Total commercial commitments ........ .. ... ... $ 7,937,764 $ 5,091,087 $ 916,127 $ 478,355 $ 1,452,195

For further information regarding Sovereign’s commitments, refer to Note 19 to the "Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements”, herein.

ASSET AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

Interest rate risk arises primarily through Sovereign’s traditional business activities of extending loans and accepting deposits.
Many factors, including economic and financial conditions, movements in market interest rates and consumer preferences, affect
the spread between interest earned on assets and interest paid on liabilities. In managing its interest rate risk, Sovereign seeks to
minimize the variahility of net interest income across various likely scenarios while at the same time maximizing its net interest
income and net interest margin. To achieve these objectives, Sovereign works closely with each business line in the company and
guides new business flows. Sovereign also uses various other tools to manage interest rate risk including wholesale funding
maturity targeting, investment portfolio purchase strategies, asset securitization/sale, and financial derivatives.
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Interest rate risk is managed centrally by the Treasury Group with oversight by the Asset and Liability Committee. Management
reviews various forms of analysis to monitor interest rate risk including net interest income sensitivity, market value sensitivity,
repricing frequency of assets versus liabilities and scenario analysis. Numerous assumptions are made to produce these analyses
including, but not fimited to, assumptions on new business volumes, foan and investment prepayment rates, deposit flows, interest
rate curves, economic conditions, and competitor pricing.

b Sovereign simulates the impact of changing interest rates on its expected future interest income and interest expense (net interest

income sensitivity). This simulation is run monthly and it includes nine different stress scenarios. These scenarios shift interest
rates up and down. Certain other scenarios shift short-term rates up while holding longer-term rates constant and vice versa. This
scenario analysis helps management to better understand its risk and is used to develop proactive strategies to ensure that Sovereign
is not overly sensitive to the future direction of interest rates. At December 31, 2001, the general level of interest rates represented
a unigue economic environment in which several of Sovereign’s declining interest rate simulation scenarios would not apply. At
December 31, 2001, if interest rates dropped in parallel 100 basis points or rose in parallel 200 basis points, Sovereign estimates the
loss to net interest income to remain under 3%. This compares to an estimated loss to net interest income of 2.2% if rates dropped
in parallel 200 basis points and a loss of .1% if rates rose in parallel 200 basis points at December 31, 2000.

| Sovereign also monitors the relative repricing sensitivities of its assets versus its liabilities. Management attempts to keep assets and
| liabilities in balance so that when interest rates do change, the net interest income of Sovereign will not experience any significant
| short-term volatility as a result of assets repricing more quickly than liabilities or vice versa. As of December 31, 2001, the one year

cumulative gap was 9%, compared to 1% at December 31, 2000, indicating Sovereign is well balanced and will benefit from rising rates.

Finally, Sovereign will calculate the market value of its balance sheet including all assets, liabilities and hedges. This market value

| analysis is very useful because it measures the present value of all estimated future interest income and interest expense cash flows

of the company. Management will calculate what it calls Net Portfolio Value (NPV) which is the market value of assets minus the
market value of liabilities. As of December 31, 2001, the NPV as a percentage of the present value of assets was 11.68%.
Management will also review the sensitivity of NPV to changes in interest rates. Management attempts to keep the NPV Ratio
relatively constant across various interest rate scenarios. As of December 31, 2001, a 200 basis point rise in interest rates would
increase the NPV ratio by 1.18% and a 100 basis point decline in interest rates would decrease the NPV by .45%. At December 31,
2000, a 200 basis point rise or decline in interest rates would decrease the NPV by .42% and 1.54%, respectively.

Because the assumptions used are inherently uncertain, the model cannot precisely predict the effect of higher or lower interest
rates on net interest income. Actual results will differ from simulated results due to the timing, magnitude and frequency of interest

| rate changes, the difference between actual experience and the assumed volume and characteristics of new business and behavior

of existing positions, and changes in market conditions and management strategies, among other factors.

in 2001, the Federal Funds rate declined 475 basis points, which is an unusually rapid move for a one year time frame. Even though
Sovereign’s risk position has been mildly asset sensitive (sensitive to falling rates), management was able to develop strategies to
overcome this move in rates and widen the net interest margin during the year. This was due to numerous factors. Sovereign
aggressively repriced certain liabilities and improved the loan portfolio mix away from residential mortgages and into higher spread
consumer and commercial loans. The deposit mix also improved with more core deposits and fess CDs. Lastly, the Company effec-
tively used the wholesale bank {investments funded with wholesale funding) to hedge interest rate risk created by the relationship
business.

Pursuant to its interest rate risk management strategy, Sovereign enters into hedging transactions that involve interest rate
exchange agreements (swaps, caps, and floors) for interest rate risk management purposes. Sovereign’s objective in managing its
interest rate risk is to provide sustainable levels of net interest income while limiting the impact that changes in interest rates have

i on net interest income.

8 Interest rate swaps are generally used to convert fixed rate assets and liabilities to variable rate assets and liabilities and vice versa.
Sovereign utilizes interest rate swaps that have a high degree of correlation to the related financial instrument. At December 31,
2001, Sovereign’s principal hedging transactions were to convert liabilities from floating rate to fixed rate for interest rate risk
management purposes.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As part of its mortgage banking strategy, Sovereign originates fixed rate residential mortgages. It sells the majority of these loans to
FHLMC, FNMA, and private investors. The loans are exchanged for cash or marketable fixed rate mortgage-backed securities which
are generally sold. This helps insulate Sovereign from the interest rate risk associated with these fixed rate assets. Sovereign uses
forward sales, cash sales and options on mortgage-backed securities as a means of hedging loans in the mortgage pipeline that are
originated for sale.

To accommodate customer needs, Sovereign enters into customer-related financial derivative transactions primarily consisting of
interest rate swaps, caps, and floors. Risk exposure from customer positions is managed through transactions with other dealers.

Table 13 presents the amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities that are assumed to mature or reprice
during the periods indicated at December 31, 2001 and their related average yields and costs. Adjustable and floating rate loans
and securities are included in the periad in which interest rates are next scheduled to adjust rather than the period in which they
mature (in thousands):

TABLE 13: GAP ANALYSIS AT DECEMBER 31, 2001 REPRICING
YEAR ONE YEAR TWO YEAR THREE YEAR FOUR YEAR FIVE THEREAFTER TOTAL
Interest earning assets:
nvestment securities{IN2) ... ... .. . $ 3,356,972 $ 1,071,038 $ 848,689 $ 722,665 $ 893,089 $ 3773883 $ 10,465,116
6.16% 6.36% 6.38% 6.42% 6.39% 6.50% 6.35%
Loans(3) oot 11,304,679 3,485,484 2,036,470 1,108,445 947,640 1,516,866 20,399,584
7.00% 7.87% 7.82% 7.39% 6.83% 6.65% 7.22%
Total interest earning assets . ..........cooeniin $ 14,660,651 S 4,556,622 $ 2,885,159 $ 1831110 $ 1,640,729 $ 5,290,529 $ 30,864,700
6.81% 7.52% 7.39% 7.00% 6.64% 6.54% 6.92%
Non-interest earning assets ................... — — — — — 4,610,138 4,610,138
Total @SSES <.t $ 14,660,651 $ 4,556,522 $ 2,885,159 $ 1.831,110 $ 1,840,729 $ 9,900,667 $ 35,474,838
6.81% 7.52% 7.39% 7.00% 6.64% 3.50% 6.02%
Interest bearing liabilities:
Deposits(d) ..o e $ 10,365,824 S 3472591 S 2,697,045 $ 2,493,343 S 1410313 $ 2,858,458 $ 23,297,574
2.88% 2.01% 1.50% 1.42% 0:88% 0.55% 2.03%
BOMMOWINGS .« et v et e 3,331,632 872,315 375,064 3,860,859 500,000 — 8,939,770
3.87% 0.47% 9.50% 5.33% 10.50% — 4.78%
Trust Preferred Securities ... i, — — — — — 404,136 404,136
Minority Interest .......... o — — — — — 203,664 203,664
Total interest bearing liabilities . .................. 13,697,356 4,344,906 3,072,109 6,354,202 1,810,313 3,466,258 32,845,144
3.12% 1.70% 2.48% 3.80% 3.40% 0.45% 2.74%
Non-interest bearing liabilities ................... — — — — — 427,213 427,213
Stockholders' equity ... — — — — — 2,202,481 2,202,481
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ... ...... .. $ 13,697,356 S 4,344,908 $ 3,072,109 S 6,354,202 $ 1,910,313 S 6,095,952 $ 35,474,838
3.12% 1.70% 2.48% 3.80% 3.40% 0.26% 2.53%
Excess assets (liabilities) before effect of
hedging transactions ............. ... ... $ 963,295 $ 211,616 $  (186,950) $ (4,523,092) $ (269,584} $ 3804715
Tototal 8SSets . ..t 2.72% 0.60% (0.531% (12.75)% 0.761% 10.73%

Cumulative excess assets (liabilities) before effect of

hedging transactions .............o i § 963,295 $ 1174911 $ 987,961 $ (3,835,131) $ (3,804,715) $ —

Tototal @sSets ... oot 272% 3.31% 2.78% (3.97)% (10.731% —
Effect of hedging transactions on assets

and liabilities ........ ... oo $ 2,179,000 $ — $ 100,000 $ — $ 20,000 $ (2,299,000
Excess assets (liabifities} after effect of

hedging transactions ......... ... . . .o $ 3,142,295 $ 211,616 $ (86,950) $ (4,523,092) S (249,584} $ 1505715

Tototal @SSetS ... vt 8.86% 0.60% {0.25)% {12.751% (0.701% 4.24%
Cumulative excess assets (liabilities) after effect of

hedging transactions ............ ... ooohi $ 3,142,295 $ 335391 $ 3,266,961 $ {1,2566,131) S (1,505,715) $ —

Tototal@ssets . ...t 8.86% 9.45% 9.21% (3.54}% (4.24)% -

Include interest-earning depasits.

investment securities include market rate payment and repayment assumptions.
3) Loan balances include annual prepayment and repayment assumptions between 2% and 45%. Loan balances are presented net of deferred foan fees and include loans held for sate.
Saving, NOW, money market and demand deposit accounts have been assumed to decay at an annual rate of 15.75%.
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Table 14 presents selected quarterly consolidated financial data {in thousands, except per share data):

TABLE 14: SELECTED QUARTERLY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

THREE MONTHS ENDED

DEC. 31, SEPT. 30, JUNE 30, MAR. 31, DEC. 31, SEPT. 30, JUNE 30, MAR. 31,
2001 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000 2000
Total interest inCOMe ... oo i $ 521681 $ 563341 $ 557607 S 579846 S 605507 S 634754 § 557593 $§ 471,881
Total interest Xpense ... ... iia.. 244,022 292,521 299,284 332,366 351,171 380,345 370,779 312,629
Netinterestincome ... ... v iiiee. . 277,659 270,820 258,323 247,480 254,336 254,409 186,814 159,252
Provision for loan losses ............. ... ... 32,000 22,000 23,100 20,000 28,500 10,000 10,000 8,000
Net interest income after
PrOVISION Lot 245,659 248,820 235,223 221,480 225,836 244,409 176,814 151,252
Gainflloss) on sale of loans and
investment securities ......... .. (1,997 4,412 5,752 7,344 5,026 {45,052} {58,216) 22,872)
Otherincome .. ..oov v 93,623 97,739 118,455 100,739 79,438 59,614 46,494 44,130
B Other expenses ..........ovviiiveiinn.. 247,004 340,500 322,248 323,551 327,214 315,745 237,810 132,335
W ncome/(loss)before incometaxes .. ... 90,281 10,471 37,182 12,012 (16,914) (56,774) (72,718) 40,175
Income tax provision ..., 16,820 1,855 7,000 900 {13,590} (40,859) (24,016) 13,250
Income/{loss) before
extraordinary item ........ . . 73,461 8,616 30,182 11,112 (3,324) {16,915} (48,702) 26,925
Extracrdinary item ... ..o - - - (6,549) — — — 10,775
Netincomeffoss) ... ... oot $ 73461 8 8616 § 30,182 S 4563 S (3324) % (15,915) § (48,702) S 37,700
Operating earningsiih ... ool $ 73,461  § 72842 § 77122 § 63577 § 55632 % 74121 § 57,298 § 52,831
Net income/{loss) applicable
t0 COMMON StACK vt eeer it $ 73461 8§ 8616 $ 30,182 $ 4563 § (3324} % (15,915) $ 48,702) $ 37,700
Earnings/{loss) per share:
Basic
Income/(loss) before
extraordinary item ... ... o e $ 030 $ 003 § 012 $ 005 $ 0.01) § 0.07) $ 0.22) § 0.12
Extraordinary ftem . ........c.iiiie i - - - {0.03) — — — 0.05
Net income/(108s) ..., $ 030 § 003 $ 012 8§ 002 $ (0.01) § 0.07) § 0.22) $ 0.17
Diluted
Income/(loss) before
extraordinaryitem ... ... ... $ 028 S 0.03 S 012 $ 005 § 001 $ 007 8 022) $ 0.12
Extraordinaryitem ......... .. ... ... — — - {0.03] — — — 0.05
Net income/lloss) .. c..ovi e i $ 028 § 003 § 012§ 002 §$ (001 $ 007) % (0.22) § 0.17
Operating earnings {1} ... $ 028 $ 028 S 029 § 030 025 § 033 % 029 % 0.34
Market prices
High o $ 123/7 § 1311/50¢ 8 13 8§ 94/25 S 8817 S 878 $ 8 § 729/32
Low 8 46/63 8 43/50 7 47/50 7 33/50 6 39/50 7 1/32 67/18 6 11/16
B8 Dividends declared per common
. ShATE e 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 0.025 © 0.025 0.025 0.025

| (D Operating earnings exclude after-tax special charges of $64.2 million, $46.9 million and $59.0 million for the three-month periods ended September 30, June 30, and March 31, 2001, respectively, and $59.0 million,
$90.0 million, $106.0 million and $15.1 million for the three-month periods ended December 31, September 30, June 30 and March 31, 2000, respectively. See "Reconciliation of Net Income to Operating Earnings” of

Management's Discussion and Analysis.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PENDING ACCOUNTING PRONOQUNCEMENTS

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 141, "Business
Combinations”, and No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("SFAS 142"), effective for fiscal years beginning after December
15, 2001. Under the new rules, goodwill will no longer be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in accordance
with the Statements. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful lives.

The Company will apply SFAS 142 beginning in the first quarter of 2002. Application of the non-amortization provisions of

SFAS 142 is expected to result in an increase in net income of $30 million {$.11 per share) in 2002. The Company will test goodwill
for impairment using the two-step process proscribed in SFAS 142. The first step is a screen for potential impairment of goodwill
and indefinite lived intangible assets, while the second step measures the amount of the impairment, if any. The Company has
not yet determined what the effect of these tests will be on its earnings and financial position. The Company currently evaluates
goodwill for impairment if facts and circumstances suggest that it may be impaired. Management believes that no such
circumstances existed at December 31, 2001. Any impairment that is required to be recognized when adopting SFAS 142,

will be reflected as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in 2002.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND 1999

Net Interest Income. Net interest income for 2000 was $855 million compared to $615 million for 1999, or an increase of 39%.

The increase in net interest income in 2000 was due primarily to the increases in interest-earning assets from the New England
Acquisition and internal asset growth, offset slightly by the deleveraging of the balance sheet in the second and third quarters of
2000. The New England Acquisition added $8.0 billion to average loans and $6.9 billion to average deposits (replacing higher cost
FHLB borrowings) in 2000. Net interest margin - operating basis (net interest income adjusted to eliminate the negative impact from
escrowed financing proceeds related to the New England Acquisition, divided by average interest-earning assets) was 3.19% for
2000 compared to 2.88% for 1999,

Interest on interest-earning deposits was $22.2 million for 2000 compared to $4.7 million for 1999. The average balance of interest-
earning deposits was $138 million with an average yield of 16.08% for 2000 compared to an average balance of $15.2 million with an
average yield of 31.12% for 1999. The increase in average interest-earning deposits was due to $200 million placed on deposit with
FleetBoston in March 2000 until the acquisition was completed in July 2000. The high yields of 2000 were the result of an outsourced
accounts payable process whereby a third-party vendor performs check processing and reconcilement functions for Sovereign'’s
disbursement accounts and pays Sovereign interest on disbursed funds during the two-to-three day float period, effectively producing
interest income with no corresponding asset balance. The decrease in rates was due primarily to the lower relative interest rate
earned on the $200 million deposit mentioned above as compared to the implied rate earned on the accounts payable process.

Interest on investment securities available for sale was $487 million for 2000 compared to $544 million for 1999. The decrease in
interest income was due to the increase in average investment securities available for sale from $8.1 billion in 1999 to $6.8 billion
in 2000, which resulted from the sale of approximately $2.1 hillion in investment securities in June and September.

Interest on investment securities held to maturity was $132 million for 2000 compared to $99.8 million for 1399. The average

balance of investment securities held to maturity was $2.0 billion with an average yield of 6.80% for 2000 compared to an average
balance of $1.4 billion with an average vield of 6.94% for 1999. The increase in the average balance was primarily due to the creation
of a $1.3 billion escrow fund in the fourth quarter 1993, which was used to fund the New England Acquisition. The escrow funds were
invested in commercial paper which matured in conjunction with the escrow break on the final closing of the acquisition on July 21, 2000.

Interest and fees on loans were $1.6 billion for 2000 compared to $959 mitlion for 1999. The average balance of net loans was

$19.4 billion with an average vield of 8.40% for 2000 compared to an average balance of $12.4 billion with an average vield of 7.77%
for 1999. The increase in average loan volume was primarily the result of the New England Acquisition and internal loan growth.
The acquisition added $8.0 billion to average loans. The increase in the rate was due to a higher mix of higher yielding commercial
and consumer loans, and rate increases reflected in the adjustable rate loans.
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Interest on total deposits was $735 million for 2000 compared to $441 million for 1999. The average balance of total deposits was
$19.2 hillion with an average cost of 3.83% for 2000 compared to an average balance of $12.2 billion with an average cost of 3.61%
for 1999. The increase in the average balance was due primarily to the acquisition of deposits in the New England Acquisition, which
added over $6.9 billion to average deposits during 2000. The increase in rates in 2000 mainly reflects the increase in time deposit
and money market account rates due to market conditions.

|| Interest on borrowings and long-term debt was $680 million for 2000 compared to $552 million for 1999. The average balance of

total borrowings was $10.3 billion with an average cost of 6.58% for 2000 compared to an average balance of $10.1 billion with
an average cost of 5.46% for 1999. Although the average balance was consistent between 2000 and 1999, borrowings and debt
decreased approximately $6 billion on an absolute basis.

Average non-interest earning assets were $3.6 billion for 2000, as compared to $2.0 billion for 1899, an increase of $1.6 billion. The
increase was due primarily to additions of non-earning assets during 2000 including $1.1 billion in goodwill from the New England
Acquisition, an additional investment in bank owned life insurance (BOLI) of $200 million, and the addition of the precious metals
business and equipment of $171 million, also related to the New England Acquisition.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan 1oss is based upon credit loss experience and an estimation of losses arising in
the current loan portfolio. The provision for loan losses for 2000 was $56.5 million compared to $30.0 million for 1999. The higher
provisioning was required because of an increase in net charge-offs during the year, and management's desire to raise the overall
level of the allowance, from 0.93% at 1999 to 1.17% in 2000, given increased levels of non-performing and potential problem loans,
and current economic conditions.

As Sovereign continues to place emphasis on commercial and consumer lending, management will regularly evaluate the risk
inherent in its loan portfolio and increase its loan loss provision as is necessary. Historically, Sovereign’s additions to its loan loss
allowance (through income statement charges and acquisition accounting) have been sufficient to absorb the incremental credit risk
in its loan portfolio. During 2000, Sovereign established an initial allowance of $134.7 million in connection with the New England
Acquisition. This initial allowance for SBNE, together with the provision of $56.5 million exceeded net charge-offs and thereby
increased the loan loss allowance by $123.4 million over 1999 levels.

Sovereign's net charge-offs for 2000 were $67.8 million and consisted of charge-offs of $92.9 million and recoveries of $25.1 million.
This compares to 1999 net charge-offs of $35.6 million consisting of charge-offs of $55.0 million and recoveries of $19.4 million.
Sovereign’s increased level of commercial charge-offs in 2000 was related primarily to deterioration in a segment of the portfolio
concentrated in cash flow, or enterprise lending in syndicated multi-bank credits that were originated by other banks and participated
in by Sovereign, as well as direct loans made to Sovereign customers.

The ratio of net loan charge-offs to average loans, including loans held for sale, was .35% for 2000, compared to .29% for 1999 and
.30% for 1998. Commercial loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average commercial loans were .50% for 2000, compared to .11%
for 1999 and .14% for 1998. Excluding charge-offs related to large corporate credits, commercial loan net charge-offs were .26% for
2000. Consumer loan net charge-cffs as a percentage of average consumer loans were .49% for 2000, compared to .49% for 1999
and .80% for 1998. Residential real estate mortgage loan net charge-offs as a percentage of average residential mortgage loans,
including loans held for sale, were .09% for 2000, .23% for 1999, and .08% for 1998. The increased level of residential mortgage
loan net charge-offs in 1999 was the result of $7.0 million net charge-offs incurred as a part of a bulk sale of non-performing
residential loans.

| Sovereign’s policy for charging off loans varies with respect to the category of loans and specific circumstances surrounding each

i loan under consideration. Consumer loans and residential real estate mortgage loans are generally charged off when deemed to be
uncollectible or 180 days past due, whichever comes first. Charge-offs of commercial loans are made on the basis of management’s
ongoing evaluation of non-performing loans.
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Other Income. Total other income was $109 million for 2000 compared to $130 million for 1999. Several factors contributed to the
increase in other income as discussed below.

Consumer fees were $97.1 million for 2000 compared to $57.1 million in 1999. This increase was primarily due to favorable shift

from time to core deposit products over the year along with the full year's impact of the New England Acquisition. 1
|

Commercial fees were $36.9 million for 2000 compared to $6.5 million in 1999. This increase was due to growth in both commercial |

loans and core deposits during the year augmented by a full year's impact of the New England Acquisition.

Mortgage banking revenues were $25.2 million for 2000 compared to $29.9 million for 1999. At December 31, 2000, Sovereign
serviced $4.2 billion of residential loans for others as compared to $5.7 billion at December 31, 1999. Sovereign sold mortgage
servicing rights related to $2.5 billion of loans during 2000.

During 2000, Sovereign created a Capital Markets Group. The group was built in three phases. The first phase provided risk
management services for corporate clients including foreign exchange, investments and derivatives. The first phase also included
securitization expertise for Sovereign's balance sheet assets. The second phase added merger and acquisitions expertise to assist
clients. The third phase, in process at December 31, 2000, included the formation of a broker dealer. The Capital Markets Group
generated revenue of $11.1 million in 2000.

Income from bank-owned life insurance ("BOLI") was $34.3 million for 2000 compared to $24.1 million for 1999. This increase was
primarily due to an additional investment in BOLI of $200 mitlion which was made during the year.

Net gain/(loss) on sale of investment securities and related derivatives was $(111.7) million for 2000, compared to a net gain of
$9.5 million for 1999, which included net investment security gains/(losses) of ${121.1) million and $3.7 million, and net gains/{loss-
es) on related derivative contracts of $9.4 million and $0 million in 2000 and 1999, respectively. This decrease was due primarily to
the balance sheet deleveraging transactions. During the second and third quarters of 2000, Sovereign sold $2.1 billion of available
for sale mortgage-backed securities, resulting in losses of $103 million. The net impact of the sales on equity was minimal as these
losses were previously reflected as unrealized losses included as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in accordance with SFAS 115,

General and Administrative Expenses. Total general and administrative expenses were $731 million for 2000 compared to

$393 million in 1999. Included in 2000 total general and administrative expenses were $149 million of merger-related, integration
and other charges related to recent acquisitions. These special charges include charges directly attributable to the acquired New
England branches, indirect costs incurred to integrate recent acquisitions into Sovereign’s back office systems, costs that
management considered redundant due to separating the New England Acquisition from a single closing into three separate
closings, and expenses related to the structured real estate transaction that involved properties utilized by SBNE. Included in
1999 general and administrative expenses were $30.8 million of merger and integration charges. Excluding the special charges,
general and administrative expenses were $582 million and $362 million for 2000 and 1999, respectively, or an increase of 61%.
This increase was due primarily to the New England Acquisition which increased compensation and benefits expense for the
approximately 3,700 staff and management personnel which were added, increased occupancy and equipment expenses for the
additional 281 community banking offices acquired, and increased other administrative expenses resulting from the acquisition.
These expenses were reflected in 2000 results from each of the respective three closing dates. See Note2 - Business Combinations
for more details on the New England Acquisition. Sovereign’s efficiency ratio (all operating general and administrative expenses
as a percentage of net interest income and recurring non-interest income) for 2001 was 54.3% compared to 48.6% for 1999.

Other Operating Expenses. Total other operating expenses were $282 million for 2000 compared to $53 million for 1999.
Other operating expenses included amortization of goodwill and other intangible assets of $98.9 million for 2000 compared to
$38.0 million for 1999 and trust preferred securities expense of $44.3 million for 2000 compared to $15.4 million for 1999. The
increase in amortization expense is due to the New England Acquisition which added $1.1 billion to Sovereign's intangible
assets. Trust preferred securities expense increased due to the issuance of additional securities in November 1999.
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Income Tax Provision. The income tax (benefit) was ($65.2) million for 2000 compared to a provision of $89.3 million for 1999,
The effective tax rate for 2000 was (66.5%) compared to 33.2% for 1999. The effective tax rate for year 2000 is not meaningful due
to the high proportion of permanent tax differences, including certain one-time tax benefits included in operating earnings, in
relation to the recorded pretax loss. For additional information with respect to Sovereign’s income taxes, see Note 18 in the
"Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements" hereof.

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.

Incorporated by reference from Part I, item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of
Operations — Asset and Liability Management" hereof.

ltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:

Financial Statements

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. ("Sovereign"} is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of its published financial
statements as of December 31, 2001, and the year then ended. The consolidated financial statements of Sovereign have been
prepared in accardance with generally accepted accounting principles and, as such, include some amounts that are based on
judgments and estimates of management.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting. The system contains
monitoring mechanisms and actions are taken to correct deficiencies identified.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any internal control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention
or overriding of controls. Accordingly, even effective internal control can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation. Further, because of changes in conditions, the effectiveness of internal control may vary over time.

Management assessed Sovereign’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2001, This assessment was based
on criteria for effective internal control over financial reporting described in "Internal Control—Integrated Framework" issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this assessment, management believes that
Sovereign maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2001,

W /@M@W %

Jay S. Sidhu James D. Hogan George S. Rapp
President and Chief Chief Financial Officer Chief Accounting Officer
Executive Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
SOVEREIGN BANCORP, INC.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2001 and 2000,

and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of Sovereign. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2001 Sovereign changed its method of accounting for its derivative financial instruments.

St + MLLF

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
January 18, 2002
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{in thousands, except share data}

Assets
Cash and amounts due from depository INStHULIONS .. ..o i e
TG e o TaTe e (=] oo 1
Investment securities available for sale ... ...
Investment securities held to maturity (fair value approximates $883,208 in 2001 and

$1,871,896 i 2000) oottt e e s
Loans (including loans held for sale of $308,950 in 2001 and $59,993 in 2000) ...... ... o ittt e e
Al OWaNCE 0T 108N 10858 .« o oottt e e e
PremiSes AN BQU DB ... ittt e e e e e e e e
Other real estate owned (including other repossessed assets of $3,667 in 2001 and

83,788 N 2000) .ot e e
Accrued Interest reCEIVADIE .. .. e e e e
Goodwill and other INtangible @SSEES .. ...ttt i e
Bank awned [ife INSUrANCe ... ..o i e
Other assets

Liabilities
Deposits and other CUSTOMBT A0C0UNTS ... ittt ittt ettt et et e e e e e e e e
BT OIS .« et e e e e e e
Long-term debt:

Repurchase agreements and FHLB advances . ... ... ..
Senior secured Credit faCility .. ... . e e
Senior notes and subordinated debentures .. ... . i
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and iNSUMBNCE . .. ...ttt e et e e e e
Other liabilities

Company-chligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trust holding junior
subordinated debentures of Sovereign ("Trust Preferred Securities") ...... .. i i
Minority interest-preferred securities of subsidiaries .. ...... ... i

Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock; no par value; $50 liquidation preference; 7,500,000 shares authorized;

0 shares issued and OUESTANAING . ..ttt e e e
Common stock; no par value; 400,000,000 shares authorized; issued 252,386,163 in 2001 and 231,465,030 in 2000 .........
VBT ANES Lt
Unallocated common stock held by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan

(4,247,873 in 2001 shares and 4,565,924 in 2000 shares at CoSt) . ..ottt i i e e
Treasury stock {108,792 in 2001 shares and 397,756 in 2000 Shares @t COSt) ...\ vuvrr it eie e e
Restricted stock (559,791 shares in 2007, @t COSEl .. .o vttt e
Accumulated other COmMPrENeNSIVE 0SS L .\ .o vt e et e e e e
RetainBd BaMMINGS ot i et i e e e e e e

Total Stockholders’ EqUItY . ..ot e e e e e e
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ EQUItY .. ... v e e e

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial staiements,

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000

$ 887,964 $ 945,196
19,315 14,447
9,581,679 5,315,584
883,437 1,978,268
20,399,584 21,912,245
(264,6567) (256,356)
251,587 290,134
18,928 8,183
183,913 230,514
1,343,804 1,455,331
706,175 612,580
1,463,019 951,671
$35,474,838 $33,457,797
$23,297,574 $24,498,917
2,678,764 1,330,900
4,260,928 3,544,984
225,000 350,792
1,775,077 1,013,632
20,943 24,009
406,270 287,464

$ 32,664,557 $ 31,050,698
404,136 319,545
203,664 138,670
1,416,267 1,259,374
91,500 91,500
{30,945) (33,230)
(515) (3,789)

(6,272) —
(33,135) (38,521)
765,581 673,550
2,202,481 1,948,884
$35,474,838 $33,457,797




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

{in thousands except per share datal YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999
Interest Income:
Interest on interest-earning deposits . ...... ... $ 2,622 $ 22,158 3 4721
Interest and dividends on investment securities:
available fOr Sale ... e e e e 538,318 487,448 543,631
BEld 10 MATUIIY oo e i e e e e 68,607 132,442 99,813
Interest and feeS ON 10ANS . ... o i i e 1,613,028 1,627,687 959,164
Total INterest iNCOME . ...\ttt 2,222,475 2,269,735 1,607,329
Interest Expense:
[Nterest 0N dEpOSIES ... ot e e 705,886 735,087 440,826
Interest on borrowings and fong-termdebt ... ... ... o 462,307 679,837 551,847
Total INterest XPENSE . . . .ottt ittt e e e e e 1,168,193 1,414,924 992,673
Nt iNterest INCOME oo 1,054,282 854,811 614,656
Provision for 10an 108888 ... .. o ot 97,100 56,500 30,000
Net interest income after provision forloan losses ........ ... . i, 857,182 798,311 584,656
Other Income:
CONSUMEI fBES .t i e 157,502 97,081 57,110
ComMMEICIal fBES . . ot et e e e 75,825 36,913 6,480
Mortgage banking revenue ... . 69,509 25,207 29,926
Capital markets TeVeNUE . ...t e 11,185 11,090 —
Bank owned life INSUIaNCE .. ..t it e e e 42,671 34,324 24,126
MiSCEIIANEOUS INCOMIE ot ittt e e et e 53,863 15,661 3,175
Total fees and other iNCOMe ... . . i e 410,555 220,276 120,817
Gain/{loss) on sale of investment securities and related derivatives ........................ 15,511 {(111,715) 9,525
Total Other INCOME ..t e e et e e 426,066 108,561 130,342
General and Administrative Expenses:
Compensation and benefits ... .. o it 318,685 270,799 154,880
Occupancy and BQUIPMENT . ... ottt et e e e 220,311 168,629 67,564
Technology BXPENSE . ..t e 71,654 46,396 25,882
OULSIAE SBIVICES o\ vttt ittt e e e e e e 53,109 119,792 67,458
Other administrative ... ..ot i i e e 125,358 135,875 77,145
Total general and administrative EXPENSES ..ottt e i 789,118 731,491 392,929
Other Operating Expenses:
Amortization of goodwill and otherintangibles ........ ... ... . 133,551 98,940 37,967
Trust Preferred Securities and other minority interest eXpense . ........vvveirereniireeennns 59,063 44,293 15,393
Other real estate owned (gains)/loSSes, Net ... .. ...t e {170) {180) 95
REStrUCIUIING oottt e e e e e e e e 8,500 18,500 —
NON-SOlICItAtION BXPENSE . .. oottt et et e e e e 243,241 120,060 —
Total other Operating BXPENSES . .\ttt e e e 444,185 281,613 R 53,455
Income/(loss) before INCOME taxes .. ... .. it e 149,945 (108,232} 268,614
Income tax provision/{benefit) ... ... 26,575 (65,215) 89,315
INCOIVIE/(LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEM .. ...... ... i 123,370 {41,017) 179,299
Extraordinary item {net of tax of $3,526 and $5,225) . ...t (6,549) 10,775 —
NET INCOME/(LOSS) .o e e e $ 116,821 $ (30,242) $ 179,299
Earnings/{loss) per share:
Basic
Income/(loss) before extraordinary item . ... . . $ 0.51 $ {0.18) $ 1.02
Extraordinary HemM ... . {0.03) 0.05 —
Net IncomE/l10SS) . .o ot $ 0.48 $ {0.13) $1.02
Diluted
Income/(loss) before extraordinary item ... .. ... e $ 0.48 $ (0.18) $ 1.01
EXtraordingry 1B ... e (0.03) 0.05 —
NELINCOME/IOSS) e e $ 0.45 $ {0.13) $ 1.01
Dividends Declared Per Common Share ..... ... ... .. . i . $ .10 $ .10 $ .10

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

{in thousends) COMMON
SHARES COMMON RETAINED
OUTSTANDING STOCK WARRANTS  EARNINGS
Balance, December 31, 1998 ... oottt e 159,665 $ 651,808 § — $§ 564,585
Comprehensive income:
Nl M COME . o e —_ —_ — 179,299
Change in unrecognized gain/{loss) on investment securities
available for sale, net of tax . ... .o — — — —
Total COMPIENENSIVE [0S .ottt e e e
Issuance of COMMON STOCK . ... .o 43,810 331,478 — —
[ssuance of Warrants ... ... —_ — 91,500 —
EXercise of stOCK OptiONS ..o . it 721 6,919 — —
Cash in fieu of fractional shares . ........ciu it i i i e e — (6) — —
i Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and
Employee Stock Purchase Plan . ... o 408 4,412 — —
] Dividends paid on common StOCK .. ..ottt e e e — — — (17,104}
Treasury stock repurchased .. ..o vttt (3,351) — — —
Treasury StOCK SOId .o i e e 26 — — —
Allocation of shares under Employee Stock OwnershipPlan ............. .. ... o it 270 1,255 — —
Acquisition of Network CompPanies .. ..o o 235 3,000 — —
Acquisition of People’s Bancorp, InC ... o 23,624 255,171 — —
Balance, December 31, 1999 ... .. i 225,408 1,254,037 91,500 726,780
Comprehensive income:
Nt O Lo o e e — — — (30,242)
Change in unrecognized gain/{loss) on investment securities
available for sale, Net Of tax . ... o ot — —_— —_ —
Total ComMPreneNSIVE IMCOME L .t r et et e e e
Exercise of stock Options ... i 196 678 — —
Cash inlieu of fractional shares ... ... ... o i e — (3) - {79)
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and
Employee Stock Purchase Plan ... ..o . o i 621 4,569 — —
Dividends patd on common stock ... ..o — — — (22,420)
Treasury stock repurchased . ... ... (62) — — —
Treasury StOCK SOlA .. o . e e 48 — — —
Allocation of shares under Employee
Stock Ownership Plan ... 290 93 — (489)
Balance, December 31, 2000 .........ooounaie e 226,507 1,259,374 91,500 673,550
Comprehensive income:
[N V=3 AT T T 1= — — — 116,821
Effect of change in accounting principle for derivatives .............. ... ... .. ... ... - - - -
Change in unrecognized gain/{loss), net of tax:
Investments available forsale ... .. .. . e — — — —
Derivative financial inStruUmeEnts . ... . o e — — — —
Total comprehensive INCOME ... v
Issuance of COMMON STOCK .. it 20,000 149,000 — —
Exercise of stoCk OpliONS ..o e 4390 3,046 - -
Cash in lieu of fractional shares ... ... .. . i i i - (8) - {137)
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and
. Employee Stock Purchase Plan ... .. .. i e 432 3,911 — —_
4 Dividends paid on common stock . ... .. . - - — (24,653)
] Treasury stock repurchased . ... ...t (64) — — —
y Treasury StOCK SOIA . v vttt e 88 (20) — —
] Treasury stock transferred to restricted stock ... .. . o — — - -
Restricted stock repurchased ... (295) — — —
Allocation of shares under Employee Stock OwnershipPlan ... 318 964 — —
Balance, Dacember 31, 2007 ... . . i i e e e s $ 247,470 $ 1416267 § 91,500 $ 765,581

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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ACCUMULATED

UNVESTED UNALLOCATED OTHER TOTAL
TREASURY RESTRICTED STOCK HELD COMPREHENSIVE STOCKHOLDERS'
STOCK STOCK BY ESQP INCOME EQUITY
Balance, December 31,1988 . ...... ... ... ... ... L $ {1,088) $ — $ (29,359) $ 18,120 $ 1,204,068
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ... ..o i e — — — — 179,299
Change in unrecognized loss on investment securities
available for sale, netoftax .......................... — — — (229,052) (225,052)
Total comprehensive 0SS ... ... e (49,753}
Issuance of commonstock ....... .. . i — — — — 331,478
Issuance of warrants . ... ... i — — — — 91,500
Exercise of stock options  ............ .. — — — — 6,919
Cash in lieu of fractional shares ............... .. ... ... .. — — — — (6)
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and
Employee Stock Purchase Plan ...... .. ...t — — — — 4,412
Dividends paid on commonstock ......... ... ... o — — — — (17,104)
Treasury stock repurchased . ... i i o (47,152) — — — (47,152)
Treasury stock sold .. ...t 285 — — — 285
Allocation of shares under Employee Stock Ownership Plan ... .. — — 1,834 — 3,089
Acquisition of Network Companies ............c.ovviiioi... — — — — 3,000
Acquisition of People’s Bancorp, Inc ........... ... 44,358 — (8,770) — 290,759
Balance, December 31,1999 ............ ... ... ...l (3,595) — (36,295) (210,932) 1,821,495
Comprehensive income:
Net 0SS v e — — — — (30,242)
Change in unrecognized loss on investment securities
available for sale, netoftax ................ ... ... ... — — — 172,411 172,411
Total comprehensive income ... i 142,169
Exercise of stock options ... ... i i — — — — 678
Cash in lieu of fractional shares .................. .. ........ - — — — (82)
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and
Employee Stock Purchase Plan ............ ... ... ... — — — — 4,569
Dividends paid on commonstock .......... ... .. 0 — — — — (22,420)
Treasury stock repurchased ........... .. i (473) — — — (473)
Treasury stock sold ... .. ... e 279 — — — 279
Allocation of shares under Employee
Stock OwnershipPlan ........... ..o i — — 3,065 — 2,669
Balance, December 31,2000 .............. ... ... ol (3,789) — (33,230) (38,521) 1,948,884
Comprehensive income:
Netincome .. ...t e — - - - 116,821
Effect of change in accounting principle for derivatives ....... - - - {9,851) {9,951)
Change in unrecognized gain/{loss), net of tax:
Investments available forsale ............. ... ... ... .. - - — 46,039 46,039
Derivative financial instruments . ............ ........... — —_ — (30,702) (30,702)
Total comprehensive income  ........... ot 122,207
[ssuance of commonstock ....... ... ool — - - - 149,000
Exercise of stock options  .......... . —_ - - — 3,046
Cash in tieu of fractional shares ........ ... ... .. ... - — - - (145)
Sale of stock under Dividend Reinvestment and
Employee Stock Purchase Plan ......... ... ... ... ... ... - —_ — — 3,911
Dividends paid on common stock ......... ... oo - - - - (24,653)
Treasury stock repurchased . ...... .. i il (701) — - {701}
Treasury stock sold ... vt i 786 - - - 766
Treasury stock transferred to restricted stock .................. 3,188 (3,189) — - -
Restricted stock repurchased . ....... ... ... ... ... oo — (3,083} — — {3,083}
Allocation of shares under Employee Stock Ownership Plan .. .. .. —_ - 2,285 — 3,249
Balance, December 31,2001 .............. ... .. ... ..., $ (515) $ 6,272) $ (30,945) $ (33,135) $§ 2,202,481

See accompanying notes to consolidated financia! statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

fin thousands} YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999
N Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
] NEt INCOME/(l0SS) « vttt e e $ 116,821 $ (30,242} 3 179,299
| Adjustments to reconcile net income/(loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
’ Provision for [0an 10SSeS ...ttt 87,100 56,500 30,000
_ D e e 1aXES .+ ottt e {15,599) (49,833) 18,852
Depreciation and amortization . ... ... L e 175,316 128,587 18,802
Amortization/accretion of investment securities and loan discounts ............ ... ... ... 23,584 (34,747} 58,830
(Gain) loss on sale of investments and related derivatives .......... .. ..ol (15,511) 111,715 (9,525)
(Gain) 10ss 0N real @State OWNEBA . ...\ i ittt ettt et e e 170 180 {95)
(Gain) loss on sale of fiXxed 3SSELS ... vttt e e {1,376} (165) —
(Gain} loss on extinguishmentofdebt ............ . .. 10,075 (16,000) —
Allocation of Employee Stock Ownership Plan ... ... . o i i i 2,285 3,065 3,089
Net change in:
Unrealized (gain) loss onderivatives ......... .. ..o i {40,654) — —
Loans held for sale ... ..o e (248,957) 8,811 235,005
Accrued interest receivable ... ... 45,601 (11,829) (9,262)
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ... e (545,781) (651,297) (268,087)
Other liabilities . ... o 118,806 296,326 (280,708)
Net cash (used) by operating activities ... ... o i (277,120) (188,929) (23,608)

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Proceeds from sales of investment SBCUMTIES . ... i i i i e e e e e e 6,081,704 8,248,463 5,653,469
Proceeds from repayments and maturities of investment securities:
Available for Sale ... s 1,744,100 836,465 1,644,019
Held to Maturity ..o o e e 289,463 4,255,897 793,031
Purchases of investment securities:
Available for sale ... ..o (10,586,894) (6,157,701) (8,024,026)
: HElO 10 MatUIY ottt e e e e e e e (1,224) (2,704,498) (1,312,372)
: Proceeds fromsales of loans . ...... ... i e 3,724,085 2,385,619 1,188,173
Purchase of 10ans ... o o (1,989,269) (2,572,063) {2,022,695)
Net change in loans other than purchasesandsales.................coo . {826,284) 463,389 (1,561,471)
] Proceeds from sales of premises and equipment . ...... ..t 32,059 48,430 5,757
Purchases of premises and equipment . . ...ttt (19,673) (178,106) (39,844)
] Proceeds from sales of real estate owned ... ... i 8,275 3,624 17,081
Net cash received from/(paid for) business combinations ............. ... .. ... - 1,916,345 112,998
b Net cash provided (used) by investing activities ........ ... i i (1,543,658} 6,543,924 (3,645,880)
g Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
4 Net increase/(decrease) in deposits and other customer accounts . ........ ..., (1,201,343} 210,550 {1,117,500)
Net increase/(decrease) in short-term borrowings ... v 1,346,975 (5,449,523} 2,023,868
! Proceeds from long-termnotes ... i 1,346,000 813,068 2,500,894
i Repayments of IONG-terM NOTES . ... vt (590,000) (569,982} {455,959)
] Net increase in other long-termdebt ........ ... ... . i 595,418
Sale of FHLB advanCes ... . s — (911,037} —
Net increase/{decrease) in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance ........... (3,068) (4,213} 568
Proceeds from the issuance of preferred stock by subsidiary ............ ... ... ... ... - 140,396 —
Proceeds from minority inferest ... .. 64,187 — —
Proceeds from issuance of Trust Preferred Securities ................. ... oo i i i 96,166 — 187,231
Repurchase of Trust preferred . ... . o e {15,029) — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock . ... i 156,893 5,337 342,803
Proceeds from issuance of Warrants ... ..ot e - — 91,500
Advance to the Employee Stock OwnershipPlan ... ... o i — — (436)
{Purchasel/issuance of restricted StOCk ... ...t e (3,083}
{(Purchaselfissuance of treasury stock . . .. .. o 85 (194} (46,867)
Cash dividends paid to stockholders ... . i (24,790) (22,988) (17,104)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities ........ ... . i 1,768,414 (5,788,586) 3,508,998
Net change in cash and cash equivalents .. ....... ... i (52,364) 566,409 {160,490)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period .. ......... ... ... oo 959,643 393,234 553,724
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period ... ... v $ 907,279 $ 959,643 $ 393,234




Supplemental Disclosures: Income tax payments totaled $33.6 million in 2001, $6.2 million in 2000, and $101 million in
1999. Interest payments totaled $1.2 billion in 2001, $1.4 miilion in 2000, and $963 million in 1999. Noncash activity consisted of
acquisitions which included $9.1 billion of loans and assumption of $12.3 billion of deposits in 2000, and $551 million of loans and
assumption of $515 million in deposits in 1999. Other noncash activity consisted of a mortgage loan securitization of $587 million in
2001, $1.2 billion in 2000, and $1.0 billion in 1999; reclassification of long-term borrowings to short-term borrowings of $950 million
in 2000, and $536 million in 1999; and reclassification of mortgage loans to real estate owned of $13.3 millicn in 2001, $6.2 million

in 2000, and $11.7 miliion in 1999,

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries ("Sovereign" or "the Company"} is a Pennsylvania business corporation and is the holding
company of Sovereign Bank ("Sovereign Bank" or "the Bank"). Sovereign is headquartered in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and
Sovereign Bank is headquartered in Wyomissing, Pennsylvania. Sovereign’s primary business consists of attracting deposits from
its network of community banking offices, located throughout eastern Pennsylvania, New Jersey, New Hampshire, Massachusetts,
Connecticut and Rhode [sland, and originating commercial, consumer and residential mortgage loans in those communities.
Sovereign also serves customers throughout New York.

The following is a description of the significant accounting policies of Sovereign. Such accounting policies are in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and have been followed on a consistent basis.

a. Principles of Consolidation - The accompanying financial statements include the accounts of the parent company, Sovereign
Bancorp, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiaries: Sovereign Bank, Sovereign Delaware Investment Corporation, Sovereign Capital
Trust I, Sovereign Capital Trust Il, Sovereign Capital Trust lll, and ML Capital Trust I. All material intercompany balances and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

b. Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

¢. Per Share Information Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing income available to common stockholders by the
weighted average common shares outstanding, excluding options, warrants, and convertible securities from the calculation. In
calculating diluted earnings per share, the dilutive effect of options and warrants is calculated using the treasury stock method using
the average market price of the period. The dilutive effect of preferred stock is calculated using the if-converted method. See Note 23
for computation of earnings per share.

d. Interest-earning Deposits - Interest-earning deposits consist of deposit accounts with other financial institutions generally
having maturities of three months or less.

e. Investment Securities - Investment securities that the Company has the intent and ahility to hold to maturity are classified
as held to maturity and reported at amortized cost. Securities expected to be held for an indefinite period of time are classified as
available for sale and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains and losses reported as a component of comprehensive income
within stockholders’ equity, net of estimated income taxes. Gains or losses on the sales of securities are recognized at trade date
utilizing the specific identification method.

In determining if and when a decline in market value below amortized cost is other-than-temporary, Sovereign evaluates the market
conditions, offering prices, trends of earnings, price multiples, and other key measures for its investments in marketable equity
securities and debt instruments. When such a decline in value is deemed to be other-than-temporary, the Company recognizes an
impairment loss in the current period operating results to the extent of the decline.

f. Loans Held for Sale - Loans held for sale are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated fair value on an aggregate basis.
Gains and losses are included in the consolidated statements of operations.

g. Mortgage Banking Activity - Sovereign recognizes, as separate assets, the rights to service mortgage loans, whether those
rights are acquired through loan purchase or loan origination activities. The initial recognition of originated mortgage servicing
assets is predicated upon an allocation of the total cost of the related loans between the loans and the loan servicing rights based on
their relative estimated fair values. Purchased mortgage servicing assets are recorded at cost. Excess servicing fees are computed as
the present value of the difference between the estimated future net revenues and normal servicing net revenues as established by
the federally sponsored secondary market makers. Resultant premiums are deferred and amortized over the estimated life of the
related mortgages using the constant yield method.
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NQTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Mortgage servicing rights are amortized against loan servicing fee income on an accelerated basis in proportion to, and over

the period of, estimated net future loan servicing fee income, which periods initially do not exceed eight years. For purposes of
measuring impairment of capitalized mortgage servicing rights and minimizing the impact of risk, Sovereign conservatively
evaluates the loans underlying these rights by stratifying them into certain homogeneous categories which inctude, but are not
limited to, residential real estate 30-year and 15-year fixed rate mortgage loans, adjustable rate mortgage loans and balloon loans.
See Note 6 for details of mortgage banking activity.

h. Allowance for Loan Losses - An allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management considers adequate
to provide for losses based upon an evaluation of known and inherent risks in the loan portfolio. Management's evaluation takes
into consideration the risks inherent in the loan portfolio, past loan loss experience, specific loans which have losses, geographic
and industry concentrations, delinquency trends, economic conditions, the level of griginations and other relevant factors. While
management uses the best information available to make such evaluations, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary
if conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations.

The allowance for loan losses consists of two elements: (i) an allocated allowance, which is comprised of allowances established
on specific loans, and class allowances based on historical loan loss experience and current trends, and (ii) unallocated allowances
based on both general economic conditions and other risk factors in the Company’s individual markets and portfolios, and to
account for a level of imprecision in management’s estimation process.

The specific allowance element is based on a regular analysis of criticized commercial loans where internal credit ratings are
below a predetermined classification. This analysis is performed at the relationship manager level, and periodically reviewed by
the Commercial Asset Review Department. The specific allowance established for these criticized loans is based on a careful
analysis of related collateral value, cash flow considerations and, if applicable, guarantor capacity.

The class allowance element is determined by an internal loan grading process in conjunction with associated allowance factors.
These class allowance factors are updated at least quarterly and are based primarily on actual historical loss experience, projected
loss experience based on current conditions, consultation with regulatory authorities, and peer group loss experience. While this
analysis is conducted at least quarterly, the Company has the ability to revise the class allowance factors whenever necessary in
order to address improving or deteriorating credit quality trends or specific risks associated with a given loan pool classification.

Regardless of the extent of the Company’s analysis of customer performance, portfolio evaluations, trends or risk management
processes established, certain inherent, but undetected losses are probable within the loan portfalio. This is due to several factors
including inherent delays in obtaining information regarding a customer’s financial condition or changes in their unique business
conditions, the judgmental nature of individual loan evaluations, collateral assessments and the interpretation of economic trends,
and the sensitivity of assumptions utilized to establish allocated allowances for homogeneous groups of loans among other factors,
The Company maintains an unallocated allowance to recognize the existence of these exposures.

These other risk factors are continuously reviewed and revised by management where conditions indicate that the estimates initially
applied are different from actual results.

A comprehensive analysis of the allowance for loan losses is performed by the Company on a quarterly basis. In addition, a review
of allowance levels based on nationally published statistics is conducted on an annual basis. The Chief Credit Officer, the Chief Risk
Management Officer and the Chairman of the Asset Review Committee have the responsibility to affirm allowance methodology
and to assess the general and specific allowance factors in relation to estimated and actual net charge-off trends. In addition, the
group is also responsible for assessing the appropriateness of the aliowance for loan losses for each loan pool classification at
Sovereign.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

i. Loans - Loans are reported net of unearned income. Interest on loans is credited to income as it is earned. Loan origination
fees and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and recognized as adjustments to interest income in the consolidated
statement of operations over the contractual life of the loan utilizing the level yield method, except in the case of certain discounted
loans in which a portion of the net deferred fee may be amortized over the discount period. Interest income is not recognized on
loans when the loan payment is 90 days or more delinquent (except auto loans, government-guaranteed loans, residential and
consumer loans with loan to values less than 50% which are placed on non-accrual after 120 days, or loans secured by deposit
accounts) or sooner if management believes the loan has become impaired.

A non-accrual loan is a loan in which it is probable that scheduled payments of principal and interest will not be paid when due
according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, all accrued yet uncollected
interest is reversed from income. Payments received on non-accrual loans are generally applied to the outstanding principal
balance. In order for a non-accrual loan to revert to accruing status, all delinquent interest must be paid and Sovereign must
approve a repayment plan.

Loans delinguent 180 days or more {120 days for auto loans) are charged-off unless it can be clearly demonstrated that repayment
will occur regardless of the delinquency status. Examples of this would include: a loan which is secured by collateral and is in the
process of collection; a loan supported by a valid guarantee or insurance; or a loan supported by a valid claim against a solvent
gstate.

For purposes of measuring impairment as set forth by the provisions of SFAS No. 114 "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a
Loan" and SFAS No. 118 "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and Disclosure", Sovereign
defines impaired loans as non-accrual, non-homogeneous loans and certain other loans which are still accruing, which management
has specifically identified as being impaired.

i. Premises and Equipment - Premises and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
calculated utilizing the straight-line method. Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Office DUIIINGS . oo i e e e e e 10 to 30 years
Leasehold IMProVEmMENtS . ... i i e e e e e Remaining lease term*
Furniture, fixtures and equUipmMENt ... e e e e 3to 10 years
AUtOMODIlES o 5 years

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.
*Including option periods, if applicable.

k. Other Real Estate Owned - Other real estate owned ("OREQ") consists of properties acquired by or in lieu of foreclosure.
OREO is stated at the lower of cost or estimated fair value minus estimated costs to sell. Write-downs of OREO which occur after
the initial transfer from the loan portfolio and costs of holding the property are recorded as other operating expenses, except for
significant property improvements which are capitalized to the extent that carrying value does not exceed estimated fair value.

l. Income Taxes - Deferred income taxes are provided on temporary differences between amounts reported for financial
statement and tax purposes.

m. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity - Sovereign enters into derivative transactions principally to protect against the
risk of adverse price or interest rate movements on the value of certain assets and liabilities and on expected future cash flows. The
Company is also required to recognize certain commitments as derivatives when the characteristics of those commitments meet the
definition of a derivative.




NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Effective January 1, 2001, Sovereign adopted SFAS 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities", as amended,
which requires all derivative instruments to be carried at fair value on the balance sheet. SFAS 133 provides special hedge account-
ing provisions, which permit the change in the fair value of the hedged item related to the risk being hedged to be recognized in
garnings in the same period and in the same income statement line as the change in fair value of the derivative.

Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset, liability,
or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges under SFAS 133.
Derivative instruments designated in a hedge relationship to mitigate exposure to variability in expected future cash flows, or other
types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow hedges. The Company formally documents all relationships between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk-management objective and strategy for undertaking each hedge transaction.

Fair value hedges are accounted for by recording the fair value of the derivative instrument and the fair value related to the risk
being hedged of the hedged asset or liability on the balance sheet with corresponding offsets recorded in the income statement. The
adjustment to the hedged asset or liability is included in the basis of the hedged item, while the fair value of the derivative is recorded
as a freestanding asset or liability. Actual cash receipts or payments and related amounts accrued during the period on derivatives
included in a fair value hedge relationship are recorded as adjustments to the interest income or expense recorded on the hedged
asset or liability.

Cash flow hedges are accounted for by recording the fair value of the derivative instrument on the balance sheet as either a
freestanding asset or liability, with a corresponding offset recorded in other comprehensive income within stockholders' equity,
net of tax. Amounts are reclassified from other comprehensive income to the income statement in the period or periods the
hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings.

Under both the fair value and cash flow hedge scenarios, derivative gains and losses not considered highly effective in hedging
the change in fair value or expected cash flows of the hedged item are recognized immediately in the income statement. The
Company typically uses interest rate swaps in cash flow and fair value hedge transactions. The interest rate swaps are designed to
be highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged asset or liability. The hedge transactions typically
qualify under SFAS 133 to receive the "short-cut” method. Under the short-cut method, changes in the fair value of the derivative
are assumed to perfectly offset changes in the hedged asset or liability and there is no impact on net income. Hedge transactions
that qualify for the short-cut method require no additional analysis after inception of the hedge. For hedge transactions that do not
qualify for the short-cut method, at the hedge's inception and on a regular basis thereafter, a formal assessment is performed to
determine whether changes in the fair values or cash flows of the derivative instruments have been highly effective in offsetting
changes in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged items and whether they are expected to be highly effective in the future. If
it is determined a derivative instrument has not been or will not continue to be highly effective as a hedge, hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively and the derivative instrument continues to be carried at fair value but with no corresponding offset
being recorded on the hedged item.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001, unrealized gains and losses on derivatives used for hedging purposes were
generally not required to be recorded in the financial statements. Realized gains and losses on contracts either settled or terminated
were recorded as an adjustment to the basis of the on-balance sheet asset or liability being hedged and amortized into the income
statement over either the remaining life of the derivative instrument or the expected life of the asset or liability. If the hedged asset
or liability also was terminated, the gain or loss was recognized immediately. Net amounts receivable or payabie on contracts
hedging either interest earning assets or interest bearing liabilities were accrued as an adjustment to either interest income or
interest expense. On January 1, 2001, after-tax transition amounts associated with establishing the fair values of the derivative
instruments and hedged items on the balance sheet of $0.7 million and ($6.7) million were recorded as an increase of net income
and a reduction in other comprehensive income, respectively. Additionally, as allowed by SFAS 133, Sovereign reclassified

$800 million of held to maturity securities to available for sale on January 1, 2001. These securities had an unrealized loss of
{$3.2) million, net of tax of $1.7 million, at January 1, 2001,

54




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SHGNHHCAN’U’ ACCOUNTING PGOLICIES (CONTINUED)

n. Foreign Exchange - Sovereign enters into forward exchange contracts to provide for the needs of its customers. Forward
exchange contracts are valued at current exchange rates. All gains or losses on forward exchange contracts are included in capital
markets revenue.

o. Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows - For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and
amounts due from depository institutions, interest-earning deposits and securities purchased under resale agreements with an
original maturity of three months or less.

p. Reclassifications - Certain amounts in the financial statements of prior periods have been reclassified to conform with the
presentation used in current period financial statements. These reclassifications have no effect on net income.

q. Goodwill and Other Intangibles - Core deposit intangibles are a measure of the value of checking and savings deposits
acquired in business combinations accounted for as purchases. Core deposit intangibles are generally amortized using an accelerated
method over the estimated lives of the existing deposit relationships acquired, but not exceeding 10 years. Goodwill is the excess
of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets of companies acquired through business
combinations accounted for as purchases. In finalizing a purchase allocation, the Company cansiders all the facts that come to its
attention during the allocation period, not to exceed 12 months, and, if necessary, will adjust the purchase price allocation
accordingly based on such facts.

Through December 31, 2001, goodwill is amortized using the straight {ine method over various periods not exceeding 25 years.
Beginning on January 1, 2002, goodwill will cease to be amortized - See Pending Accounting Pronouncements in a later section of
this Note. Under generally accepted accounting principles existing through December 31, 2001, the carrying amount of the goodwill
is reviewed if facts and circumstances suggest that it may be impaired. If this review indicates that goodwill will not be recoverable,
as determined based on the loss of economic value, the carrying amount of the goodwill is reduced by the estimated loss of value.
in addition, goodwill associated with impaired long-lived assets is included in the impairment evaluation which Sovereign assesses
under the rules of SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed
Of". At December 31, 2001, Sovereign had $955 million and $389 million of goodwill and core deposit intangibles, respectively.

r. Segment Reporting - SFAS No. 131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information" requires that
public companies report certain information about operating segments. It also requires that public companies report certain
information about their products and services, the geographic areas in which they operate, and their major customers. Sovereign
is a large regional bank which offers a wide array of products and services to its customers. Pursuant to its banking strategy,
emphasis is placed on building relationships with its customers, as opposed to building specific lines of business. As a result, at
December 31, 2001 and 2000 Sovereign is not organized around discernable lines of business and prefers to work as an integrated
unit to customize solutions for its customers, with business line emphasis and product offerings changing over time as needs and
demands change. Thus, all necessary requirements of SFAS No. 131 have been met by Sovereign as of December 31, 2001.

s. Asset Securitizations - When the Company sells home equity loans, automobile and recreational vehicle loans, and residen-
tial mortgage loans, it may retain interest only strips, one or more subordinated tranches, servicing rights, and in some cases a cash
reserve account, all of which are retained interests in the securitized receivables. Gain or loss on sale of the receivables depends in
part on the previous carrying amount of the financial assets involved in the transfer, allocated between the assets sold and the
retained interests based on their relative fair value at the date of the transfer. The Company generally estimates fair value based on
the present value of expected future cash flows estimated using management's best estimates of the key assumptions-credit losses,
pre-payment speeds, forward yield curves, and discount rates commensurate with the risks involved.

t. Pending Accounting Proncuncements - In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statements of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, "Business Combinations”, and No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets", effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. Under the new rules, goodwill will no longer be amortized but will be subject to
annual impairment tests in accordance with the Statements. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful lives.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Company will apply SFAS 142 beginning in the first quarter of 2002. Application of the nonamortization provisions of SFAS 142
is expected to result in an increase in net income of $30 million {$.11 per share) in 2002. The Company will test goodwill for impairment
using the two-step process within the first half of 2002 as prescribed in SFAS 142, The first step is a screen for potential impairment
of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets, while the second step measures the amount of the impairment, if any. The
Company has not yet determined what the effect of these tests will be on its earnings and financial position. The Company currently
evaluates goodwill for impairment if facts and circumstances suggest that it may be impaired. Management believes that no such
circumstances existed at December 31, 2001. Any impairment that is required to be recognized when adopting SFAS 142 will be
reflected as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in 2002

NOTE 2 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

On July 17, 2001, Sovereign announced the signing of a definitive agreement to acquire Main Street Bancorp, Inc. for approximately
$170 million in stock and cash. Main Street is a $1.5 billion bank holding company headquartered in Reading, Pennsylvania, with

42 community banking offices serving southeastern Pennsylvania. The transaction was completed on March 8, 2002 and provided
Sovereign with approximately $1.3 billion of deposits and $800 million of loans before purchase accounting adjustments, enhancing
Sovereign's small business and middle market lending capabilities in the region.

On February 28, 2000, Sovereign entered into an amended purchase and assumption agreement with FleetBoston Financial to
acquire branch banking offices located in Connecticut, Massachusetts, New Hampshire and Rhode Island, and related deposit
liabilities, loans and other assets associated with the business of those branches (the "New England Acquisition"). In total, the

Bank purchased 281 community banking offices (exclusive of 4 locations which were resold to a third party). The New England
Acquisition, which resulted in the creation of Sovereign Bank New England division of Sovereign Bank ("SBNE") included the former
Fleet Bank community banking franchise in eastern Massachusetts; the entire former BankBoston community banking franchise in
Rhode Island; and select community banking offices of Fleet Bank in Southern New Hampshire and BankBoston in Connecticut.

In addition, Sovereign acquired a substantial portion of the middle market and small business-lending group from Fleet Bank in
Massachusetts and New Hampshire, and from BankBoston in Rhode Island and Connecticut. The New England Acquisition included
the purchase of fuily functioning business units, with the necessary management, relationship officers, support staff and other
infrastructure for the acquired loans and deposits to be fully serviced.

In March, June and July 2000, Sovereign completed each of the three phases of the New England Acquisition. Sovereign'’s results
include the operations of these acquired SBNE branches, assets and liabilities from their respective acquisition dates, and thereafter.
Total liabilities assumed through the acquisition were $12.3 billion. Additionally, tangible assets purchased by Sovereign included
loan balances of $9.1 billion, which included $3.1 billion of commercial loans and leases, $1.7 billion of consumer loans and

$4.3 billion of residential mortgages (inclusive of $1.1 billion of residential mortgage loans which were not relationship assets that
were subsequently sold as part of Sovereign's asset-liability management strategy to reduce interest-rate risk), $85 million of currency,
$68 million of premises and equipment, $180 million of precious metals inventory and $213 million of prepaid and other miscellaneous
assets. Cash received, net of the premium paid, was $1.9 billion.

Identifiable intangible assets acquired included $352 million of core deposit intangible (CDI), which represents the value of the
customer relationships associated with demand, savings, and money market accounts. Sovereign established the value of the CDI
based on the present value of the difference in expected future cash flows between the cost to replace such deposits (based on
applicable equivalent time deposit rates) versus the then-current yield on core deposits acquired. The estimated future cash flows
were based on the average expected life of the deposits acquired using average run-off factors for each product less the cost to service
the deposits. Sovereign is amortizing the core deposit intangible using an accelerated method of amortization over the 10 year period.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Total consideration for the New England Acquisition was 12% of acquired deposits less agreed upon reductions. The premium

was comprised of: a) $848 million, which was paid as of the final closing on July 21, 2000, and b) $363 million, paid in periodic
installments from January 2001 through September 2001 upon FleetBoston's performance of non-solicitation obligations specified
under the purchase agreement and satisfaction of certain other conditions. These payments were recorded as expense ratably from
the completion of the New England Acquisition on July 21, 2000 through the completion of the payments. After taking into consideration
fair value adjustments on acquired assets of $163 million, establishment of an initial allowance for loan losses of $135 million, and
direct costs associated with the acquistion of $32 million, total goodwill of $826 million was recorded in the transaction.

In November 2000, the Company announced the results of a restructuring initiative. In addition to realigning the Office of the

Chief Executive Officer and the Company around customer segments, Sovereign analyzed front and back office operations and
computer operating platforms and eliminated approximately 500 positions. In total, Sovereign recorded $27 million in restructuring
costs, $8.5 million of which was recorded in 2001 related to the closure of 14 "in-store" offices and a redirection of e-commerce
efforts, and $18.5 million recorded during 2000 which was comprised of $14 million of severance and outplacement costs, and a
$4.5 million write-off of a redundant computer-operating platform. As of December 31, 2001, $2.0 million of liability remained.

On June 30, 1999, Sovereign acquired Peoples Bancorp, Inc. ("Peoples”), a $1.4 billion bank hofding company headquartered in
Lawrenceville, New Jersey whose principal operating subsidiary operated 14 community banking offices in Mercer, Burlington and
Ocean counties, New Jersey. The transaction added investments, loans and deposits to Sovereign of approximately $922 million,
$503 million and $515 million, respectively. Sovereign issued approximately 23.6 million shares or .80 shares of Sovereign common
stock for each outstanding share of Peoples common stock in connection with the transaction, which was accounted for as a
purchase. Sovereign recorded total intangibles of $39.5 million, of which $9.8 million was allocated to a core deposit intangible and
$29.7 million was allocated to goodwill. The goodwill and core deposit intangible are being amortized over 25 years and 10 years,
respectively. Sovereign’s results of operations include the operations of Peoples from June 30, 1999 and thereafter.

On June 15, 1998, Sovereign acquired The Network Companies ("Network"), a privately held specialty leasing company
headquartered in Commack, New York. Network provides financing for the purchase or lease of equipment and specialty vehicles
plus other specialty products for businesses throughout the United States, with transactions ranging from $15,000 to $250,000.
The initial purchase price of $6 million consisted of $4 million of stock and $2 million of cash. Sovereign’s results of operations
include the operations of Network from June 15, 1999 and thereafter.

NOTE 3 - RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM DEPOSITORY INSTITUTIONS

Sovereign Bank is required to maintain certain average reserve balances as established by the Federal Reserve Board. The amounts
of those reserve balances for the reserve computation periods which included December 31, 2001 and 2000 were $277 million and
$243 million, respectively.
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NOTE 4 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities are as follows {in thousands);

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000
AMORTIZED  UNREALIZED  UNREALIZED FAIR AMORTIZED UNREALIZED UNREALIZED FAIR
COST APPRECIATION DEPRECIATION VALUE COST APPRECIATION DEPRECIATION  VALUE
Investment Securities
Available for sale:
Investment Securities:
U.S. Treasury and government
agency Securities ................... $ 23,109 $ 93 $ 23 $ 23,179 $ 92,341 $ 55 $ 455 § 91,941
Corporate debt and
asset-backed securities ... .......... 322,813 5,357 14,310 313,860 823,672 11,581 17,845 817,408
Equities ... 790,391 2,631 160 792,862 676,881 393 5,899 671,375
State and municipal
SECUMHIBS v e venniennanens 22,452 1,942 2 24,392 36,549 2,693 473 38,769
Martgage-backed Securities:
U.S. government agencies .............. 6,625,498 34,371 33,828 6,626,041 676,593 3,025 5,679 673,939
NONn-agencies .........c..ooveiiiinonn, 1,783,485 23,062 5,202 1,801,345 3,069,141 1,091 48,080 3,022,152
Total investment securities available for sale ... .. $9,567,748 $ 67,456 $53,525 $ 9,581,679 $ 5,375,177 $ 18,838 $ 78,431  $5,315,584
Held to maturity:
Investment Securities:
U.S. Treasury and government
agency SBCUMtES . ....vvvvvnrvnen .. $ 1,905 $ 55 $ — $ 1,960 $ 6,382 $ — $ 138 $ 6,244
Corporate debt and
asset-backed securities .............. - - - — 35,785 2,282 6 38,061
State and municipal securities ........... 4,128 35 2 4,161 739 135 6 868
Mortgage-backed Securities:
U.S. government agencies .............. 872,154 9,851 10,144 871,861 1,562,525 14,780 16,502 1,560,803
NON-8GENCIES « v v e e e 5,250 47 VAl 5,226 372,837 883 7,800 365,920
Total investment securities
held to maturity .. ... $ 883,437 $ 9,988 $10,217 $ 883,208 $ 1,978,268 $ 18,080 $ 24,452  $1,971,89%

Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale and the realized gross gains and losses from those sales are as
follows (in thousands):

AVAILABLE FOR SALE

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999
Proceeds from sales . . ..o $ 6,081,704 $ 8,248,463 $ 5,553,469
Gross realized GaiNS .. v vt e 36,283 3,039 8,335
Gross realized 10SSES . . ..o\t u it (6,048) (123,916) {4,603)
Net realized gains/l0SSES) . .« v v v S 30,235 $ (120,877) $ 3,732




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - INVESTMENT SECURITIES - (CONTINUED)

Contractual maturities (except mortgage-backed securities, see (1)) and yields of Sovereign’s investment securities available for sale
at December 31, 2001 are as follows:

INVESTMENT SECURITIES AVAILABLE FOR SALE AT DECEMBER 31, 2001

DUE AFTER WEIGHTED
DUE WITHIN DUE AFTER 1 DUE AFTER 5 10 YEARS/NO AVERAGE
ONE YEAR WITHIN 5 YRS WITHIN 10 YRS MATURITY TOTAL YIELD 2
U.S. Treasury and government agency ......... $ 19,662 $ 3,517 $ — $ — $ 23,179 2.67%
Corporate debt and asset backed securities ... .. — 26,722 83,020 204,118 313,860 9.66%
EQUItIBS oot e — — — 792,862 792,862 —%
State and Municipal securities ................ 51 897 459 22,985 24,392 6.09%
Mortgage-backed Securities:
U.S. government agencies . . ............... 796,337 2,721,644 1,805,062 1,302,998 6,626,041 6.02%
Non-agencies .........ccoiviviin . 593,387 894,203 233,528 80,227 1,801,345 6.07%
Total FairValue . .............. ...t $ 1,409,437 $ 3,646,983 $ 2,122,069 $ 2,403,190 $ 9,581,679 5.64%
Weighted average yield@ ................... 6.02% 6.11% 6.15% 4.26% 5.64%
Total AmortizedCost ............... ..., $ 1,421,022 $ 3,839,767 $ 2,114,440 $ 2392519 $ 9,567,748

Maturities and yields of Sovereign's investment securities held to maturity at December 31, 2001 are as follows:

INVESTMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY AT DECEMBER 31, 20011

DUE AFTER WEIGHTED
DUE WITHIN DUE AFTER 1 DUE AFTER 5 10 YEARS/NG AVERAGE
ONE YEAR WITHIN 5 YRS WITHIN 10 YRS MATURITY TOTAL YIELD @
U.S. Treasury and government agency ......... $ 150 &) 1,755 $ — $ — $ 1,905 6.65%
State and Municipal securities ................ 481 2,890 396 361 4,128 6.05%
Mortgage-backed Securities:
U.S. government agencies ................ 192,256 419,730 173,402 86,766 872,154 5.95%
Non-agencies ........ccvoviiiiiiinienain 1,643 2,861 667 79 5,250 5.01%
Total AmortizedCost ....................... $ 194,530 $ 427,236 $ 174,465 $ 87,206 $ 883,437 5.94%
Weighted-average yield @ ................... 5.90% 5.90% 6.03% 6.09% 5.94%
Total FairValue ........... ..., $ 196,919 $ 424,682 $ 174,364 $ 87,243 $ 883,208

{1) Mortgage-backed securities are assigned to maturity categories based on their estimated average lives.
{2) Weighted-average yields are based on amortized cost. Yields on tax exempt securities are calculated on a tax equivalent basis and are based on an effective tax rate of 35%.

Income not subject to tax included in interest and dividends on investment securities was $29.1 million, $27.1 million and $27.1 million for
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Tax expense/(benefit) related to net realized gains and losses from sales of
investment securities for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $10.6 million, $(42.3) million and $1.2 million, respectively.

investment securities with an estimated fair value of $3.8 billion and $2.3 billion were pledged as collateral for borrowings, interest
rate agreements and public deposits at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.




NOTE 5 - LOANS

A summary of loans included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000

Commercial real 881ate I0ANS ... .t e e $ 3,082,330 $ 2,793,616
Commercial and INdUSTIIA] 08NS « o v vt et et e e e e e s e e 4,506,198 4,397,009
L0071 P 657,527 640,782

Total ComMMEICIal LOBNS . ... et e e e e e 8,246,055 7,831,407
HOME BQUItY I0ANS . . oo ot e e 3,756,621 3,256,598
AUTO 08NS . ittt e e e e e e e 2,882,417 2,309,025
L4 =1 509,272 536,358

T0tal CONSUMEE LOBNS . ot ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e 7,148,310 6,101,981
Residential real 851ate I08NS . ... ittt e e e e s 5,005,219 7,978,857

Total Loanst 2 e $20,399,584 $21,912,245
Total Loans with:

FIXEA T8 L . oot e e e $12,875,742 $ 14,165,535

RV LT Yo T -1 - 7,523,842 7,746,710

Tota] L0aNS ) o e e $20,399,584 $21,912,245

(1) Loan totals are net of deferred loan fees of $40 miilion for 2001 and $33 miilion for 2000.
{2} Loan totals are net of unamartized discount of $18 million and $65 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Loans to related parties include loans made to certain officers, directors and their affiliated interests. At December 31, 2001 and
2000, loans to related parties totaled $20.1 million and $14.6 million, respectively.

The activity in the allowance for loan losses is as follows (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999
Balance, beginning of period . . ... . e $ 255,356 $ 132,986 $ 133,802
Allowance established/acquired in acquisitions ........ ... . i — 134,706 4,799
ProVISION fOr 10aN 108888 ...\ ot 97,100 56,500 30,000
CRarge-0ffS . . o e 120,940 92,892 55,023
T Lo 1= - 32,151 25,056 19,408
Balance, end of period ... ... e $ 264,667 $ 256,356 $ 132,986
Impaired loans are summarized as follows (in thousands):
AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000

Impaired loans without a related allowante .. ... . i i i e e $ — $ —
Impaired loans with a related allowance ... ... ... e e e 352,562 232,817

Total IMPAITEd L0ANS L oo ottt e e e e e $ 352,562 § 232,817
Allowance for IMpaired l0aNS .. ...ttt e e e e e e $ 73741 $ 56,311

60
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NQTE 5 - LOANS - (CONTINUED)

If Sovereign's non-accruing and restructured loans had been current in accordance with their original terms and had been outstanding
throughout the period, gross interest income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 would have increased by
approximately $9.1 million, $7.0 million and $5.0 million, respectively. Interest income recorded on these loans for the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999 was $6.6 million, $3.8 million and $2.1 million, respectively.

NOTE 6 - MORTGAGE BANKING ACTIVITY

At December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, Sovereign serviced loans for the benefit of others totaling $5.1 billion, $4.2 billion, and $5.7
billion, respectively. The following table presents the activity of Sovereign’s mortgage servicing rights for the years indicated. This
activity does not reflect the reduction from the activity in Sovereign’s valuation allowance for mortgage servicing rights presented in
the table below (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999
Balance, beginning of period . ... o e $ 41,541 $ 77,349 $ 75,627
ServICing @SSetS SOIA . ..o\t e - (34,842} —
Net Servicing assets reCOgNIZEA . ..ottt ettt e e e 29,083 7,971 14,605
AmOrtization and Other ... . o e e e (9,626) (8,937) (12,883)
Balance, end of year .. ... . e $ 60,998 $ 41,541 ) 77,349

For valuation purposes, at December 31, 2001, a weighted average discount rate of 9.6% was assumed and assumed prepayment
speeds were consistent with published secondary market rates for Sovereign’s market area. Sovereign also takes into consideration
any inherent risks, as well as other relevant factors associated with each portfolio. Prices are obtained in the secondary market and
are based upon current market prices of similarly traded loans and/or comparable secondary market instruments.

Activity in the valuation allowance for mortgage servicing rights for the years indicated consisted of the following (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999
Balance, beginning of period ... ... . e $ 2,183 $ 4,858 $ 13,295
Increase/{decrease) in valuation allowance for mortgage servicing rights ...................... 8,097 (2,675) {8,437)
Balance, end of year . ... ... $ 10,280 $ 2,183 $ 4,858
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NOTE 7 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of premises and equipment, less accumulated depreciation and amortization, follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
AN e e $ 11,581 $ 13,200
OFfiCe DUIAINGS v ottt e e e 74,865 108,890
Furniture, fiXtUres, AN GQUI DB L ..t ittt et e e e e 215,313 214,108
Leasenold M PrOVEMENTS . .o e it e e e 65,044 57,723
AU OMIOI S L . ottt e e e e e 441 605
367,244 394,524
Less accumulated depreCiation . ... ..t e e e (115,657) (104,390)
Total premises and BQUIPIMENT . . ottt e ettt e e $ 251,587 $ 290134

included in occupancy and equipment expense for 2001, 2000 and 1999 was depreciation expense of $43.1 million, $36.6 million, and
$15.1 million, respectively. Sovereign also recorded rental expense of $72.9 miilion, $52.0 million and $16.5 million, net of $11.2 million
$5.2 million, and $1.2 million of sublease income in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

On June 30, 2000, Sovereign was party to a structured real estate transaction pursuant to which 127 commercial properties. were
transferred to non-affiliated third parties. Sovereign simultaneously entered into 127 separate operating leases each of which had
an initial term of approximately 20 years. The transfers and leases included 104 commercial properties that were transferred by
FleetBoston and 23 commercial properties owned by Sovereign. Sovereign recorded an $11.9 million gain on the sale of the 23
properties it sold to the third parties. This was deferred and is being amortized over the lease term of the 23 properties sold and
subsequently leased back.

NOTE 8 - ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE

Accrued interest receivable is summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000
Accrued interest receivable on:
VI SECUI I S .« ot v ittt s e ettt et e e e e e $ 65,357 $ 55,465
OB oot e e e 118,556 175,049
Total INterest r8CeIVADIE .. o e e $ 183,913 $ 230,514
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - DEPOSITS

Deposits are summarized as follows {in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000
BALANCE PERCENT RATE BALANCE PERCENT RATE

Demand deposit accounts ............oove... $ 3910171 17% —% $ 3,475,994 14% —%
NOW accounts ..o, 4,162,169 i8 0.87 4,247,194 17 2.67
Savings accounts ...... ... 2,985,464 13 1.44 2,952,960 12 2.38
Money market accounts ..........cooieonn 4,992,163 21 1.73 4,553,020 19 4.44
Retail certificates of deposit . ................. 6,985,397 30 414 8,371,936 34 5.91
Jumbo certificates of deposit .. ........ ... ... 262,210 1 3.04 897,813 4 6.55

Total deposits ... $ 23,297,574 100% 1.99% $ 24,498,917 100% 3.83%
Deposits of related parties include deposits made by certain officers, directors and their affiliated interests. At December 31, 2001
and 2000, deposits of related parties totaled $1.5 million and $1.2 million, respectively.
Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1999

Demand deposit and NOW accounts . ... ..o e e S 71,156 $ 81,842 34,622
SAVINGS BCCOUNMES o\ttt et ettt e et e e e e e 57,905 67,880 58,333
MONBY MaArket @0COUMES ..ottt e et et e e et e 144,156 132,131 50,246
Certificates Of deposit ... ..o 432,669 453,234 297,625

Total interest expense on dEPOSIES . . ..ot vttt e $ 705,886 $ 735,087 440,826

The following table sets forth the maturity of Sovereign’s certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more as scheduled to mature

contractually at December 31, 2001 {in thousands}):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001
THrEE MONtNS OF 1888 ottt it ettt e e e e e e e e $ 335,046
Over three through six MONths .. ..o e e 290,041
Over six through twelve MONthS ..o e 340,226
VB WEIVE MONENS Lo it 370,591

TOtal L e e e $ 1,335,904
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NOTE 9 - DEPOSITS - (CONTINUED)

The following table sets forth the maturity of Sovereign’s certificates of deposit as scheduled to mature contractually at December
31, 2007 (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001
2002 e e $ 5,665,282
20003 e e 1,031,650
L 260,203
2005 e e e e 94,671
2008 e e e 75,738
01T 11 130,063
£ L S P P $ 7,247,607

NOTE 10 - BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings included in the consolidated balance sheets are as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000
Balance W.A. Rate Balance W.A. Rate
Federal funds purchased . ... . $ 452,002 1.75% $ 130,000 5.23%
Securities sold under repurchase agreements .. ... ... ..ttt e 297,741 1.45% 230,900 6.58%
Federal Home Loan Bank advances . ... .o e e e 1,929,021 3.08% 970,000 6.62%
Total BOTTOWINGS .o e $2,678,764 2.67% $ 1,330,900 6.48%

Qualifying repurchase agreements are treated as financings and the obligations to repurchase securities sold are reflected as a liability
in the balance sheet. The dollar amount of securities underlying the agreements remains in the asset accounts, although the securities
underlying the agreements are delivered to the brokers who arranged the transactions. In certain instances, the broker may have
sold, loaned, or disposed of the securities to other parties in the normal course of their operations, and have agreed to resell to
Sovereign substantially similar securities at the maturity of the agreements. The broker/dealers who participate with Sovereign in
these agreements are primarily broker/dealers reporting to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.

Included in 2001 borrowings are sales of securities under repurchase agreements. Securities underlying sales of securities under
repurchase agreements consisted of investment securities which had an amortized cost of $395 million and a market value of $386
million at December 31, 2001.

Short-term FHLB advances are collateralized by qualifying mortgage-related assets as defined by the FHLB.
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NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt (borrowings with original maturities of more than one year) at December 31 consisted of the following
{in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000

Securities sold under repurchase agreements, maturing 2002 through 2008 . ... ... ... i $ 155,000 $ —
FHLB advances, maturing January 2002 to April 2012 . .. ... e 4,105,929 3,644,984
Senior secured credit facility, due November 15, 2003 .. ... . e — 350,792
Senior secured credit facility, maturing May 31, 2005 to February 28,2007 .. ... . i 225,000 —
Asset-backed floating rate notes, due June 21,2012 .. ...t e 821,000 -
B.625% senior notes, due March 15, 2007 ... ..ottt e e e e e - 239,973
8.625% senior notes, due March 18, 2004 . . .. ..o i e e e 174,856 —
10.25% senior notes, due May 15, 2004 . ... ..t e 200,000 200,000
10.50% senior notes, due November 15, 2008 .. ... ..ottt et e e e e e 500,000 500,000
8.50% subordinated debentures, due 2002 . ... ... . e s 19,996 19,992
8.00% subordinated debentures, due 2003 . .. ... o 49,978 49,960
L6132 PP 8,247 3,707

$ 6,261,006 $4,909,408

Long-term debt includes sales of securities under repurchase agreements with weighted average interest rates of 4.71% at
December 31, 2001. Securities underlying these repurchase agreements consist of investment securities which had a book value
of $159 million, and a market value of $160 million at December 31, 2001.

Long-term FHLB advances are collateralized by qualifying mortgage-related assets as defined by the FHLB. Long-term FHLB
advances had weighted average interest rates of 5.28% and 5.47% at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

In March 2001, Sovereign completed a $400 million senior secured credit facility with Bank of Scotland. Proceeds from the issue
were used to prepay an existing $350 million senior secured credit facility. In connection with this transaction, Sovereign wrote off
$6.5 million net of tax ($10.1 million pre-tax) of deferred issuance costs remaining from the existing line of credit. These costs were
reflected net of tax as an extracrdinary item in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

The senior secured credit facility with Bank of Scotland consists of a $350 million revolving line and a $50 million term note.

The revolving line provides $350 million of capacity through August of 2005 with the maximum amount available reduced as follows:
$300 million - August 31, 2005; $250 million - November 30, 2005; $200 million - February 28, 2006; $150 million - May 30, 2006;
$100 miliion - August 30, 2006; $50 mitlion - November 30, 2006. The revolving facility matures on February 28, 2007 with no
mandatory prepayments. The term loan matures on May 31, 2005. The Senior Secured Credit Facility is secured by a pledge of the
stock of Sovereign Bank and Sovereign Delaware Investment Company. Interest is impacted by Sovereign’s Senior Unsecured Long
Term Debt Credit Rating (S&P/Moody’s), and is calculated, at the option of the borrower, at LIBOR or ABR, defined as the greater of
(i) the lender’s prime rate and (ii) the Federal Funds Rate plus .50%, plus applicable margin. The applicable margin for the first two
vears of the facility is 0.75% for ABR loans and 2.50% for Eurodollar loans if Sovereign’s credit rating is BB+/Ba3 or higher and
1.00% for ABR loans and 2.75% for Eurodoliar loans if Sovereign’s credit rating is below BB+/Ba3. After the second anniversary,

the applicable margin is 1.00% for ABR loans and 2.75% for Eurodollar loans if Sovereign’s credit rating is BB+/Ba1 or lower; 0.50%
for ABR loans and 2.25% for Eurodollar loans if Sovereign's credit rating is BBB-/Baa3; 0.25% for ABR loans and 2.00% for Eurodollar
loans if Sovereign’s credit rating is BBB/Baa2+; and 0.00% for ABR loans and 1.75% for Eurodollar loans if Sovereign's credit rating
is BBB+/Baa1 or higher. The Senior Secured Credit Facility subjects Sovereign to a number of affirmative and negative covenants.
At December 31, 2001, the rate Sovereign was paying equaled 5.72%.
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NOTE 11 - LONG-TERIV DEBT - (CONTINUED)

in November, 2001, Sovereign accessed the liquidity of international markets and transferred $957 million of indirect automobile
loans to special purpose entities (SPEs) in return for $885 million raised by the SPEs from the issuance to outside investors of $821
million of asset-backed floating rate notes and $64 million of equity interests. The securitization transaction is accounted for as a
financing collateralized by assets in accordance with SFAS 140, "Transfers of Financial Assets and Liabilities", and as such, the indirect
automobile loans, asset-backed floating rate notes and equity interests {reported as minority interests) are all reflected in
Sovereign’s Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2001 as loans, long-term debt and minority interests, respectively.

The asset-backed notes consist of two classes: $799.1 million of Class A and $21.9 million of Class B. Interest on the notes accrues at
1 month LIBOR plus 0.375% and 0.575% for classes A and B, respectively, and is paid monthly. interest rates were 2.50% and 2.70%
December 31, 2001 for classes A and B, respectively. Combined monthly principal payments of $10.5 million commence January
2007 and increase to final payments of $16.9 million in January 2012. Principal reductions are allocated between the classes in
proportion to the combined principal of the classes. Interest and principal payments are to be paid from the cash flows of the
revolving pool of assets transferred to the SPEs.

On February 20, 2001, Sovereign issued $175 million of senior unsecured notes at 8.625% which will mature on March 15, 2004,
The proceeds of this issuance, along with the proceeds of $150 million from the 20 million shares of common stock issued on
February 9, 2001, were used to repay the 6.625% senior notes at maturity on March 15, 2001,

The 8.625%, 10.25%, and 10.50% senior notes are non-amortizing and are redeemable, at a significant premium, at any time prior to
maturity. The 8.00% subordinated debentures are non-amortizing and are not redeemable prior to maturity. The 8.50% subordinated
debentures are non-amortizing and are redeemable at the option of Sovereign in whole or in part.

The following table sets forth the contractual maturities of Sovereign’'s long-term debt at December 31, 2001 {in thousands}:

AT DECEMBER 31,

2001
2002 . e $ 421,390
2003 . 56,454
2004 e e e 375,798
200D L e e 462,885
2008 L. e e e 730,000
TRErEaI T o o e e 4,213,479
L1 <] - L $ 6,261,006
NOTE 12 - TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES
Sovereign’s Trust Preferred Securities consist of the following at December 31, 2001 and 2000
AT DECEVIBER 31,
2001 2000
Sovereign Capital Trust | {stated maturity $84,635 in 2001 and $100,000in 2000} ... .. ... i it $ 82,782 $ 97,724
Sovereign Capital Trust Il {stated maturity $287,500 in 2001 and 2000} . . ... 0ottt e et e e 193,688 190,321
Sovereign Capital Trust il {stated maturity $100,000 in 20071) ... ...ttt e 96,166 —
ML Capital Trust | (stated maturity $31,500in 2007 and 2000) . ... v v e 31,500 31,500
Total Trust Prefarred SeCUNTIEs . . o o i i i e e $ 404,136 $ 319,545
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NOTE 12 - TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES - (CONTINUED)

On December 13, 2001, Sovereign issued $100 million of preferred capita! securities through Sovereign Capital Trust lll, a special-
purpose statutory trust created expressly for the issuance of these securities. Distributions on the securities will be payable at an
annual rate of 8.75% on a quarterly basis beginning March 31, 2002. The proceeds were invested in Junior Subordinated
Debentures of Sovereign, at terms identical to the preferred capital securities. Cash distributions on the securities are made to
the extent interest on the debentures is received by Sovereign Capital Trust lIl. In the event of certain changes or amendments
to regulatory requirements or federal tax rules, the securities are redeemable in whole. Otherwise the securities are generally
redeemable in whole or in part on or after January 1, 2007, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued interest
to the date of redemption. The securities must be redeemed on December 31, 2031.

On November 15, 1999, Sovereign issued 5,750,000 units of Trust Preferred Income Equity Redeemable Securities (PIERS) resulting
in net proceeds to Sovereign of $278.3 million with a stated maturity of January 15, 2030, of which $91.5 million has been allocated
to the value of the warrants allocated to equity and is treated as original issue discount. The original issue discount is accreted into
Trust Preferred Securities expense over the life of the unit resulting in an effective vyield of 11.74%. Each PIERS unit consists of:

* A preferred capital security (Trust Preferred 1) issued by Sovereign Capital Trust Il {Trust I}, valued at $32.50, having a stated
liguidation amount of $50, representing an undivided beneficial ownership interest in Trust Il, which assets consist solely of
debentures issued by Sovereign. Distributions are payable quarterly beginning February 15, 2000 at an annual rate of 7.5%
of the stated liquidation value; and

o A warrant to purchase, subject to antidilution adjustments, 5.3355 shares of Sovereign common stock at any time prior to
November 20, 2029. The warrants were valued at $17.50 per unit.

The Trust Preferred Il securities were issued by a special-purpose statutory trust created expressly for the issuance of these securities.
Distributions on Trust Il will be payable at an annual rate of 7.5% of the stated liguidation amount of $50 per capital security, payable
quarterly. After original issue discount and issuance costs, proceeds of $186.8 million were invested in Junior Subordinated
Debentures of Sovereign, at terms identical to the Trust Preferred Il offering. Cash distributions on Trust Preferred Il will be made to
the extent interest on the debentures is received by Trust Il. Sovereign may defer interest payments on the debentures for a period
not exceeding 20 consecutive quarters or beyond the original maturity date. Holders may require Sovereign to repurchase the Trust
Preferred Il securities at accreted value following exercise of the warrants.

In the event of certain changes or amendments to regulatory requirements or federal tax rules, Sovereign may elect to redeem the
Trust Preferred Il securities at 100% of accreted value and to redeem the warrants at their value (combined value $50). Sovereign
may elect to redeem the Trust Preferred Il securities and the warrants at $50, if the value of Sovereign’s common stock on 20 trading
days out of the preceding 30 consecutive trading days and on the day the election is made exceeds $14.99 after November 20, 2002;
$13.12 after November 15, 2003; or $11.25 after November 15, 2004.

Sovereign has outstanding $84.6 million of preferred capital securities through Sovereign Capital Trust |, a special-purpose statutory
trust created expressly for the issuance of these securities. Distributions on the securities will be payable at an annual rate of 9% of the
stated liguidation amount of $1,000 per capital security, payable semi-annually. The trusts sole assets consist of investments in Junior
Subordinated Debentures of Sovereign, at terms identical to the preferred capital securities. Cash distributions on the securities are made
to the extent interest on the debentures is received by Sovereign Capital Trust I. In the event of certain changes or amendments to
regulatory requirements or federal tax rules, the securities are redeemable in whole. Otherwise the securities are generally redeemable
in whole or in part on or after April 1, 2007, at a declining redemption price ranging from 103.875% to 100% of the liquidation amount.
On or after April 1, 2017, the securities may be redeemed at 100% of the liquidation amount. On December 27, 2001, Sovereign
completed an open market repurchase $15.4 million of the trust preferred securities issued by Sovereign Capital Trust I.

Sovereign has outstanding $31.5 million of preferred capital securities through ML Capital Trust |, which was established by ML
Bancorp, Inc., a predecessor company of Sovereign. The securities bear an interest rate of 9.875%, with a scheduled maturity of
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NOTE 12 - TRUST PREFERRED SECURITIES - (CONTINUED)

March 1, 2027. Proceeds from the issuance were invested in Junior Subordinated Debentures issued by ML Bancorp. Sovereign
assumed ML Bancorp’s obligations under this offering and has the option, subject to required regulatory approval, to prepay the
securities heginning March 1, 2007.

The Trusts are wholly owned subsidiaries of Sovereign, whose sole assets consist of investments in and in trust related to the junior
subordinated debentures issued by Sovereign. Sovereign has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the Trusts’ payments on the trust
preferred securities. The Trust Preferred Securities are classified as and are similar to a minority interest and are presented as
"Company-obligated mandatority redeemable preferred securities of subsidiary trust holding junior subordinated debentures of
Sovereign." The Trust Preferred Securities qualify for Tier 1 capital treatment for Sovereign Bank and the loan payments from
Sovereign to the trusts are fully tax deductible. The warrants, included in the PIERS units, are classified as additional capital within
stockholders’ equity.

NOTE 13 - MINORITY INTERESTS

In the financing transaction consummated in November 2001, Sovereign received $64 million from the sale of ownership interests
in consolidated SPEs to outside investors. The SPEs were formed to issue debt and equity interests as parts of a securitization
transaction which raised a total of $885 million for Sovereign. The ownership interests in the SPEs are reflected as minority interests
in Sovereign's Consolidated Balance Sheet, along with the indirect automobile loans and asset-backed notes as the entire transaction
is considered a financing in accordance with SFAS 140.

On August 21, 2000, Sovereign received approximately $140 million of net proceeds from the issuance of $161.8 miliion of 12%
Series A Noncumulative Preferred Interests in Sovereign Real Estate Investment Trust ("SREIT"), a subsidiary of Sovereign Bank
which holds primarily residential real estate loans. The preferred stock was issued at a discount, which is being amortized over the
life of the preferred shares using the effective yield method. The preferred shares may be redeemed at any time on or after May 18,
2020, at the option of Sovereign subject to the approval of the OTS. Under certain circumstances, the preferred shares are automatically
exchangeable into preferred stock of Sovereign Bank. The offering was made exclusively to institutional investors; however,
Sovereign expects to register the SREIT preferred shares so that they may be offered to other investors. The proceeds of this offering
were principally used to repay corporate debt.

NOTE 14 - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Sovereign maintains a Stockholder Rights Plan (the "Rights Plan"). The Rights Plan is designed to protect stockholders from attempts
to acquire control of Sovereign at an inadequate price. Under the Rights Plan, each outstanding share of Sovereign common stock
has attached to it one right to purchase one-hundredth of a share of junior participating preferred stock at an initial exercise price

of $40. The rights are not currently exercisable or transferable, and no separate certificates evidencing such rights will be distributed,
unless certain events occur.

A holder can exercise the rights to purchase shares of the junior participating preferred stock if a person, group or other entity
acquires or commences a tender offer or an exchange offer for 9.9% or more of total voting power. A holder can alsa exercise if
Sovereign’s board declares a person or group who has become a beneficial owner of at least 4.9% of Sovereign common stock or
total voting power an "adverse person”, as defined in the Rights Plan.

After the rights become exercisable the rights (other than rights held by a 9.9% beneficial owner or an "adverse person") generally
will entitle the holders to purchase either Sovereign common stock or the common stock of the potential acquirer, in lieu of the
junior participating preferred stock, at a substantially reduced price.

68




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 14 - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY - (CONTINUED)

Sovereign can generally redeem the rights at $.001 per right by a majority vote of "continuing directors" {defined as any member of
the board of directors of Sovereign on June 21, 2001 and successors approved by such persons) at any time prior to the earlier of
the tenth business day following public announcement that a 9.9% position has been acquired or June 30, 2007. At any time prior to
the date the rights become nonredeemable, the Sovereign board of directors can extend the redemption period by a vote of "continuing
directors". Rights are redeemable following an "adverse person” determination.

Sovereign maintains a Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan which permits holders of record of Sovereign common stock
to purchase additional shares of common stock directly from Sovereign via reinvestment of cash dividends and optional cash purchases.
At December 31, 2001, purchases of common stock with reinvested dividends are made at a 5% discount from the current market
price as defined and optional cash purchases are limited to a maximum of $5,000 per quarter. Sovereign also maintains an
Employee Stock Purchase Plan allowing employees with at least six months of employment and who average over 20 hours per
week to purchase shares through a payroll deduction at a discount from fair market value of 7.5% subject to a maximum of the lessor
of 15% of pay or $25,000. All dividends are reinvested according to Sovereign's Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan.

During 2001, Sovereign instituted a Restricted Stock Plan ("Restricted Stock Plan") allowing for the distribution of 2.5 million shares
of Sovereign common stock. The restricted stock vests ratably over a three-year plan. Approximately 560,000 shares were transferred
into the Restricted Stock Plan during 2001 including shares held in Treasury, of which 532,000 shares were issued. Unvested shares are
treated as a reduction of capital.

On November 2, 2001, the company registered $1.0 billion of debt and equity instruments for future issuance under a shelf registration
of debt securities; preferred stock; depository shares; common stock; warrants; stock purchase contracts; and stock purchase units.
The Company may offer and sell these securities from time to time and the securities will be offered at prices and on terms to be
determined by market conditions at the time of offering. Sovereign has approximately $900 million of availability under the shelf
registration at December 31, 2001.

On February 9, 2001, Sovereign issued $150 million of common equity consisting of 20 million shares sold at $7.50 per share.

On November 15, 1999, Sovereign raised $1.3 billion of debt and equity. This included issuance of 43.8 million shares of common
stock resulting in net proceeds of $331.5 million. In connection with the PIERS offering as described in Note 12, Sovereign issued
5.75 million warrants with a fair value, net of offering expenses, of $31.5 million, classified as stockholders’ equity. The conversion
of all warrants would result in an additional 30.7 million shares outstanding before the effect of repurchase of shares assumed under
the treasury stock method used for fully diluted EPS calculations.

Retained earnings at December 31, 2001 included $82.1 million in bad debt reserves, for which no deferred taxes have been

provided due to the indefinite nature of the recapture provisions. Sovereign’s debt agreements impose certain limitations on
dividends, other payments and transactions. These limits are not expected to affect dividend payments at current levels and reasonably
anticipated increases.

NQTE 15 - REGULATORY MATTERS

The Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act ("FIRREA") requires institutions regulated by the Office of Thrift
Supervision (OTS) to have a minimum leverage capital ratio equal to 3% of tangible assets, and 4% of risk-adjusted assets, and a
risk-based capital ratio equal to 8% as defined. The Federal Deposit insurance Corporation Improvement Act ("FDICIA") requires
OTS regulated institutions to have a minimum tangible capital equal to 2% of total tangible assets. Management believes, as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, that Sovereign Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are subject in order to be
well-capitalized.
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NOTE 15 - REGULATORY MATTERS - (CONTINUED)

The FDICIA established five capital tiers: well-capitalized, adequately-capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and
critically undercapitalized. A depository institution’s capital tier depends upon its capital levels in relation to various relevant capital
measures, which include leverage and risk-based capital measures and certain other factors. Depository institutions that are not
classified as well-capitalized or adequately-capitalized are subject to various restrictions regarding capital distributions, payment of
management fees, acceptance of brokered deposits and other operating activities.

The OTS Order, as amended, applicable to the approval of the New England Acquisition (the "OTS Order") requires Sovereign Bank
to be "Well Capitalized", and also to meet certain additional capital ratio requirements above the regulatory minimums, and other
conditions. Various agreements with Sovereign’s lenders also require Sovereign Bank to be "Well Capitalized" at all times and in
compliance with all regulatory requirements. To be "well capitalized", a thrift institution must maintain a Tier 1 Leverage ratio of at
least 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6% and total risk-based capital of 10%. Although OTS capital regulations do not apply to
savings and loan holding companies, the OTS Order requires Sovereign to maintain certain Tier 1 capital levels.

At December 31, 2001, Sovereign had met all quantitative thresholds necessary to be classified as well-capitalized under regulatory
guidelines and the OTS Order.

Federal banking laws, regulations and policies also limit Sovereign Bank's ability to pay dividends and make other distributions to
Sovereign Bancorp. Sovereign Bank must obtain prior OTS approval to declare a dividend or make any other capital distribution if,
after such dividend or distribution, Sovereign Bank’s total distributions to us within that calendar year would exceed 100% of its net
income during the year plus retained net income for the prior two years, Sovereign Bank would not meet capital levels imposed by
the OTS in connection with any order, including the OTS Order applicable to the New England Acquisition, as amended, or if
Sovereign Bank is not adequately capitalized at the time. In addition, OTS prior approval would be required if Sovereign Bank’s
examination or CRA ratings fall below certain levels or Sovereign Bank is notified by the OTS that it is a problem association or an
association in troubled condition. The following schedule summarizes the actual capital balances of Sovereign Bank at December
31, 2001 and 2000 (in thousands):

REGULATORY CAPITAL
TIER 1 TIER 1 TOTAL
TANGIBLE LEVERAGE RISK-BASED RISK-BASED
CAPITALTO CAPITAL TO CAPITAL TO CAPITAL TO
TANGIBLE TANGIBLE RISK ADJUSTED RISK ADJUSTED
ASSETS ASSETS ASSETS ASSETS
Sovereign Bank at December 31, 2001:
Regulatory capital ... .. ..u e e e $ 2,464,222 $ 2,470,620 $ 2,368,893 $2,616,871
Minimum capital requirement 1 ... e 685,584 2,399,545 979,792 2,571,955
BB vttt e $1,778,638 $ 71,075 $ 1,389,101 $ 44916
Capital ralio . ...t e 7.19% 1.21% 9.67% 10.68%
Sovereign Bank at December 31, 2000:
Regulatory capital . ... ... i $2,227,236 $ 2,240,954 $2,121,722 $ 2,373,003
Minimum capital requirement ™M .. 639,815 1,701,908 910,435 2,330,713
EXCBSS oottt e e $ 1,587 421 $ 539,046 $1,211,287 $ 42,290
Capital Fatio ... vt e 6.97% 7.01% 9.32% 10.43%

{1) As defined by OTS Regulations, or the OTS Order, as applicable.
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NOTE 16 - STOCK OPTION PLANS

Beginning in 1990, Sovereign initiated its stock option plan. This plan grants stock options for a fixed number of shares to key officers,
certain employees and directors with an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant. Sovereign’s
stock options expire not more than ten years and one month after the date of grant and become fully vested and exercisable within
a one to five year period after the date of grant. Sovereign accounts for stock option grants in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and accordingly, recognizes no compensation expense for the stock option grants.
There are 24.2 million shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the plans. These shares, along with the per share data

in the following summary of option transactions, have been adjusted to reflect all stock dividends and stock splits.

O

The following table provides a summary of Sovereign’s stock option activity for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999
and stock options exercisable at the end of each of those years {(number of options in thousands).

PRICE PER
SHARES SHARE

Options outstanding December 31, 1998 (3,371,038 shares exercisable). ....... ... . . . . i i i 4,631,609 $ .96-20.25
Options exchanged in conjunction with Peoples acquisition ... ... i e 473,531 4.41-6.86
[T 1) £=T o A PP 2,216,479 8.28 - 12.44
3= (o T1-T=Y o PN (720,311} 96 - 8.83
[0 T4 111 T N (152,415) 3.78-16.35
Options outstanding December 31, 1999 (4,154,213 shares exercisable) .......... .. i 6,448,393 1.30 - 20.25
L o1 T A 2,207,778 6.69 - 7.81
E XIS L\t e e (195,873) 1.30 - 6.53
oY =13 7= O A (449,744) 411-16.35
Options outstanding December 31, 2000 (6,031,898 shares exercisable) ......... ... ... ittt 8,010,554 1.94 - 20.25
GraNEA . .t 2,464,97 8.25-12.32
EXBICISBa o o e e e (489,949) 1.94-894
Lo 4 =11 (T« (268,599) 6.24 - 16.35
Options outstanding December 31, 2001 (7,301,406 shares exercisable) . ... ... .. . o uiii s 9,716,981 $2.25-20.25
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NOTE 16 - STOCK OPTION PLANS (CONTINUED)

The following table summarizes Sovereign's stock options outstanding at December 31, 2001;

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXERCISABLE
WEIGHTED
WEIGHTED AVERAGE WEIGHTED
AVERAGE REMAINING AVERAGE
EXERCISE CONTRACTUAL EXERCISE
EXERCISE PRICES SHARES PRICE LIFE SHARES PRICE
$2.25 -3B89 ... 1,851,943 $ 4.50 2.96 1,851,943 $ 4.50
86.72-810.57 o 4,828,806 $ 7.82 8.36 2,593,806 $ 7.45
B11.80-820.25 .. i e 3,036,232 $ 13.06 7.01 2,855,657 $ 13.11
Total .o 9,716,981 $ 8.82 6.90 7,301,406 $ 8.91

Companies have a choice either to expense the fair value of employee stock options over the vesting period (recognition method) or
to continue the previous practice but disclose the pro forma effects on net income and earnings per share had the fair value method
been used (disclosure only method). Sovereign follows the disclosure only method.

For purposes of providing the pro forma disclosures required under SFAS 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, the fair
values of stock options granted were estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Sholes option pricing model. The Black-Sholes
option-pricing model was originally developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options, which have different characteristics
from the Company’s employee stock options. The model is also sensitive to changes in subjective assumptions, which can materially
affect the fair value estimate. As a result, management believes the Black-Sholes model may not necessarily provide a reliable single
measure of the fair value of employee stock options.

The fair value for these options was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions:

Grant date year 2001 2000 1999
Expected volatility .. oo e .352 325 .296
Expected life in Y8arS . . o ot 6.00 6.00 6.00
Stock price on date of grant ... ... $8.25 - $12.32 $ 6.69 - $7.81 $8.28 - $12.44

B OISR PIICE .« vttt et e e e $8.25 - $12.32 $ 6.69-$7.81 $8.28 - $12.44
Weighted average BXEICISE PriCE . . ..ottt vttt ittt $ 8.55 $ 6.90 3 1.34
Weighted average fair value . ... ... $ 3.39 $ 2.73 $ 3.98
Expected dividend yield .. ... . o 82% 1.21% 1.40%
Risk-free INterest 1ate . . ..o\ttt e 4,78%-5.01% 6.67%-6.85% 5.17% - 6.75%
Vesting Period in YBaIS . ... vttt e 1-5 1-5 1-5

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair market value of traded options which have no
vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the expected stock price volatility. Because Sovereign's employee stock options have characteristics significantly different

from those traded options and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in
management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide reliable single measure of fair value of its employee stock options.

Had compensation cost for the Company’s stock option plans been determined consistent with SFAS 123, net income for 2001, 2000
and 1999, would have been reduced by $3.5 million, $3.5 million and $3.2 millian, respectively, and diluted earnings per share would
have been reduced by $.01, $.02 and $.02, respectively.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Substantially all employees of Sovereign are eligible to participate in the 401(k) retirement plan following their completion of six
months service and attaining age 21. Sovereign recognized expense for contributions to this plan of $6.5 million, $5.2 million and
$2.1 million during 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. Pursuant to this plan, employees can contribute up to 12% of their
compensation to the plan. Sovereign contributes 100% of the employee contribution up to 3% of compensation and 50% of the
employee contribution from 3% to 5% of compensation in the form of Sovereign common stock.

Sovereign maintains an Employee Stock Ownership Plan ("Sovereign ESOP"}, and substantially all employees of Sovereign are
eligible to participate following completion of one year of service and attaining age 21. On November 21, 1994, Sovereign’s Board
of Directors authorized an amendment to the Sovereign ESOP to add a leverage feature to purchase up to 6.7 million shares of
Sovereign’s outstanding common stock in the open market or in negotiated transactions. Peoples also sponsored a leveraged ESOP
that Sovereign assumed upon acquisition in 1999 at which point all of the Peoples’ shares were converted into Sovereign shares,
{collectively, "the ESOPs").

The ESOPs are defined contribution plans, which provide retirement benefits for participants and beneficiaries in the form of
Sovereign common stock. The ESOPs were funded through direct loans from the sponsoring company and proceeds from these
loans were used to purchase outstanding shares of the sponsoring company’s common stock. As the debt on these loans is repaid,
shares of Sovereign common stock are released and become eligible for allocation to employee accounts. Compensation expense is
recognized based on the fair value of the shares committed to be released to employees and the shares then become outstanding
for earnings per share computations.

Sovereign has committed to make contributions sufficient to provide for the debt requirements of the ESOPs. Sovereign recognized
as expense $3.3 million, $2.6 million and $3.4 million for the ESOPs in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. At December 31, 2001,

the ESOPs held 6.3 million shares of Sovereign stock of which 2.0 million shares were allocated to participant accounts. The
unallocated ESOP shares are presented as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements. At December
31, 2001, the unallocated ESOP shares had a fair market value of $52.5 million and the ESOPs had $42.7 million of loans outstanding
from Savereign.

Sovereign maintains several bonus deferral plans for selected management and executive employees. These plans allow employees
to defer 50% or more of their bonus to purchase Sovereign stock. The deferred amount is placed in a grantor trust and invested in
Sovereign common stock. Matching contributions ranging from 25% to 100% are made by Sovereign into the trust and are also
invested in Sovereign stock. Earnings on the deferral and matching contributions are also invested in Sovereign stock. Expense is
recognized ratably over the vesting periods of the plans. Benefits vest ratably over three years under the management plan and
after five years under the executive plan. Benefits also vest under the plans in the event of termination by reason of death, disability,
retirement, involuntary termination or the occurrence of a change of control as defined by the plans. Voluntary termination or
termination for cause (as defined) generally result in forfeiture of the unvested balance including employee deferrals. Sovereign
recognized as expense $1.7 million, $1.9 million, and $1.0 million for these plans in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

During 2001, Sovereign instituted a Restricted Stock Plan as described in Note 14, Sovereign recognized expense of $2.9
million, during 2001.

Sovereign sponsored several non-contributory defined benefit pension plans, which covered substantially all employees, and former
employees of certain institutions acquired by Sovereign. Benefits were frozen effective March 31, 1999. Sovereign recorded a
curtailment gain of $1.6 million in 1999 and a settlement gain of $1.3 million (net of excise tax expense of $1.2 million) in 2000. $2.0
million of plan assets were transferred to Sovereign’s 401(k) plan and $6.2 million was returned to Sovereign in 2000 after settlement
of benefit obligations was completed. Sovereign also sponsors a supplemental executive retirement plan ("SERP") and several
post-employment benefit plans of several institutions acquired by Sovereign. Increasing or decreasing the assumed health care cost
trend rate would not have a significant impact on the accumulated post retirement benefit obligation at December 31, 2001, and the
aggregate of the service and interest components of net benefit expense for the year ended December 31, 2001.




NOTE 17 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS - (CONTINUED)

Sovereign's benefit obligation related to its SERP plan was $3.9 million and $3.8 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Sovereign’s benefit obligation related to its postemployment plans was $1.1 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000. The SERP and
the postemployment plans are unfunded plans. Sovereign recognized as expense $0.7 million, $0.8 million and $0.8 million related
to these plans in 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

NOTE 18 - INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes in the consolidated statement of operations is comprised of the following components
(in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000 1989
Current:
Federal . .o $ 38,140 $ (10,157} $ 69,656
S 1P 508 — 807
38,648 (10,157) 70,463
Deferred:
FEeral . oo e e (15,599) (55,181) 18,852
£ 1 PP _ 5,348 _
Total income tax expense (benefit) ... ... i $ 23,049 $ (59,990) $ 89,315

The following is a reconciliation of the actual tax provisions with taxes computed at the federal statutory rate of 35% for each of the
years indicated;

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999
Federal income tax at Statutory rate .. ... vttt e e e 35.0% (35.0)% 35.0%
Increase/(decrease) in taxes resulting from:
TAX-EXEMPL INCOME v\ e e et e et et ettt e e e (6.8) (5.4) (2.8)
Bank owned life INSUIrance .. ...t (10.5) (12.9) (3.0)
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit ... . . . i i e 0.2 0.0 0.2
Recordation of valuation allowance ....... ... e 0.0 6.0 0.0
Amortization of intangible
assets and other purchase
ACCOUNTING BAJUSIMENES. . . e 23 35 0.9
Capital loss UtHliZation ... e e e 0.0 (26.0) 0.0
[0 (T (3.8) 33 29
Effective federal tax rate . ... o i i e e e 16.4% (66.5)% 33.2%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 18 - INCOME TAXES - (CONTINUED)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
presented below (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for PoSSible 08N 108588 + . .. vttt e e $ 40,144 $ 42,031
Purchased mortgage ServiCing fghts . . ... et e 4,362 —
i EmMployee DENEfits . . e - —
Depreciation and amMOrtization ... ... ...t ou ittt et e 18,534 14,384
] PUrchase acCoUNting adjUSImMENtS . . ... i e 317 6,982
Unrealized loss on available for sale portfolio ... ... o — 29,300
Unrealized 1088 0N deriVatIVES ... ...t i e 21,890 —
] Net operating 108s Carry fOmWards . ... .t et e e e e e e 1,983 4,542
NON-SOLICITAtION COVENENT . . .\ttt e e e et e e et e e e e e e e 108,997 33,383
] L0813 L T T 3,500 22,472
] Deferred OID EXPOMSe . oo e e e e e e s - 1,323
_1 10T O 19,800 3,542
f Total gross deferred 1aX @SSEIS . . . v v vttt ettt et e e e e $ 218,527 $ 157,959

] Deferred tax liabilities:
Purchase accouNnting adjUsStmIEntS . ..ottt e $ 7,651 $ 7,077
Deferred INCOME oo 62,997 17,342
Tax bad debt reServe r8CAPIUIE .. ...t ittt e e e e 2,451 3,412
Originated mortgage ServiCing NGNS .. ..o e e e 15,612 6,449
Unrealized gain on available for sale portfolio . ... ... i 4,969 —
Purchased mortgage servicing rights . ... .ottt e - 1,076
Depreciation and amOrtization ... ... i e e e e e - 7,337
EmMDIOYEE DENEitS . o e 1,857 840
1T N 12,537 8,249
Total gross deferred tax [abilities . ... ...t e $ 108,074 § 51,782
Net deferred 18X @SBt . . . oo e e e e s $ 111,453 $ 106,177

During 2000, Sovereign established a $5 million valuation allowance related to previously recognized state tax net operating losses.
The valuation allowance was necessary due to structural changes at Sovereign resulting from the New England Acquisition. For the
remainder of Sovereign's deferred tax assets, no valuation allowance is necessary due to Sovereign’s conclusion that it is "more
likely than not" that the deferred tax assets will be realized, based on a history of growth in earnings, the prospects for continued
growth, including an analysis of potential uncertainties that may offset future operating results, and potential tax planning strategies
that could be employed in the future. Sovereign will continue to review the criteria related to the recognition of deferred tax assets
on a quarterly basis.

The Company has an unrecognized deferred tax liability of $858 thousand related to earnings that are considered permanently
reinvested in a consolidated Foreign special purpose entity related to the indirect automobile loan securitization.




NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Financial Instruments. Sovereign is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of its customers and to manage its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial
instruments include commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, loans sold with recourse, forward contracts and interest
rate swaps, caps and floors. These financial instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in
excess of the amount recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The contract or notional amounts of these financial instruments
reflect the extent of involvement Sovereign has in particular classes of financial instruments.

The following schedule summarizes Sovereign’s off-balance sheet financial instruments (in thousands):

CONTRACT OR NOTIONAL AMOUNT

AT DECEMBER 31,
2001 2000
Financial instruments whose

contract amounts represent

credit risk:

Commitments 10 eXteNd Credit . .. ..ot et e e e e e e $ 6,765,595 $5,812,328
StANADY Letters Of CrETit .. o o i e e e e e e 674,397 564,226
08NS SOId WIth FECOUISE .\ttt e e e e e e s 54,610 20,647
FOrWard COMIACES « o v et et e e e e e 443,162 115,914

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in
the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.
Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements. Sovereign evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis.
The amount of collateral required is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral usually consists of
real estate but may include securities, accounts receivable, inventory and property, plant and equipment.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by Sovereign to guarantee the performance of a customer to a third
party. The guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. Most guarantees expire by June
2003. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to cus-
tomers. Sovereign holds various collateral to support the commitments.

Loans sold with recourse primarily represent single-family residential loans. These are seasoned loans with decreasing balances and
historical loss experience has been minimal.

The forward contracts used by Sovereign in its mortgage banking activities are contracts for delayed delivery of securities in which
Sovereign agrees to make delivery of a specified instrument, at a specified future date, at a specified price or yield. Risks arise from
the possible inability of counter parties to meet the terms of their contracts and from movements in securities’ values and interest
rates. These contracts are also considered derivative instruments under SFAS 133 and changes in the fair value of contracts are
recorded on the balance sheet as either derivative assets or liabilities. Further discussion of derivative financial instruments is
included in Notes 1 and 21.

Litigation. At December 31, 2001, Sovereign was party to a number of lawsuits, which arise during the normal course of business.
While any litigation has an element of uncertainty, management, after reviewing these actions with legal counsel, is of the opinion
that the liability, if any, resulting from these actions will not have a material effect on the financial condition or results of operations
of Sovereign.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 19 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES - (CONTINUED)

Leases. Sovereign is committed under various non-cancelable operating leases relating to branch facilities having initial or
remaining terms in excess of one year. Future minimum annual rentals under non-cancelable leases, net of sublease income at
December 31, 2001, are summarized as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31,2001
FUTURE MINIMUM

LEASE SUBLEASE NET
PAYMENTS INCOMIE PAYMENTS
2002 e $ 103,842 $ (12,049) $ 91,793
2003 e e e e 98,706 (8,415) 90,291
2004 L 92,338 {6,200) 86,138
200D L e 185,181 (5,224) 179,957
2008 L e e 30,155 (4,662) 25,493
Thereafter o 100,333 (7,329) 93,004
L $ 610,555 $ (43,879) $ 566,676

NOTE 20 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following table presents disclosures about the fair value of financial instruments as defined by SFAS No. 107, "Fair Value of
Financial Instruments.” These fair values are presented based upon subjective estimates of relevant market conditions at a specific
point in time and information about each financial instrument. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are
based on estimates using present value or other valuation technigues. These techniques involve uncertainties resulting in variability
in estimates affected by changes in assumptions and risks of the financial instruments at a certain point in time. Therefore, the
derived fair value estimates presented below cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets. In addition, the fair
values do not reflect any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time an entity’s entire holdings of a
particular financial instrument nor does it reflect potential taxes and the expenses that would be incurred in an actual sale or settle-
ment. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of Sovereign (in thousands):
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NOTE 20 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - (CONTINUED)

AT DECEMBER 31
2001 2000
CARRYING CARRYING
VALUE FAIR VALUE VALUE FAIR VALUE
Financial Assets:
Cash and amounts due from depository institutions ........ .. ... .o $ 887,954 $ 887,964 $ 945,196 $ 945,196
Interest-earning depoSitS . ..ot 19,315 19,315 14,447 14,447
Loans Reld f0r SAIE . .ot e e e 308,950 308,950 59,993 60,148
Investment securities:
available forsale ... . o i e 9,581,679 9,581,679 5,315,584 5,315,584
Reld 10 MAtUNY o e e 883,437 883,208 1,978,268 1,971,896
LOaNS, Mt Lt e e e 19,825,967 20,095,784 21,655,889 21,604,291
Mortgage servicing Hghts . ..o e e 50,718 55,848 39,358 44618
Exchange traded futures ... ... i i e 18,758 18,758 38,849 38,849
Financial Liabilities:
DB P OSIS vttt e s 23,297,574 21,776,746 24,498,917 24,430,465
BOITOWINgS .ttt e e e e e 8,939,770 9,138,438 6,240,308 6,202,987
Interest rate derivative instruments (1) ... ... i e (46,922) {46,922) - —
Trust preferred SECUNLIES . . ...t i e e 404,136 634,695 319,645 312,336
Unrecognized Financial instruments:(2)
Commitments to extend credit . ... . e 50,531 50,665 44,432 44,306
Interest rate derivative INStruments (1) ... .. . ottt e e e — - 957 5,779
4] In 2001, the Company adopted SFAS 133, "Accounting For Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." Accordingly, all derivative financial instruments are
recorded at fair value on the balance sheet at December 31, 2001
(2) The amounts shown under “carrying value” represent accruals or deferred income arising from those unrecognized financial instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments:

Cash and amounts due from depository institutions and interest-earning depasits. For these short-term instruments, the carrying
amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value.

Loans held for sale. Fair values are estimated using quoted rates based upon secondary market sources for securities backed by
similar loans. Fair value estimates include consideration of all open positions (including forward contracts), outstanding
commitments and related fees paid.

Investment securities available for sale. The fair value of investment securities available for sale are based on quoted market prices
as of the balance sheet date. In accordance with SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,"
changes in fair value are reflected in the carrying value of the asset and are shown as a separate component of stockholders’ equity.

Investment securities held to maturity. The carrying amounts for short-term investment securities held to maturity approximate fair
value because of the short maturity of these instruments and they do not present unanticipated credit concerns. The fair value of
long-term investment securities held to maturity is estimated based upon bid quotations received from securities dealers and an
independent pricing servicing bureau.

Loans. Fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows using estimated market discount rates at which similar loans weould be
made to borrowers and reflect similar credit ratings and interest rate risk for the same remaining maturities.

Mortgage servicing rights. The fair value of mortgage servicing rights are estimated using quoted rates based upon secondary
market sources.
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NOTE 20 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - (CONTINUED)

Deposits. The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity, such as non-interest bearing demand deposits, NOW accounts, savings
accounts and certain money market accounts, is equal to the amount payable on demand as of the balance sheet date. The fair
value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated by discounting cash flows using currently offered rates for deposits of
similar remaining maturities.

Borrowings and Long Term Debt. Fair value is estimated by discounting cash flows using rates currently available to Sovereign for other
borrowings with similar terms and remaining maturities. Certain long-term debt instruments are valued using available market quotes.

Trust Preferred Securities. Trust preferred securities are valued using available market quotes.

Commitments to extend credit. The fair value of commitments to extend credit is estimated using the fees currently charged to
enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness of the
counter parties. For fixed rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the difference between current levels of interest rates and
the committed rates.

Loans sold with recourse. The fair value of loans sold with recourse is estimated based upon the cost to terminate Sovereign’s
obligations under the recourse provisions.

Interest rate derivative instruments. The fair value of interest rate swaps, caps and floors which represent the estimated amount
Sovereign would receive or pay to terminate the contracts or agreements, taking into account current interest rates and when
appropriate, the current creditworthiness of the counter parties are obtained from dealer quotes.

Exchange traded futures. Exchange traded futures are valued using available market quotes.

NOTE 21 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Sovereign uses derivative instruments as part of its interest rate risk management process, to manage risk associated with its
mortgage banking activities, and to assist its commercial banking customers with their risk management strategies.

Sovereign’s primary market risk is interest rate risk. Management uses derivative instruments to protect against the risk of interest
rate movements on the value of certain liabilities and on probable future cash outflows. These instruments primarily include interest
rate swaps and interest rate caps and floors that have underlying interest rates based on key benchmark indexes. The nature and
volume of the derivative instruments used to manage interest rate risk depend on the level and type of assets and liabilities on the
balance sheet and the risk management strategies for the current and anticipated rate environment. As discussed in Note 1, on
January 1, 2001, the Corporation adopted SFAS 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities", which requires
all derivative instruments to be carried at fair value on the balance sheet. Prior to 2001, unrealized gains and losses on derivatives
used for hedging purposes were generally not required to be reported in the financial statements. In order to reduce the earnings
volatility that would result from having to recognize in earnings the fair value of certain derivative instruments used to hedge risks
associated with financial instruments not carried at fair value, SFAS 133 provides special hedge accounting provisions. These
provisions permit the change in the fair value of the hedged item related to the risk being hedged to be recognized in earnings in the
same period and in the same income statement line as the change in fair value of the derivative. Note 1 provides further detail on
how derivative instruments are accounted for in the financial statements. The Company designates derivative instruments used to
manage interest rate risk into SFAS 133 hedge relationships with the specific assets, liabilities, or cash flows being hedged.

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a derivative contract with which Sovereign has an unrealized gain fails to perform
according to the terms of the agreement. Credit risk is managed by limiting the aggregate amount of net unrealized gains in
agreements outstanding, monitoring the size and the maturity structure of the derivative portfolio, applying uniform credit standards
maintained for all activities with credit risk, and collateralizing gains.
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NOTE 21 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES - (CONTINUED)

The credit risk associated with derivative instruments executed with Sovereign’s commercial banking customers is essentially the
same as that involved in extending loans and is subject to normal credit policies.

Fair Value Hedges. During 2001, Sovereign used receive-fixed interest rate swaps to hedge the fair values of certain brokered CDs for
changes in interest rates. All of Sovereign’s interest rate swaps accounted for as fair value hedges outstanding as of December 31,
2001, as well as those that matured during the year, satisfied the criteria in SFAS 133 to use the "short-cut" method of accounting for
changes in fair value. The short-cut method allows the Company to assume that there is no ineffectiveness in the hedging
relationship and that changes in the fair value of the derivative perfectly offset changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
liability, resulting in no volatility in earnings.

Cash Flow Hedges. During 2001, Sovereign hedged cash flow variability related to variahle-rate liabilities, specifically FHLB
advances, through the use of pay-fixed interest rate swaps. Sovereign also held pay-fixed interest rate swaps to hedge forecasted
cash flows associated with periodic floating rate interest payments payable subsequent to 2001. All of Sovereign’s interest rate
swaps accounted for as cash flow hedges outstanding as of December 31, 2001, as well as those that matured during the year,
satisfied the criteria in SFAS 133 to use the short-cut method of accounting for changes in fair value. Refer to the discussion above
regarding the effects of the short-cut method.

Gains and losses on derivative instruments reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to current-period earnings
are included in the line item in which the hedged cash flows are recorded. At December 31, 2001, accumulated other comprehensive
income included a deferred after-tax net loss of $40.7 million, consisting of a loss on pay-fixed interest rate swaps used to hedge
future cash flows on FHLB advances. The loss will be reclassified from other comprehensive income into earnings during the same
period the forecasted transactions occur. See Note 24 for further detail of the amounts included in accumulated other comprehensive
income. During 2001, $11.4 million pretax was reclassified out of comprehensive income into current period interest expense as the
forecasted hedge transactions occurred. Sovereign reclassified $14.7 million of losses into earnings, classified as gain/ioss on sale of
investment securities and related derivatives, in 2001 because it became probable that the original forecasted transaction would not
occur.

Other Derivative Activities. Sovereign’s derivative portfolio also includes derivative instruments not included in SFAS 133 hedge
relationships. Those derivatives include mortgage banking loan commitments and forward sales defined as derivatives under SFAS
133 used for risk management purposes, and derivatives executed with customers, primarily interest rate swaps and foreign
exchange futures, to facilitate their risk management strategies. In connection with the indirect automobile loan securitization
transaction discussed in Note 11, Sovereign was required to purchase, on behalf of its securitization SPE, an interest rate cap

with a $900 million notional value from a third party. Sovereign also sold an identical interest rate cap with a notional value of §
900 million to the same third party. Sovereign assigned the purchased interest rate cap to the SPE. At December 31, 2001, the fair
value of the sold interest rate cap was an asset of $50.5 million and the fair value of the purchased interest rate cap was a liability
of $560.5 million.

Net gains generated from other than hedging derivative instruments in 2001 totaled $5.9 million and are included as capital markets
revenue on the income statement.

All derivative contracts are valued using either cash flow projection models or observable market prices. Pricing models used for
valuing derivative instruments are regularly validated by testing through comparison with third parties.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 21 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES - (CONTINUED)

Summary information regarding derivatives designated as accounting hedges under SFAS 133 at December 31, 2001 follows
{in thousands):

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
NOTIONAL RECEIVE LIFE
AMOUNT ASSET LIABILITY RATE PAY RATE (YEARS)
Fair value hedges:
Receive fixed ~ pay variable interest rate swaps  $ 397,449 $ 7568 §$ 1,282 5.98% 1.97% 1.5
Cash flow hedges:
Pay fixed - receive floating interest rate swaps 3,050,000 10,125 72,668 1.92% 6.09% 5.1
Total derivatives used in SFAS 133
hedging relationships .................. $ 3,447,449 $ 17693 § 73,950 2.39% 5.62% 4.7

Summary information regarding other derivative activities at December 31, 2001 follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001

NOTIONAL POSITIVE NEGATIVE NET ASSET
AMOUNT FAIR VALUE FAIR VALUE (LIABILITY)

Mortgage banking risk management:
Forward commitments:

TOBUY I0NS . .ot $§ 65000 § 10 $ (307} § {297)
T0 S0 I0@NS . . ottt e e 508,162 5,871 (2,198) 3,673
Total mortgage banking risk management ......... . e 573,162 5,881 (2,505) 3,376

Customer related:
Interest rate swaps:

‘ Pay variable-receive fixed .. ... .. 956,580 39,730 (16,198) 23,532
k Pay fixed-receive variable .. ... ... .. . .. e 848,960 18,716 (34,650) (15,934)
1 BaSIS . i e 20,000 - {21) (21)
T (0T (=T A 17,612 1,758 _ 1,758
Interest rate caps/floors/collars . ... . e 41,420 5 (5) -
Total interest rate sk MaNagemMent ... ...ttt e e et e 1,884,472 60,209 {50,874) 9,335

Foreign exchange:

Forwards pUrChased ... ..ottt 36,828 272 {159) 113
FOrWards SOld ... .t e 35,893 369 {190) 179
Total foreign BXCRANGE . .« oottt e e e 72,721 641 (349) 292
Total Other aCtiVIty .. ... s $ 2530355 $ 66,731 $ (53728 § 13,003
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NOTE 21 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES - (CONTINUED)

Summary information regarding derivatives used for risk management purposes at December 31, 2000 follows (in thousands):

UNREALIZED WEIGHTED AVERAGE
NOTIONAL . RECEIVE PAY STRIKE
AMOUNT GAINS LOSSES RATE RATE RATE
Interest rate risk management:
Receive fixed - pay variable interest
rate swaps (1) ..o $ 858,294 $ 16,395 $ 975 7.31% 6.48%
Pay fixed - receive floating interest
rate swaps (2). ... .. e 400,000 - 10,087 6.49% 7.12% -
Interest rate caps/floors/collars(2)......... 500,000 - 166 - 6.00% - 6.55%
Mortgage banking loan
commitments {2} .............. . 34,000 115 27
Mortgage banking forward sales (2)....... 149,914 77 1,333
Total interest rate risk management ......... 1,942,208 18,687 12,588

Customer related:
Receive fixed - pay variable interest

Fate SWaps v v i 502,532 496 11,320

Pay fixed - receive floating interest
rate SWaps . ... 512,390 13,008 404
Interest rate caps/floors/collars ........... 105,701 105 105
Exchange traded futures ................ 38,849 - -
Total customerrelated ........... ... ..., 1,169,472 13,609 11,828
Total derivatives ............ .o i S 3,101,680 $ 30,196 S 24,417

{1} Recorded through other comprehensive income
(2) Recorded through the income statement

Net interest income resulting from interest rate exchange agreements included $11.6 million of income and $11.4 million of expense
for 2001, $6.4 million of income and $.1 million of expense for 2000 and $.5 million of income and $8.8 million of expense for 1999.

NOTE 22 - ASSET SECURITIZATIONS

During 2000 the Company acquired the servicing responsibilities, and retained interest only strips, related to home equity, boat and
recreational vehicles which were previously securitized, as part of the New England Acquisition. The Company receives annual
servicing fees approximating 0.50% for home equity loans and for boat and recreational vehicle ioans. The investors and
securitization trusts have no recourse to the Company's other assets for failure of debtors to pay when due. The Company’s
retained interests are subordinate to investor interests. Their value is subject to credit, prepayment and interest rate risks on the
transferred financial assets.

In 2000, the Company recognized a pretax gain of $2.5 million on the securitization of home equity loans and a pretax loss of
$(2.3) million on the securitization of automotive floor plan loans.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 22 - ASSET SECURITIZATIONS - (CONTINUED)

The types of assets underlying securitizations for which Sovereign owns a retained interest and the related balances, delinquencies,

and net credit losses are as follows {in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31, 2001 AT DECEMBER 31, 2000
PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL
TOTAL 90 DAYS NET CREDIT TOTAL 90 DAYS NET CREDIT
PRINCIPAL PAST DUE LOSSES PRINCIPAL PAST DUE LOSSES
Loans Securitized:
Home Equity Loans ...................... $ 864,730 $ 55,452 $ 6,712 $ 1,167,879 $ 40,193 $ 3,492
BoatLoans .........cooiiiiiiiiiin. 105,798 721 778 153,708 13 698
Recreational Vehicle Loans ................ 210,785 756 2,153 315,840 835 2,175
Automotive Floor PlanLoans .............. 579,000 — — 579,000 — —
Total Securitized ... ... . oL $ 1,760,313 $ 56,939 $ 9,643 $ 2,216,427 $ 41,041 $ 6,365
Loans Held in Portfolios:
Home Equity Loans . ..................... $ 3,756,621 $ 3,256,598
BoatLoans (1) ..... ... ... . i, 5,536 6,521
Recreational Vehicle Loans ................ - —
Automotive Floor Plan Loans .............. 315,713 317,281
Total Held in Portfolio ......... ........... 4,077,870 3,580,400
Total Loans Managed .................... $ 5,838,183 $ 5,796,827

(1) Boat loans are included in other consumer loans.

The components of retained interest and key economic assumptions used in measuring the retained interest at the date of
securitization resulting from securitizations completed during the year were as follows (in thousands):

AT DECEMBER 31
RECREATIONAL AUTOMCTIVE

HOME EQUITY BOAT VERICLES FLOOR PLAN
Components of Retained Interest:
Subordinated interest retained .. ... ... e S — 5 519 § 51 $ 21,000
SEIVICING GRS . oot e 6,805 731 1,425 —
INtErest 0Ny SEIiDS . v e e e e 55,172 15,126 13,300 657
Cash TBSBIVE o e e — — — 5,606
Total Retained INTBrest .. ... i e $ 61977 § 16,376 $ 15,236 $ 27,263
Key Economic Assumptions:
PrEPAYMENT SPERA . . ottt e e 26% 28% 28% N/A
Weighted average life (in years) ... e 8 5 5 7
Expected Credit 10SSeS . ... u 0.75% 0.40% 0.45% 0.25%
Residual cashflows discountrate .. ... i 12% 1% 1% 10%

The table below summarizes certain cash flows received from and paid to off-balance sheet securitization trusts (in thousands):

FOR THE YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31, 2001 DECEMBER 31, 2000

Proceeds from new SeCUMtIZatIoNS ... ... .ot ii  ea $ — $ 948,456
Servicing fees reCaIVEd . .. o e 13,059 1,577
Other cash flows received on retained INTBreStS ... oottt e e e e 8,755 22,581
Purchases of delinquent or foreclosed @assets . ... ... vt i 928 262
SErVICING @AVANCES . . . ottt e e e - 1,916
Repayments of Servicing advances . ... .. i e e - 856




NOTE 22 - ASSET SECURITIZATIONS - (CONTINUED)

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, key economic assumptions and the sensitivity of the fair value of the retained interests to immediate
10 percent and 20 percent adverse changes in those assumptions are as follows (in thousands):

DECEMBER 31, 2001 DECEIVIBER 31, 2000
HOME EQUITY BOAT AUTO FLOOR HOME EQUITY BOAT AUTO FLOOR
LOANS LOANS RV LOANS PLAN LOANS LOANS LOANS RV LOANS PLAN LOANS
Fair value of retained interests ............... s 61977 $ 16,376 S 15,236 $ 27,263 $ 64,691 $ 18,684 $ 20,305 $ 26,689
Weighted-average life (inyrs) ................ 8 5 5 0.17 18 15 12 0.17
Prepayment speed
assumption (annual rate] 26% 28% 28% - 27% 2% 2% -
Impact on fair value of
10% adverse change . ..... .ot vueen $ (1,890) 8 (2000 $ {751) $ (26) $ (1,900) S (2000 S (200) S (26)
Impact on fair value of
20% adversechange . ... $ (3,460) § (228) $ (871} s (47) $ (47000 § (300} $ {300) $ 147)
Expected credit losses
{annual rate) 0.75% 0.40% 0.45% 0.25% 0.75% 0.26% 0.45% 0.25%
Impact on fair value of
10% adversechange . ........co.oovenn.. $ (1,743) § {715) 8§ (250) § {18) $ {21000 $ (1000 § (100) 8 (18}
Impact on fair value
20% adverse change .. ..........ouviinins $ {3230) § (149) 8 (449) $ {36) $ (3500 § {1000 § (1000 $ (36)
Residual cash flows
discount rate (annual) 12% 1% 1% 10% 12% 1% 11% 10%
Impact on fair value of
10% adverse change .................... $ (2,888 S (325) 8 {629) $ {220) $ (30000 § (500} 8 400) $ (220
Impact on fair value of
20% adversechange...........c.vuenn $ {4,793) 8§ (643) 8 (1,221) $ (428) $ (5700) $ (900) 8 (1,500) S  {428)

These sensitivities are hypothetical and should be used with caution. As the figures indicate, changes in fair value based on a 10
percent variation in assumptions generally cannot be extrapoclated because the relationship of the change in assumption to the
change in fair value may not be linear. Also, in this table, the effect of a variation in a particular assumption on the fair value of the
retained interest is calculated without changing any other assumption; in reality, changes in one factor may result in changes in
another (for example, increases in market interest rates may result in lower prepayments and increased credit losses), which might
magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

Actual and expected static pool credit losses as a percent of the original pool balance are as follows:

Actual and Projected Credit Losses as of December 31, 2001: 2001 2002 2003
HomE EQUITY LOaNS ..ot e e e 0.55% 0.75% 0.75%
BBt LOANMS « ottt ittt e e e e e 0.19% 0.40% 0.40%
Recraational Vehicle Loans . ... i i i e e e e e 0.25% 0.45% 0.45%
Automotive Floor Plan LOBNS .ttt e e e —% 0.25% 0.25%
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 23 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table presents the computation of earnings per share based on the provisions of SFAS No. 128 for the years indicated
(in thousands, except per share data):

2001 2000 1939
Calculation of income/(loss) for EPS:
‘ Income /{loss) before extraordinary item for basic EPS ... . .. . o $ 123,370 $ (41,017) $ 179,299
1 EXtraordinary HEM, @FHEr TAX .o\ttt t ettt et e e e e (6,549) 10,775 —
! Net income for basic and diluted EPS ... i i $ 116,821 $ {30,242) $ 179,299
‘ Calculation of shares:
Weighted average basic Shares ... i i 244,643 225,881 176,021
Dilutive effect of average stock options and warrants . ......... ... v e 12,252 — 2,146
Weighted average fully diluted shares . ... o i 256,895 225,881 178,167
Earnings/(loss) per share:
Basic
Income/(loss) before extraordinary item . ... . .. S 0.51 $ {0.18) $ 1.02
EXtraordinary HBmM oo e s {0.03) 0.05 —
NEt INCOME/I0SS) « v vt $ 0.48 $ (0.13) $ 1.02
Diluted
Income/({loss) before extraordinary item ... .. i $ 0.48 $ (0.18) $ 1.01
EXtraordinary (M ..o e (0.03) 0.05 —
NEt INCOME/I0SS) ..ot $ 0.45 $ (0.13) $ 1.0

NOTE 24 - COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

The following table presents the components of comprehensive income, net of related tax, based on the provisions of SFAS No. 130
for the years indicated (in thousands}:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1 2001 2000 1999
] Nt INCOME/ 0SS} . oo $ 116,821 $ (30,242) S 179,299
Cumulative change in accounting principle:
] Fair value of derivative instruments and hedgeditems ...... ... ... ... {6,736) — —
N Reclassification of held-to-maturity securities to available-for-sale .................. ... (3,215) — —
] Net unrealized gain/(loss) on derivative instruments for the period ..................... ... (47,650) — —
Net unrealized gain/{loss) on investment securities available-for-sale for the period ............. 65,650 93,841 {227,550)
Less reclassification adjustment: Derivative instruments . ............ ool (16,848) - —
Investments available forsale ......... . ... oL 19,611 (78,570) 1,602
Net unrealized gain/(loss) recognized in other comprehensive income .. ... n. 15,337 172,411 (229,052}
Comprehensive income/{loss) ... o ot e $ 122,207 $ 142,169 $ (48,753)




NOTE 25 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information for Sovereign Bancorp is as follows (in thousands):

BALANCE SHEETS AT DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000
Assets
Cash and due from DanKs . . ... e $ 51,080 $ —

Investment securities:

Available fOr 8818 . .t e e e e 2,005 1,075
Investment in subsidiaries:

Bank sUbSIdIary ... 3,642,987 3,621,070

Non-bank sUDSIAIANES . ... oo e 159,068 131,199
OTNEr B8BTS . o ettt e e e s 90,740 115,215
Ot ASSEES . vttt $ 3,945,880 $ 3,768,559
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Borrowings:

Long-term debt . e $ 1,169,831 $ 1,358,925

Borrowings from non-bank subsidiaries .. ... ... 505,105 365,970
OtREr HabITES v oot e 68,463 93,780
Total Habilities . ..o e 1,743,399 1,819,675
Stockholders” EQUILY . ... 2,202,481 1,948,884
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ EQUItY .. ..o e $ 3,945,880 S 3,768,559
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2001 2000 1999

Dividends from:

Bank sUbDSIdiary ... e $ 130,000 ) 100,000 3 25,000

Non-bank subsidiaries . ... ... e - 16,828 —
ISt INCOME oot e e e e 3,053 35,016 6,847
[0 344 T=T YT T2 1= — {2,388) 149
Lo T T Tedo T TP 133,053 149,456 31,996
INEEIEST BXPEINSE « .+ v vttt ettt 156,540 180,761 56,668
OREr BXPENSE . e 6,360 8,317 28,976
TOtal @XPENSE .ottt e 162,900 189,078 85,644

Loss before income taxes and equity in earnings of subsidiaries
and extraordinary ITBM . ... e (29,847) (39,622) (53,648)
O TXES o oottt et e (59,234) (58,450) (28,403)

Income/(loss) before equity in earnings of subsidiaries

and extraordinary HBM . ... e 29,387 18,828 {25,245)
Extraordinary item {net of tax of $3,526) . .. .. ... ... 6,549 — —
Income/(loss) before equity in earnings of subsidiaries ........... .. ... ..o 22,838 18,828 (25,245}
Equity in undistributed earnings/{loss} of:

Bank SUDSIAIANY .o\ 96,104 {45,504) 198,874

Non-bank sUbSIIArEs . .. .ot e (2,121} (3,566) 5,670
Nt INCOME/ 088 ottt e e e $ 116,821 $ {(30,242) S 179,299




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 25 - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS YEAR ENDED DECEWMIBER 31,
2001 2000 1999

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

NEtINCOME/I0SS) . v e e $ 116,821 $ (30,242) $ 179,299
Adjustments to reconcile net income/{loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Undistributed (earnings)/loss of:

Bank subSidiary .. ... e (96,104) 45,504 (198,874}
Non-bank sUBSIdIAries . . ..ottt e 2,121 3,666 {5,670)
Loss on retirement of long-term debt . ... ... ... 10,075 — —
OthEr, N e e e (8,728) 6,610 (24,314)
Net cash provided {(used) by operating activities ............ i, 24,185 25,438 (49,559)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Net capital contributed to subsidiaries ......... ... {21,088) (563,275} (768,777}
Investment securities:
Maturity @nd rePayMEeBNTS . . ..o ottt e (930} 765,458 -
Net purchase and Sales . ... ..ot e —_ (797) {994,788}
Net cash received from business combinations ......... .. it — — 51
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities ........ ... ... i i (22,018) 201,386 {(1,763,514)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net change in borrowings:

Repayment of long-term debt . .. ... e (715,000} (227,742) —
Net proceeds received from long-termdebt ... ... . . . . i 525,000 — 1,239,894
Net change in borrowings from non-bank subsidiaries . ... i i 109,808 18,365 202,735
Sale (acquisition) of treasury stock . ... .. 85 {194) (46,867)
Acquisition of Restricted StOCK .. ... o e (3,083} — —_
Cash dividends paid to stockholders .. ... .. oo i (24,780} (22,499) (17,104)
Net proceeds from issuance of COMMON StOCK . . ... .o 156,893 5,244 342,803
Net proceeds from issuance of Warrants . ... ... .. .ttt — — 91,500
:, Net cash provided (used) by financing activities ... i e 48,913 (226,826) 1,812,961
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ... .. ... ittt 51,080 (2) (112)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ....... ...t - 2 114
Cash and cash equivalents atend of period .. ... i $ 51,080 $ - $ 2
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ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.
Not applicable.

PART )

ltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information relating to executive officers of Sovereign is included under Item 4A in Part | hereof. The information required by
this item relating to directors of Sovereign is incorporated herein by reference to (i) that portion of the section captioned “Election of
Directors” located in the definitive Proxy Statement to be used in connection with Sovereign's 2002 Annual Meeting of Shareholders
{the “Proxy Statement”). The information required by this item relating to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 is incorporated herein by reference to the section captioned “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”
in the Proxy Statement.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to (i) the sections captioned “Compensation Paid to
Directors” through “Indemnification” in the Proxy Statement and (ii) the section captioned “Performance Graph” in the Proxy
Statement.

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to that portion of the section captioned “Election of
Directors” in the Proxy Statement.

ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the sections captioned “Indebtedness of Management”
and “Other” in the Proxy Statement.

PART IV
ltem 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.

{A) 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
The following financial statements are filed as part of this report:

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

Financial statement schedules are omitted because the required information is either not applicable, not required or is
shown in the respective financial statements or in the notes thereto.

3. EXHIBITS.

(3.1) Articles of Incorporation, as amended and restated, of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1
to Sovereign's Registration Statement No. 333-86961-01 on Form S-3.)
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3. EXHIBITS. (continued)
{3.2) By-Laws of Sovereign Bancarp, Inc. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Sovereign’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998.)

{(4.1) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. has certain long-term debt outstanding. None of the instruments evidencing such debt authoriz-
es an amount of securities in excess of 10% of the total assets of Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and its subsidiaries on a consoli-
dated basis; therefore, copies of such instruments are not included as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. agrees to furnish copies to the Commission on request.

(10.1) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1994.)

{10.2) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Empioyee Stock Purchase Plan. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Sovereign'’s
Registration Statement No. 33-44108 on Form S-8.)

{10.3) Employment Agreement, dated as of March 1, 1997, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc., Sovereign Bank, and
Jay S. Sidhu. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Sovereign’s Amended Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A,
SEC Fite No. 0-16533, for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 1997.)

(10.4) Employment Agreement, dated as of May 1, 1997, between ML Bancorp, Inc. (a predecessor company of
Sovereign Bancorp, Inc.} and Dennis S. Marlo.

(10.5) Employment Agreement, dated as of September 25, 1997, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and Lawrence M.
Thompson, Jr. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Sovereign’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533,
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997.)

] (10.6} Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, {the "Rights Agreement"}, dated as of June 21, 2001, between Sovereign
| Bancorp, Inc. and Mellon Investor Services LLC {Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s 8-K/A
Na. 2 filed July 3, 2001).

{10.7) Form of Rights Certificate (Incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit B to the Rights Agreement). Pursuant to the
| Rights Agreement, Rights will not be distributed until after the Distribution Date (as defined in the Rights Agreement).

(10.8) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Non-Employee Directors Services Compensation Plan.

{10.9) 1993 Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. Stock Option Plan. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Sovereign's Annual
Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1992.)

(10.10) Indemnification Agreement, dated December 21, 1993, between Sovereign Bank and Jay S. Sidhu. {Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Sovereign’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, SEC File No. 0-16533, for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1993.)

(10.11) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 1997 Non-Employee Director’s Stock Option Pian. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit "A" to
Sovereign’s definitive proxy statement, SEC File No. 0-16533, dated March 15, 1996.)

{10.12) Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan. {Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Sovereign’s Registration
Statement No. 33-89586 on Form S-8.)

{10.13) Employment Agreement, dated January 7, 2000, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and John Hamill.

{(10.14) Employment Agreement, dated as of July 1, 1997, between Sovereign Bancorp, Inc. and Joseph P. Campanelli.
{(10.15) Employment Agreement dated as of June 23, 2001, between Scvereign Bancorp, Inc. and James D. Hogan.
{21) Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

(23.1) Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

(B) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
On October 19, 2001, Sovereign filed a Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 19, 2001, reporting information under ltems 5 and 7.

89




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

SOVEREIGN BANCORP, INC.
(Registrant)

March 22, 2002

By: /s/ Jav 8. SibHU

Jay S. Sidhu, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
s/ JoHNn A. Fry Director March 22, 2002
John A. Fry
/s/ BRIAN HARD Director March 22, 2002
Brian Hard
/s/ RicHARD E. VloHN Chairman of Board and Director March 22, 2002

Richard E. Mohn

/s/ Anprew C. HoOVE, JR. Director March 22, 2002
Andrew C. Hove, Jr.

{s/ DaniEL K. ROTHERMEL Director March 22, 2002
Daniel K. Rothermel '

/s/ Jav S. SipHU Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
Jay S. Sidhu {Principal Executive Officer) March 22, 2002
/s/ Cameron C. TroILO, SR. Director March 22, 2002

Cameron C. Troilo, Sr.

/s/ Janves D, HoGgan Chief Financial Officer March 22, 2002
James D. Hogan

/s! GEORGE S. Rapp Chief Accounting Officer March 22, 2002
George S. Rapp
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Contact Information

Bancorp Headquarters
2000 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Bank Headquarters
1130 Berkshire Boulevard
Wyomissing, PA 19610

Mailing Address
PO. Box 12646
Reading, PA 19612

Operator
610-320-8400
Fax: 610-320-8448

Internet:
www.sovereignbank.com
e-mail: General inquiries -
info@esovbank.com

Investor related inquiries -
investor@sovereignbank.com

Stock Listing

Sovereign's Common Stock is traded
and listed on the New York Stock
Exchange ("NYSE") under the
symbol “SOV". Sovereign’s Trust
Preferred Income Equity Redeemable
Securities, “PIERS” Units, are traded
on the NYSE under the symbol
“SOVPR”, and Sovereign Trust
Preferred Securities are traded on the
NYSE under the symbol “SOVPRA".

Options on Sovereign Common
Stock are traded on the American
Stock (AMEX), Chicago Board
Options (VIX), Philadelphia Stock
(PHLX) and Pacific (PCX) under the
symbol “SVRN” or “SQV",

Sovereign Common Stock high, low
and closing prices are reported in
most major newspapers as “Sovrgn

Bcorp”, “Sovereign” or “SovBcp.”

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Auditors

Ernst & Young LLP

Two Commerce Square, Suite 4000
2007 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103

Investor Information

Copies of the Annual Report, 10-K,
interim reports, press releases and
other communications sent to
shareholders are available at no
charge by contacting:

Voice mail: 800-628-2673
g-mail: investor@sovereignbank.com
website: www.sovereignbank.com

Counsel

Stevens & Lee
Philadelphia and Reading, PA

Dividends

Cash dividends on common stock
and PIERS Units are customarily paid
on a quarterly basis on or about the
15th of February, May, August and
November. Sovereign Trust Preferred
Capital Securities dividends are also
paid on a quarterly basis on or about
3/31, 6/30, 9/30, and 12/31

Common Stock Dividend
Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan

Sovereign Bancorp maintains a
Dividend Reinvestment and Stock
Purchase Plan for its shareholders
on record of Common Stock. This
Plan provides a convenient method
of investing cash dividends and
voluntary cash payments in addition-
al shares of Sovereign’s Common
Stock without payment of brokerage
commissions or service charges.
For a copy of the Prospectus

and enrollment card, please

contact Mellon Investor Services

at 800-685-4524.

Financial Information

Investors, brokers, security analysts
and others desiring financial
information should contact:

James D. Hogan, CPA

Chief Financial Officer,

Sovereign Bancorp

610-320-8496
e-mail:Jhogan@sovereignbank.com

Mark R. McColiom, CPA

Chief Financial Officer,

Sovereign Bank

610-208-6426
e-mail:Mmccollo@sovereignbank.com

Tye M. Barnhart

Senior Vice President

Investor Relations and

Corporate Development
610-988-0300
e-mail:Tharnhar@sovereignbank.com

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Shareholders who wish to change
the name, address or ownership of
stock, report lost stock certificates,
or consolidate stock accounts
should contact:

Common Stock

Mellon Investor Services
One Mellon Bank Center

500 Grant Street, Room 2122
Pittsburgh, PA 15258
800-685-4524

PIERS Units

The Bank of New York
101 Barclay Street - 21W
New York, NY 10286
212-896-7170

Trust Preferred Securities
The Bank of New York

2 North LaSalle Street
10th Floor

Chicago, IL 60602
312-827-8547
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